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 Agenda
   

 
 

City Council 
 

Council Chambers, City Hall 
6911 No. 3 Road 

Monday, June 11, 2012 
7:00 p.m. 

 
CNCL 
Pg. # 

ITEM  

 
  

MINUTES 
 
 1. Motion to adopt: 

  (1) the minutes of the Regular Council Meeting held on Monday, May 
28, 2012 (distributed previously); 

CNCL-9  (2) the minutes of the Regular Council Meeting for Public Hearings held 
on Tuesday, May 22, 2012; and  

CNCL-33  to receive for information the Metro Vancouver ‘Board in Brief’ dated May 
25, 2012. 

 

 
  

AGENDA ADDITIONS & DELETIONS 
 

  
PRESENTATION 

  Elizabeth Ayers, Manager, Community Recreation Services: presentation of 
the Richmond Children’s Charter video.  

 
  

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
 
 2. Motion to resolve into Committee of the Whole to hear delegations on 

agenda items. 
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CNCL 
Pg. # 

ITEM  

 

CNCL – 2 

 
 3. Delegations from the floor on Agenda items. 

  (PLEASE NOTE THAT FOR LEGAL REASONS, DELEGATIONS 
ARE NOT PERMITTED ON ZONING OR OCP AMENDMENT 
BYLAWS WHICH ARE TO BE ADOPTED; OR ON DEVELOPMENT 
PERMITS/DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMITS - ITEM NO. 18.) 

 
 4. Motion to rise and report. 

 

 
  

RATIFICATION OF COMMITTEE ACTION 
 
  

CONSENT AGENDA 

  (PLEASE NOTE THAT ITEMS APPEARING ON THE CONSENT 
AGENDA WHICH PRESENT A CONFLICT OF INTEREST FOR 
COUNCIL MEMBERS MUST BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT 
AGENDA AND CONSIDERED SEPARATELY.) 

 
  

CONSENT AGENDA HIGHLIGHTS 

   Receipt of Committee minutes 

   2011 Annual Report & Highlights 

   Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2012) Bylaw No. 8896 

   Britannia Heritage Shipyard National Historic Site 

   Richmond Children’s Charter 

   ACE 2011 Annual Report & Work Plan 

   Proposed GVRD Regional Growth Strategy Amendment Bylaw 1160 

   Hamilton Area Plan – First Public Survey Findings & Proposed 
Development Options 

 
 5. Motion to adopt Items 6 through 13 by general consent. 

 

 
 6. COMMITTEE MINUTES

 

  That the minutes of: 

CNCL-39  (1) the Finance Committee meeting held on Monday, June 4, 2012; 

Consent 
Agenda 

Item 



Council Agenda – Monday, June 11, 2012 

CNCL 
Pg. # 

ITEM  

 

CNCL – 3 

CNCL-45  (2) the Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee meeting held 
on Tuesday, May 29, 2012; and 

CNCL-51  (3) the Planning Committee meeting held on Tuesday, June 5, 2012; 

  be received for information. 

 

 
 7. 2011 ANNUAL REPORT AND 2011 ANNUAL REPORT –

HIGHLIGHTS 
(File Ref. No.:  ) (REDMS No. 3521666) 

CNCL-55  See Page CNCL-55 for full report 

  FINANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

  That the attached City of Richmond 2011 Annual Report and the 2011 
Annual Report – Highlights be approved. 

 

 
 8. REVENUE ANTICIPATION BORROWING (2012) BYLAW NO. 8896

(File Ref. No.:  03-0900-01/2011-Vol 01) (REDMS No. 3515105) 

CNCL-135  See Page CNCL-135 for full report 

  FINANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

  That Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2012) Bylaw No. 8896 be introduced 
and given first, second, and third readings. 

 

 
 9. BRITANNIA HERITAGE SHIPYARD NATIONAL HISTORIC SITE

(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No. 3526790) 

CNCL-139  See Page CNCL-139 for full report 

  PARKS, RECREATION & CULTURAL SERVICES COMMITTEE 
RECOMMENDATION 

  (1) That the Terms of Reference for a Britannia Heritage Shipyard 
Building Committee, as outlined in the report dated May 3, 2012 from 
the Director, Arts, Culture and Heritage Services, be endorsed; 

  (2) That a Britannia Heritage Shipyard Building Committee be 
established as per the Terms of Reference; and 

  (3) That Councillor Bill McNulty and Councillor Harold Steves be 
appointed to the Britannia Heritage Shipyard Building Committee.  

 

Consent 
Agenda 

Item 

Consent 
Agenda 

Item 

Consent 
Agenda 

Item 



Council Agenda – Monday, June 11, 2012 

CNCL 
Pg. # 

ITEM  

 

CNCL – 4 

 
 10. RICHMOND CHILDREN'S CHARTER

(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No. 3527945) 

CNCL-161  See Page CNCL-161 for full report 

  PARKS, RECREATION & CULTURAL SERVICES COMMITTEE 
RECOMMENDATION 

  That the Richmond Children First’s “Richmond Children’s Charter,” as 
presented in the report dated May 3, 2012, from the Acting Director, 
Recreation, be endorsed. 

 

 
 11. RICHMOND ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON THE ENVIRONMENT 

(ACE): 2011 ANNUAL REPORT AND 2012 WORK PLAN 
(File Ref. No. 01-0100-20-ACEN1-01) (REDMS No. 3527086) 

CNCL-169  See Page CNCL-169 for full report 

  PLANNING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

  That: 

  (1) The 2011 Richmond Advisory Committee On The Environment 
(ACE) Annual Report be received; and 

  (2) The 2012 Richmond Advisory Committee On The Environment 
(ACE) Work Plan be endorsed. 

 

 
 12. RICHMOND COMMENTS: PROPOSED GREATER VANCOUVER 

REGIONAL DISTRICT REGIONAL GROWTH STRATEGY 
AMENDMENT BYLAW 1160, 2012 
(File Ref. No. ) (REDMS No. 3534599) 

CNCL-175  See Page CNCL-175 for full report 

  PLANNING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

  That, as per the staff report titled: “Richmond Comments: Proposed Greater 
Vancouver Regional District Regional Growth Strategy Amendment Bylaw 
1160, 2012”, the Metro Vancouver (MV) Board be advised that the City of 
Richmond accepts the proposed Greater Vancouver Regional District 
Regional Growth Strategy Amendment Bylaw 1160, 2012. 

 

 

Consent 
Agenda 

Item 

Consent 
Agenda 

Item 

Consent 
Agenda 

Item 
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 13. HAMILTON AREA PLAN - FIRST PUBLIC SURVEY FINDINGS 
AND PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT OPTIONS 
(File Ref. No. 08-4045-20-14) (REDMS No. 3532954) 

CNCL-189  See Page CNCL-189 for full report 

  PLANNING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

  That staff proceed with Phase 2 of the Hamilton Area Plan Update with the 
three proposed development options included in this report dated May 23, 
2012 from the Acting General Manager of Planning and Development. 

 

 
 
  *********************** 

CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS REMOVED FROM THE 
CONSENT AGENDA 

*********************** 
 
 

  NON-CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
  

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie, Chair 

 
 14. 2011 SURPLUS APPROPRIATION

(File Ref. No.: ) (REDMS No. 3518825) 

CNCL-245  See Page CNCL-245 for full report 

  FINANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION (Cllrs. Johnston & 
McNulty opposed) 

  That the December 31, 2011 surplus of $4.556 million be appropriated as 
outlined in the staff report titled 2011 Surplus Appropriation (dated April 
26, 2012 from the General Manager, Business and Financial Services) with 
the following amendments:   

Consent 
Agenda 

Item 
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  (1) That $50,000 be taken from Item No. 12 – 2013 Capital Program, for 
funding of a one year temporary part-time position of a Child Care 
Coordinator;  

  (2) That $167,500 be taken from Item No. 12 – 2013 Capital Program, 
and   

   (a) $67,500 be appropriated to Item No. 15 – Mobile Community 
Safety Education Unit, as seed funding; and 

   (b) $100,000 be appropriated to Item No. 18 – Salmon Row 2013, as 
seed funding;  

  (3) That $500,000 be taken from Item No. 12 – 2013 Capital Program, 
and placed into Capital Building and Infrastructure Reserve; and  

  (4) That $125,000 be taken from  Item No. 12 – 2013 Capital Program,  
and placed in the Major Events Provision Fund. 

 

 
  

PARKS, RECREATION AND CULTURAL SERVICES 
COMMITTEE 
Councillor Harold Steves, Chair 

 
 
 15. STEVESTON INTERURBAN TRAM BUILDING PUBLIC ART 

PROJECT 
(File Ref. No. 11-7000-09-20-134) (REDMS No. 3527761) 

CNCL-251  See Page CNCL-251 for full report 

  PARKS, RECREATION & CULTURAL SERVICES COMMITTEE 
RECOMMENDATION (Cllr. McNulty opposed) 

  That the concept proposal and installation of the Steveston Interurban 
Tram Building Public Art Project “Interurban Map” by artist Mia 
Weinberg, as presented in the report from the Director, Arts, Culture & 
Heritage Services dated May 7, 2012, be endorsed. 

 

 
  

PUBLIC DELEGATIONS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 16. Motion to resolve into Committee of the Whole to hear delegations on 

non-agenda items. 
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  Mr. Kal Mahal, 16551 Westminster Highway, to speak to Council about truck 
parking on River Road, encompassing lands from No. 7 Road to Kartner 
Road.   

 
 17. Motion to rise and report. 

 

 
  

RATIFICATION OF COMMITTEE ACTION 
 

 
  

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS AND EVENTS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

NEW BUSINESS 

 
  

BYLAWS FOR ADOPTION 
 

CNCL-263  Development Application Fees Bylaw No. 7984, Amendment Bylaw No. 
8905 
Opposed at 1st/2nd/3rd Readings – None. 
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CNCL – 8 

CNCL-265  Richmond Zoning Bylaw No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw No. 8765 
(7980 Broadmoor Boulevard, RZ 10-529089)  
Opposed at 1st Reading – None. 
Opposed at 2nd/3rd Readings – None. 

 

 
 
  

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PANEL 
 
 18. RECOMMENDATION 

  See DPP Plan Package (distributed separately) for full hardcopy plans 

CNCL-267 
 (1) That the minutes of the Development Permit Panel meeting held on 

Wednesday, May 30, 2012, and the Chair’s report for the 
Development Permit Panel meetings held on May 30, 2012, and April 
25, 2012, be received for information; and 

CNCL-299 

  (2) That the recommendations of the Panel to authorize the issuance of: 

  (a) a Development Permit (DP 12-602996) for the property at 3811 
Moncton Street; 

   (b) a Development Permit (DP 12-603496) for the property at 8900 
No. 1 Road; and 

   (c) a Development Permit (DP 11-594282) for the property at
7600 Garden City Road; 

   be endorsed, and the Permits so issued. 

  (3) That the recommendation of the Panel to authorize the issuance of a 
Heritage Alteration Permit (HA 12-602998) in accordance with the 
Development Permit (DP 12-602996) for the property at 3811 
Moncton Street be endorsed, and the Permit so issued. 

 

 
  

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 



Place: 

Present: 

City of 
Richmond 

Regular Council Meeting for Public Hearings 

Tuesday, May 22, 2012 

Council Chambers 
Richmond City Hall 
691 1 No.3 Road 

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie 
Counci llor Chak Au 
Councillor Linda Bames 
Councillor Derek Dang 
Councillor Evelina Halsey-Brandt 
Council lor Ken Johnston 
Councillor Bill McNulty 

. Councillor Linda McPhail 
Councillor Harold Steves 

Gail JOMson, Acting Corporate Officer 

Minutes 

Calf to Order: , Mayor Brodie opened the proceedings at 7:00 p.m. 

PHI2/5-1 

3489912 

AGENDA ADDITIONS & DELETIONS 

It was moved and seconded 

That Item 6, ZOllillg Amelldment Bylaw 8890 (RZ Il-586782) for 6471, 
6491, and 6511 No.2 Road, be deleted from the May 22, 2012 Public 
Hearing agenda ami referred to tlt e Public Hearing to be held at 7:00 p.m. 
Oil Monday, June 18, 2012, in the Coullcil Chambers, Richmond City 
Hall. 

1. Zoning Amendment Bylaw 8878 (Child Care Reserve Fund) 
(Location: All of Richmond; Applicant: City of Richmond) 

Applicant's Comments: 

CARRIED 

Brian 1. Jackson; Director of Development, was available to answer 
questions. 

I. 

CNCL - 9



PH1 2/5-2 

PHl 2/5-3 

City of 
Richmond 

Regular Council Meeting for Public Hearings 
Tuesday, May 22, 2012 

Written Submissions: 

None. 

Submissions from the floor: 

None. 
It was moved and seconded 

Minutes 

That Zoning Amendment Bylaw 8878 be given second and thinl readings. 

CARRIED 

It was moved and seconded 

That Zoning Amelldment Bylaw 8878 be adopted. 

CARRIED 

2. Zoning Amendment Bylaw 8882 (Affordable Housing Reserve Fund) 
(Location: All ofllichmond; Applicant: City ofllichmond) 

Applicant's Comments: 

Brian 1. Jackson, Director of Development, was available to answer 
questions. 

Written Submissions: 

D eirdre Wbalen, 13631 Blundell Road (Schedule 1) 

Lynda Brurnmit, Richmond Poverty Response Committee (Schedule 2) 

Supmissions from the floor: 

Deirdre Whalen, 13631 Blundell Road, spoke in support of the proposed 
amendment. Her comments are attached to these Minutes as Schedule 1. 

Lynda Brummit, Richmond Poverty Response Committee, spoke in support 
of the proposed amendment. Her comments are attached to these M inutes as 
Schedule 2. 

PH1 2/5-4 It was moved and seconded 

That ZOllillg Amendment Bylaw 8882 be given second ami third readings. 

CARRIED 

PH12/5-5 It was moved and seconded 

That Zoning Amendment Bylaw 8882 be adopted. 

CARRIED 

2. 
3489912 

CNCL - 10



lo489911 

City of 
Richmond 

Regular Council Meeting for Public Hearings 
Tuesday, May 22, 2012 

3. Zoning Amendment Bylaw 8884 (RZ 11-585209) 

Minutes 

(Location: 7731 & 7771 Alderbridge Way; Applicant: Onni 773 1 
Alderbridge Holding Corp. and Onni 7771 A1derbridge Holding Corp.) 

Applicant's Comments: 

The applicant was available to answer questions. 

Written Submissions: 

Mike Rasberry, Tim Hortons Restaurant, #125-7771 Alderbridge Way 
(Schedufe 3) 

Helmot Eppich, Chairman of the Board, Richard Eppich, CEO and 
President, Ebco Industries Ltd ., 7851 Alderbridge Way (Schedule 4) 

Wi lliam Dao, Legal Counsel, Tim H ortons, The TDL Group Corp. , 
(Schedule 5) 

Submissions from the floor: 

Mike Rasberry, Tim Hortons Restaurant, #125-7771 Alderbridge Way, 
expressed concern that the proposed residential development by Onni would 
have a negative impact on the Tim Hortons Restaurant he owns and 
operates. He explained that the lease for his restaurant extends through 
2032. The lease has no termination or demolition clause so there are no 
legal grounds available to Onni for the termination of his lease. 

Mr. Rasberry noted that the developer had not communicated with him. nor 
engaged in any discussion regarding the proposed development. 

Mr. Rasberry stated that if the requested rezoning took place, it would make 
his restaurant business non-conforming, and that by rezoning the property. 
the City would encourage the termination of his lease. 

In closing, Mr. Rasberry requested that Council add the following 
conditions: (i) the City require the inclusion of retaiUcommercial space; and 
(ii) the satisfactory resolution of the lease tenure matter. 

David McKeegan, a representative from the TDL Group Corp: that operates 
Tim Hortons Restaurants, spoke in support of Mr. Rasberry 's comments, 
and reiterated concerns regarding Onni's fai lure to indicate its development 
intentions to the businesses operating at the subject site. 

3. 
CNCL - 11



PHI2/S-6 

City of 
Richmond 

Regular Council Meeting for Public Hearings 
Tuesday, May 22, 2012 

Minutes 

Mr. McKeegan also requested that as a condition of the rezoning, Onni 
include some commercial or retail space in the development that could 
accommodate a Tim Hartons Restaurant, and settle any lease issue with Tim 
Hartons, and the other businesses, at the subject site. 

Chris Evans, Onni representative, advised that the developer has spoken to 
Tim Hartons corporate office throughout the past two years. He noted that 
Onni understands the need to resolve the lease issue before the rezoning 
bylaw is adopted by Counci1. He added that Onni has spoken with 
landowners, and tenants, affected by the proposed development, but he 
agreed that better communication could have been undertaken. 

It was moved and seconded 
(l..es~",J.e..l by Tltat, in relation to this rezoning, as afurther condition offourtlt reading 
ResC.~"~O"'4 S~~,'!/"l-3 of the Bylaw, that any leases registered on title, including the lease in 
0""- '>1 .... 10-(.. ........ "-- . • p-4 We&.., favour of TIm Hortons Canada, would be dIScharged. 

CARRIED 
PHI2/S-7 It was moved and seconded 

~ietot"""l re.S& .... ~ That Zoning Amendment Bylaw 8884 be given second and third readings. 
by l.....: t';", s\c 12./00\_1.\ ARRIED 
o.~~tJtl;"'7.. C 

PHI2/S-8 

) 489912 

4. Zoning Amendment Bylaw 8886 (RZ 12-596719) 
(Location: 7091 and 7111 Bridge Street; Applicant: Parkland Development 
Ltd.) 

Applicant 's Comments: 

The applicant was not in attendance. 

Written Submissions: 

Jeremy Sze, #9-7071 Bridge Street (Schedule 6) 

Ting, 7071 Bridge Street (Schedule 7) 

Wei Gan, #38-7071 Bridge Street (Schedule 8) 

Submissions from the floor : 

None. 

It was moved and seconded 

That Zoning Amendment Bylaw 8886 be given second and third readings. 

CARRIED 

4. 



PH I 2/5-9 

City of 
Richmond 

Regular Council Meeting for Public Hearings 
Tuesday, May 22, 2012 

5. Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 8889 
(Location: City Centre Area; Applicant: City of Richmond) 

Applicant's Comments: 

Minutes 

Brian 1. Jackson, Director of Development, was available to answer 
questions. 

Written Submissions: 

None. 

Submissions from the floor: 

None. 

It was moved and seconded 
That Zonillg Ament/mellt Bylaw 8889 be givell second ami third readillgs. 

CARRIED 

PH 1215-10 It was moved and seconded 

3489912 

That Zouing Amendment Bylaw 8889 be adopted. 

CARRIED 

6. Zoning Amendment Bylaw 8890 (RZ 11-586782) 
(Location: 6471, 6491, and 6511 No.2 Road; Applicant: Matthew Cheng 
Architect Inc.) 

See Page I for Council action ,on this matter. 

7. Zoning Amcndment Bylaw 8891 (ZT 11-593771) 
(Location: 10880, 10820 and 10780 No. 5 Road and 12733 Steveston 
Highway; Applicant: Townline Gardens Inc.) 

Applicant 's Comments: 

The applicant was available to answer questions. 

Written Submissions: 

None. 

s. 
CNCL - 13
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City of 
Richmond 

Regular Council Meeting for Public Hearings 
Tuesday, May 22, 2012 

Submissions Fom the floor: 

None. 
It was moved and seconded 

Minutes 

That Zonillg Amendment Bylaw 8891 be given second alld third readillgs. 

CARRIED 

ADJOURNMENT 

PH12/S-12 It was moved and seconded 
Thai the meeting adjourn (8:00 p.m.). 

Mayor (Malcolm D. Brodie) 

34899]2 

CARRIED 

Certified a true and correct copy of the 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting for Public 
Hearings of the City of Richmond held on 
Tuesday, May 22,2012. 

Acting Corporate Officer 
City Clerk's Office (Gai l Johnson) 

6. 

CNCL - 14



Submission to City of Richmond Public Hearing May 22, 2012. 

Schedule 1 to the Minutes of 
the Council Meeting for 
Public Hearings held on 
Tuesday, May 22, 2012. 

My name is Deirdre Whalen. I reside at 13631 Blundell Road, Richmond. 

Thank you for the opportunity to make a presentati9n to the City of Richmond public hearing on 
theAffordable Housing Statutory Reserve Fund Policy. I speak in SUppOlt ofthe policy 
amendment regarding the operating reserve fund, in particu lar " ... other activities related to 
carrying out the Richmond Affordable }[ousin.g Strategy or any part thereof'" 

My aim in speaking tonight is to encourage the city of Richmond to reserve pmt ofthe operating 
fund to create a Community Grant Program. The model I wou ld use is the City of Surrey and the 
Surrey Homelessness and Housing Fund. This fund was established in 2007 with initial seed 
funding from the City of Surrey Affordable Housing Reserve Fund. The Surrey Homelessness 
and Housing Fund pr6videsfinancial support to organizations and projects that work towards 
reducing homelessness and increfl;sing access to hotlsing in Surrey. The funds reside with the 
Vancity Community Foundation and the interest generated funds the grants program . 

. The funds are granted in accordance with four ideals: homelessness prevention, creating access 
for housing, support services, and sector capacity. Some of the projects that have been funded are: 
the Surrey Rent Bank, Su rrey Homeless Connect, Transition hous ing, a Supp011ed recovery 
house, and an Aboriginal community housing project. . 

Grants from s\}ch a grants program in Richmond could be used by community agencies to 
leverage other grant monie:s and provide enhanced programming around homelessness prevention 
and access to housing. Once you put money into the community, agencies can make it go far. 

One of Surrey's grantees is in line with the -Affordable Housing Strategy's goal of establishing an 
emergency shelter for women; that is a rent bank. A women's shelter certainly is a laudable goal, 
but perhaps it is a bit far off in the future. In themeantime, a grant could be used to create a Rent 
Bank that would give shOlt-term micro-loans for such things as first/last months rent, a utility 
payment or a damage deposit. Women that apply and are approved for a loan would be able to 
stay in their homes and avoi.d being evicted or move out and find more suitable accommodations. 
Whereas a women's shelter would· require substantia l capital as well 8.<; ongoing operating 
funding, a Richmond Rent Bank could accomplish much the same thing at a reduced cost. 

<-
What gave me this- idea was I was at a rent bank forum recently and one of the speakers was from 
the City of Toronto Rent Bank. The way they started it was to provide a micro-loan to women 
and their ch ildren to prevent them being evicted and to provide more stability in their housing. 
The program had grow~ over the years to cover anyone seeking a micro-loan for housing needs 
and the statistics show it is a huge success . 

Suggested resources are as follows: 

http://surreyho me lessnessand hous i n g.org/ a boutl2 0 I O-ann ual-gran ts-report! 

http: //ontariorentbank.netfroronto 

CNCL - 15
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City of Richmond 
Zoning Bylaw Amendment 8882 
Affordable Housing Reserve Fund 
Public Hearing 
May 22,2012 

Submission from the Floor 

Schedule 2 to the Minutes of 
the Council Meeting for 
Public Hearings held on 
Tuesday, May 22, 2012. 

lynda Brummitt, Representative of Richmond Poverty Response Committee 

Thank you for the opportunity to speak tonight in this hearing regarding the Affordable 
Housing Reserve Fund. I am speaking in favour of the p~oposed bylaw which wilrgive 
Council the flexibility to direct both capital and operating reserve funds to financially 
support City approved affordable housing development projects and initiatives. 

Richmond Poverty Response Committee is currently engaged in a pilot project 
Richmond Rental Connect. This project will establish a housing registry for Richmond 
that will match landlord of se.condary suites and affordable rents with Richmond 
residents in need of affordable housing, 

We recently held a conversation circle with landlords and those who attended fell into 
different categories - some who are currently renting out a suite or contemplating 
opening a suite in their home or may have had a suite in the past that is now no longer 
in use. The purpose of the conversation circles was to get input on how a registry could 
work to best meet their needs. They suggested the follOWing as actions that they felt 
would encourage themselves and others to develop secondary suites: 

landlords would like to have more information about the permitting 
requirements for secondary suites so that they can make an assessment ofthe 
Viability of a secondary suite in their home. 
They would like workshops/information to help them in their role as landlord in 
terms residential tenancy - suggested topics included rights and responsibilities, 
appropriate screening, conflict resolution 
Mentorship - the group that attended the session had a range of experience as 
landlords and the idea of mentorship where more experienced landlords could 
help those just starting out was highly supported 

It was acknowledged that the monetary/financial benefit of a secondary suite was an 
important consideration - for some it provides the opportunity to get into the housing 
market, for others, preparing for retirement, a secondary suite might mean a resident 
can remain in Richmond instead of moving. But it was also seen as a way to give back to' 
the community by providing an affordable place for a renter to live and work in 
Richmond. 
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Secondary suites are one of the ways identified under the affordable housing strategy 
for provid ing affordable housing; the supports outlined by the landlords at our 
conversation circle could easily be organized and would encourage new landlords as 
well as those who may have a suite not currently in use. More flexibility to use the 
Affordable Housing Operating Reserve Fund would allow council to support innovative 
approaches for a pressing community need for affordable housing. 

A full report on the landlord conversation circle can be viewed "t 
https:/Idocs.google.com[document[d[lwfgKuRS9bSeHcfNXhXgg4lD7M cStlgSsB6riAai 
HSV[edit# 

A newsletter that explains the role of Rental Connect can be viewed at: 
http:// ri c h m a nd p rc. a rg/wo rd press/ wp-co nte nt/up I oads/20 12/03/ rp rc -n ews I ette r­
m a rch-for-distu rbutlon .pdf 
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May 10, 2012 

City of Richmond 
6911 No.3 Road 
Richmond, British Columbia V6Y 2Cl 
Delivered by hand 

Attention: Richmond City Council 

Re: Objection to Re-Zoning Application RZll 585209 

To Public Hearing 
Ooto: H~ v?--. 'Za \ V 
Item 1t":3 1 

R.:~1aw g.':;lS 'f 
\ 

Schedule 3 to the Minutes of 
the Council Meeting for 
Public Hearings held on 
Tuesday, May 22, 2012. 

Ooni 7731 Alderbridge Holding Corp. and Ouni 7771 Alderbridge Holding Corp. 
Affecting: 7731 Aldc."bddge Way and 7771 Alderbridge Way, Richmond, Be 

This submission is in response to the proposed Ooni condo development and the negative impact 
it will have on the community and businesses located at 7731 Alderbridge Way and 7771 

Alderbridge Way. 

As noted in the "Report to Committee" by Brian Jackson, dated April10tll 2012, a Tim Hartons 
Restaurant is currently located at 125-7771 Ald~rbridge Way. 

As the Owner and Operator of this Tim Hortons franchised restaurant, I strongly object to the re­

zoning and redevelopment of this site as it is currently proposed. My objection is based on the 

fact that there appears to be numerous issues that were not c;onsidered in the Report to 

Committee. I b~lieve these issues are importaI?-t to the sustainable growth and prosperity of our 

community. It is my sincere hope that Council will take sufficient time to adequately consider 
these issues b~fore approving this development. 

1. Within the Official Community Plan (OCP), Section 2.4, Objective 3, Policy (a) identifies 

the need to reinforce the regional town centre role ofthe City Centre by continuing to support 

uses w hich meet the daily shopping and personal service needs of the significant resident and 

worker populations. This Policy also refers to the desire for the integration into mixed-use, 

pedestrian-friendly character of the downtown. Policy (d) also enco,!rages small, pedestrian­

friendly streetfront convenience and personal service facilities on major roads to complement 

neighbourhood service centres and meet the needs of the surrounding residents. The City of 

Richmond would not be achieving the objectives of the mixed-use policies of the OCP ifit 
were to allow Orull to develop only residential condos at this site. The attached Appendix B 

outlines the cited sections of the OCP. 

2. While the Report to Committee may feel that the proposed development is consistent with 

the OCP, it appears to nofconsider items 9.4.4D a) and b), which reinforce 

incorporate mixed-use areas, specifically commercial uses at grade into IfvqlO;l; 
think it is establi shed policy that proJ!loting pedestrian related activi 

environment by creating a public environment. 

MAY 14Zm CNCL - 20



3. We urge Council to consider the addition of a retail component to this residential 
development because it appears there are no retail plans by Ourn. As Council may know, a 
retail component would provide readily accessible services to the' community by making it 
more walkable and less dependent on the automobile and therefore better for the 

environment. 

4. Furthennore, adding ground level retail businesses to a residential development would 
provide additional security by adding "eyes on the street" in conformance with CPTED 
(Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design) principles. This principle is particularly 
true at this location because this Tim Hortons operates 24 hours a day. 

S. In addition, 7731 & 7771 Alderhridge Way are located within the T5 zone, in the Lansdowne 

Village section of the City Center (as detailed on Specific Land Use Maps: Lansdowne 
Village 2031 in the City Center Area Plan). The attached Appendix A outlines the permitted 
uses for T5 zoned land. 

6. TS zoning is described by the City of Richmond in its Land Use and Developing Framework 
as "a mixed-use dev~lopment designed to help reinforce the downtown core". The Onni 
development as proposed is not consistent with the City's desire for mixed-use, as no 
accommodation has been made for retail or commercial use. 

7. Further to the T5 zoning issue, there is au application currently under review to the South of 
the Onni site which respects the importance of mixed-use within that proposed development. 
I think there should be a discussion on why Onni's current proposal does not do the same. 

The above are my policy issues against the proposed Onni development as it currently stands. 
Having been a long time resident, business owner, and employer in the City of Richmond I feel 
strongly that there other community issues that are equally important factors, which I hope 
Council will consider. 

8. The Tim Hortons Restaurant mentioned has been at this location and serving this community 
since September 2002, and in this time has become part of the community. We serve as a 
community meeting place for residents and workers. We are a place where family and 
friends gather together to share their thoughts and greet their neighbors. If the development 
were to go forward as proposed, tllis would be lost to the community as relocating within the 
immediate area is highly unlikely_ 

9. Ooni has had little or no engagement with myself or the other affected businesses at this site. 
Despite our long standing in the community, and almost ten-year history at this location, this 
is my first opportunity for consultation. 

2 
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10. As a member of the community, this Tim Hortons has supported and been involved with 
countless community events, and bas contributed charitable donations and sponsorships 
focused in the local area surrounding this location. These involvements and contributions 
enrich the community, and this enriclunent would be lost ifOnni's develbpment were to 

continue as proposed. 

11. Over the years, we have employed hundreds ofRiclunond residents. OUf employment often 
provides an opportunity for new residents to develop better language skill s, meet their 
neighbors, and become comfortable in the community. The absence of commerciaVretail 
space in this development would result in a loss of these jobs, and the associated benefits for 
the community. 

Taking these factors into consideration, the development as proposed would result in a 
community that offers considerably less of what makes an area a desirable place to live. 

The many benefits provided by maintaining businesses in the community, such as Tim Hortons, 
relate directly to the mixed-use benefits of improving the downtown core that the T5 zoning and 
the OCP policies aim to achieve. 

The businesses in the area would benefit the growing community and the new development, by 
providing conveniently located services, employment, as well as charitable contributions, while 
maintaining the sense of community that has been established through the longstanding presence 
of these businesses. 

I believe that further consultation with local businesses and residents would allow for the interest 
of the community to be served, while also meeting the needs of the developers. 

As a concerned Richmond resident and business owner, and on behalf of the forty employees at 
our restaurant, I respectfully urge Counci l to direct OMi to rework their proposal to include 
opportunities for commcrciaUretail space in keeping with the T5 zoning and OCP policies. as 
well as for the bettennent of the community as a whole. 

Sincerely, 

fV1~q ~ 
Mike Rasberry 

Owner/Operator Tim Hortons #2324 
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Appendix A: I5 Zoning Details 

TS Zoning allows for the following uses: 

Mixed M ultiple-Family ResidentiaVCommercial Usc and 1\'Iultiple-Family 
Res idential, provided that ground.floor dwelling units are: 

a) for Pedestrian Oriented Retail Precincts - "High Streets & Linkages": Not 
permitted; 

b) for Pedestrian-Oriented Retail Precincts - "Secondary Retail Streets & 
Linkages": LiveIWork Dwellings. 
• Hotel 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 

Office 
Retail Trade & Services 
Restaurant 
Neighbourhood Pub 
Institutional Use 
Recreation Studio (Studio spaces that provide for a high degree of 
transparency and public access along fronting streets and open spaces shall be 
considered to satisfy requirements for retail continuity in Pedestrian-Oriented 
Retail Precincts.) 
Community Use 
Accessory Uses 

4 
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Appendix B: City of Richmond Official City Plan (OCP) cited sections: 

Section 2.4, Obj ective 3: 
Main tain a hiera r chy of remil and personal service locations to meet community-wide and 
Ilcigh boUI-hood needs. 

POLIClES: 
a) Reinforce the Regional Town Centre role of the City Centre by continuing to 

support: 
• 

• 

• 

The regional shopping centres and titeiJ integration into the mixed-use, 
pedestrian-friendly character of the downtown; , 
The specialty retail and personal service districts which cater to Richmond's 
diverse population and contribute to the City Centre's tourist appeal; 
Uses which meet the daily shopping and personal service needs of the 
significant resident and worker populations; 

d) Encourage the development of small, pedestrian-friendly. streetfront 
convenience and personal service facilities on major roads to complement 
neighbourhood service centres and meet the needs of surrounding residents; 

Section 9.4.4.D Retail Development on Major Streets 
a) New development on major streets, particularly at intersections, should 

reinforce the establishment of mixed-use areas that provide special retail focal 
points and promote pedestrian activity in the City; 

b) Mixed-use developments on major streets should accommodate commercial 
uses at grade and residential uses above; 

5 
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Schedule 4 to the Minutes of 
the Council Meeting for 
Public Hearings held on 

,"'" Tuesday, May 22, 2012. 
L T D . 

CELEBRATING sn YEARS 1I~ E! Ll SINt5~ 

May 18, 2012 

The Mayor and Council, 
City of Richmond, 
6911 NO.3 Road, 
Richmond, BC, VGY 2C1 
Via Fax: G04~27B·S139 

Dear Mayor and Council: 

MAY 1 82012 

To Public Hearing 
Oat.: tTriZ"?d:. ~/L 
Item « .3 
Re: ~8~ 

RE: Development Appllc,atlon by Dnni at 7731 and 7771 Alderbridge Way. Richmond 

We are the owners bf the property at 7851 Alderbridge Way and the property at 7280 River 
Road in Richmond. We have owned these properties since 1968 and 1972 respect ively. As the 
Mayor and Council is aware, we established and have been opera ting two family owned 
manufacturing Companies, namely Ebco Industries and Advanced Cyclotron Systems Inc. at 
these premises since 1969. Currently, there are about 300 employees between the two 
Companies ranging from Engineers and Scientists to uniquely qualified technicians and licensed 
tradesmen. 

We are weI! aware that with the availability ofthe Canada line, ours and other adjacent lands in 
the area have become suitable for redevelopment to "higher land uses" including commercial 
and high density residential.. To this end, we, as the owners of these lands for over 44 years, 
wish to ensure that re·development of any properties in our immediate viCinity d.o not in any 
way interfere with the current and fu tu re "highest and best" land use of aliT lands. Maywe 
respectfully submit tha t the highest land values and the equity in our lands are critical to the 
operation & success of our current Companies. Furthermore, protecting the" highest and best" 
land values is even more critical for the future relocation of the current Companies. 

For all of the above reasons, we must respectfully inform the Mayor and Council of our 
'objections related to "View Corridor" considera tions included on Page 10 in the Report 
( File . RZ 11·585209 ) from Director of Development to Planning Committee dated Ap ril 10, 2012 
in support of application by Onni for properties at 7731 and 7771 Alderhridge Way from 
'Industria l Retail to High Density Low Rise Apartments. We firmly believe that any vIew corridor 
considerations, implied or express by the City of Richmond, for this application will adversely 
affect the market value of our property at n80 River Road. 

You r Worship Mayor BrodIe and esteemed Councilors, we have owned the property at 7280 

River Road since 1972 and we do not now want the futu re market villue or the redevelopment 
potential of th is property diminished or l imited or constrained in any way by virtue of the 
e)(pectations for a lIiew corridor directly opposite our property mentioned in (J City of Richmond 
Planning Report. Furthermore. we bel ieve any consideration of a view corridor by the City of 
Richmond in fallor of a private property owner is equivalent to Council conferring a significant 
benefit for that developer while at the same time negatively impact ing our lands as the view 
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co rridor is being given or implied over our lands thus limiting or diminishing or causing 
additional constra ints on our lands, 

Given that any view corrIdor considerat ions, however minimal, still negatively affect our 
property at 7280 River Road and 7851 Alderbridge (in way F?f future redevelopment), we must 
respectfully request the Mayor and Council tQ NOT grant any view co rridor conside rations to the 
above development and that the current view corr idor language be removed entir~ly from here 
on prior to any further approvals. 

We are hopeful that the Mayor and Council would grant our request given t hat: 

• aUf request only seeks to protect aUf lands and does not in any way limits the scope of 
the above development. 

• that we have owned these lands for over 44 years. 
• that the' success of our tw~ Companies. Ebco Industries -and Advanced Cyclot ron 

Systems Inc, with 300 hig~ly paid jobs and growing heavily depends on the continuing 
" highest and Best" iand values for financing of the two Companies. 

• we have been a st rong Corporate stakeholder for the City of Richmond providing 
significant support to the city of Richmond's cultural goals includinE Museums ·, etc. 

We will be pleased to meet the Mayor and Council in per~on should it be so required. 

Your's truly, 

Ich ' 
Chairm an ofthe Board 

cc : 

Richa 
CEO a 

Eppich 
d President 

George Duncan, CAD, City of Richmond (Via email: gduncan@richmond.ca) 
Brian Jac,kson, Oirector of Development (Via email : bj-acKson@1richmond.ca 1 

EhCIi Illuustrl l:!s Lcd 78:'j 1 Alderbfid99 W :JY, Ri¢ mond Briri;:;h CfIJllflll')j:l, C::I/l;:.I1Fi vtiX 2 A.Il. A 
Tel · [;04 27R f,~7f1 • 'AW,Y elXO 0011'1 • I ().o: ou4 rill /r'! j' J ,m •• ~ r. ~"'/r<'''T t ~..r,,"~t' ....... " .. 1 
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May 16. 2012 

VIA HAND DELIVERED 

City of Richmond 
6911 No.3 Road 
Richmond, Be V6Y 2C1 

Dear Sirs & Mesdames: 

® 
OPERATED BYTHE TOL GROUP Corp. 
1i60· 51" STREET S.E., CALGARY, ALBERTA T2C1B4 
TELEPHONE (~OJ) 203-7400 • FACSIMI LE (40)) 20J.14}O 

Schedule 5 to the Minutes of 
the Council Meeting for 
Public Hearings held on 
T uesday, May 22, 2012. 

Re: TIm Hortons Restaurant located at 125·7771 Alderhrldge Way. Richmond, Be 

1. This letter is a submission from the TOL Group Corp. which operates as the franchisor for the 
Tim Hartons restaurant #23241ocated at 125-7771 Alderbrldge Way, in Richmond, BG, 

2. We wish to voice our objection to the proposed re-zoning application by Onni. If the re­
zoning is approved in the current form, it will cause Irreparable harm to all of the businesses 
in and around 7731 Alderbridge Way and 7771 Alderbridge Way. 

3. Tim Hortons has been operating at this location since 2002 and our lease of the premises 
continues through to 2032. Onni recently purchased this property from the previous landlord 
and our understanding is that Onni plans to re-develop all of the property located in the 
vicinity of the Tim Hortons into residential condominiums. 

4. Our concern is that Onni has not formally indicated to us, or to any of the other businesses in 
the area, their Intentions for this developmenl We think it is only fair that Onni should inform 
the tenants of their re-development plans, as they plans will ultimately have a major impact 
on all of the stakeholders, including the community at large. 

5. As a condition of their re-zoning approval, Onni should be required to either settle any 
disagreements with the tenants regarding their existing leases or pennit the tenants to 
continue operating until the end of their term as agreed to in the Jeases. 

6. We wish to inform City Council that the Tim Hortons lease has no earty termination clause or 
demolition clause, so it is abundantly clear that there are no legal grounds for termination 
available to Onnl. 

7. We feel that if City Council were to approve Onni's application as it stands, Onni would be 
encouraged to breach the terms of their [eases and effec~vely dose down the Tim Hortons. 
as well as the other businesses, causing many employees to lose their jobs. 

8. Further, we are concerned that Onni's development plans will affect the access and parking 
for all of the businesses at this location. We would like to know jf Onni's construction plans 
will impede access to our property and effectively kill our business. 

9. Finally, the proposed re-zoning. would force all of the businesses into a legal limbo because 
they would be non-conforming w ith the proposed zoning, a status that no business owner 
would want. Non-conforming status could impact our ability to refurbish, renovate and after 
our operations at this location, which would most certainly occur over the remaining 20 year 
term of our lease. 
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10. Tim Hortons and our Franchisee are positive contributors to the Richmond community. We 
operate several locations in Richmond that have employed hundreds of loca! residents over 
the years. 

11 . We have been, and continue to be, a strong supporter of numerous local charities and 
organizations thru the Timbits Minor Sports Program, the Tim Hortons Community Cruiser, 
and the Tim Horton Children's Foundation. This could all be lost if Onni re·zoning application 
were to proceed as planned. 

12. We would respectfully request that if the City wishes to proceed with the re·zoning, that the 
City require as a condition of the re·zoning that Onnl: 

(a) include some commercial or retail space in the development Ihat could accommodate 
our operations; and 

(0) setlle any lease issue with Tim Hortons and the other businesses at this location. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Yours very truly. 

THE TDl GROUP CORP. 

William Cao 
legal Counsel 
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Send a Submiss ion Onl ine (response #646) Page 1 of 1 

To Public Hearing , 
Oat.: Hf."1 n l :;?D IV 

MayorandCouncillors Item' I.f _ u, 

From: City of Richmond Website [webgraphics@richmond.ca] 
Re: ~iaw f<ll . 

Sent: May 16, 2012 7:45 PM 

To: MayorandCounciliors 

Subject: Send a Submissi?n Online (response #646) 

Categories: 12-8060-20-8886 - RZ 12-596719-

Send a Submission Online (response #646) 

Survey Information 

Scbedule 6 to the Minutes of 
the Council Meeting for 
Public Hearings held on 
Tuesday, May 22, 2012. 

- --- --
Site: City Website . 

Page Title: Send a Submission Online 
. 

URL: http://cms.richmond.ca/Pa9e1793.aspx 

Submission Time/Date: 5/16/20127:48:26 PM _. ______ . ____ ._L-_ . ._-------_._--
Survey Response _._----_. - , 

Your Name: Je·remy Sze I 

Your Address: Unit 9, 7071 Bridge Street, Richmond, BC 

Subject Property Address OR 
Bylaw 8886 (RZ 12-596719) 

Bylaw Number: 

I 1 strongly oppose the rezoning of the 
subjected property as such rezoning would 
brign extreme disturbance to my current · 
townhouse: 1. By cutting down so many trees 
in this property, the surrounding area is less 
"green". The area is too crowded, and we 
need a good balance of residential area and 
eco-friendly surrounding. 2. 1 have a newborn 
baby, such rezoning and development would i 
create too many dust and nOise which might 

Comments: affect my baby's health. 3. My backyard 
currently has an unobstructed view of a\1 the 

I trees. With the rezoning, I not only lose sight I 

of all the trees but also my privacy since the I . . 
rezoning Will bring l10lsy neighbours 
overseeing my backyard. Based on my 
reasons above, such rezoning and 
development will significant affect my family's 
quality of life and significant reduce my 
property value. Therefore, I strongly oppose 
rezoning and developing the subjected 
property. I 

.J 

I '""If') 1 

MAY 1 7 2012 
(l !LJ 
?t RECEIVED r/<.f;? 

C(E'RK'S 0 
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Send a Submission Online (response #648) 

MayorandCouncillors 

From: City of Richmond Website [webgraphics@richmond.ca] 

Sent: May 17, 2012 1:47 PM 

To. MayorandCouncll!ors 

Subject: Send a Submission Online (response #648) 

Categories: 12-8060-20-8886 - RZ 12-596719-

Send it Submission Online (response #648) 

Survey Information 
- - . 

Site: City Website 

Page Title: Send a Submission Online 
-

URL: http://cms.richmond.ca/Page1 793. aspx 

Submission Time/Date: 5/17/20121:51:02 PM __ L.. __ 

Survey Response 

Your Name: Ting 

Your Address: 7071 Bridge street, richmond, bc 

Subject Property Address OR 
Bylaw 8886 (RZ 12-596719) Bylaw Number: 

Page I of I 

To Public Hearing 
Date: M~ '2-.. :t· I -z...or"V 
J'omJ :t 
Re: @Uia.J ~'2~ie , 

Schedule 7 to the Minutes of 
the Council Meeting for 
Public Hearings held on 

, Tuesday, May 22, 2012. 

. 

) 

I do not want this area to be rezoned from 2 
I houses to 8 houses as this will create a Jot .of 

traffic congestion. Also , why do we need to 
Comments: cut down so many trees to develop houses 

when there's other empty lot in Richmond? It 
is unfair to nearby residents for such rezoning 
to occur. 

? ? 
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Send a Submission.Online (response #655) Page I of I 

To Public Hearing 
MayorandCouncillors O.t.: H1:C ),2- 170 1-v 

-Item #. 
From: City of Richmond Website [webgraphics@richmond.ca] Re: ~!a,W \S\l'3 1,. 
Sent: May 21 , 2012 11:44 PM 

To: MayorandCouncillors 

Subject : Send a Submission On!ine (response #655) 

Categories: 12-8060-20-8886 - RZ 12-596719-

Send a Submission Online (response #655) 

Survey Information 

Schedule 8 to the Minutes of 
the . Council Meeting fo,' 
Public Hearings held on 

, Tuesday, May 22, 2012. 

_________ 0 ___ 

- I Site: City Website 

Page Title: Send a Submission Online 
i"-------

URL: http://cms.richmond.ca/Page1793.aspx ,L Submiss i~ime/Date: 5/21/201211:47:52 PM _. 

Survey Response 
Your Name: --lwei Gan '-~-.'- . _' ___ =1 
Y~~d~~~-----' ! #8-7071 Bridge Street, Richmond, Be I 

-- 1 
Subject Property AddressOR Zoning Amendment Bylaw 8886 (RZ 12, I 
Bylaw Number: 596719) 

I strongly oppose on zoning and developing 
this subject property: the rezoning will cut 
down over 40 trees, which is very bad to the 
environment. The surrounding area will be 
more crowed and less green. We need a 
good balance of residential area and Eco 
friendly surrounding, . 

NA Y2 2 2012 ' 
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SUSTAINABLE REGION INITIATIVE , • • TURNING IDEAS INTO ACTION 

Board in Brief 
For Metro Vancouver meetings on Friday, May 25, 2012. 

Please note these are not the official minutes. Board in Brief is an informal summary. Material 
relating to any of the following items is available on request from Metro Vancouver. 

For more information, please contact either: 
Bill Morrell, 604-451-6107, BiII.Morreff@metrovancouver,om or 
Glenn Bohn, 604-451-6697, Glenn.Bohn@metrovancouver.oro 

Greater Vancouver Regional District 

Restoration of the Joint Emergency Preparedness Program Approved 

The Board requested that the Federation of Canadian Municipalities pass an emergency 
resolution to restore emergency preparedness funding . 

The proposed resolution states: 

Whereas, JEPP supports cooperation among the federal and provincial/territorial governments to 
respond to emergencies of all types with a uniform standard of response; 

And whereas funding through JEPP assists with projects aimed at enhancing national 
emergency response capability; 

And whereas the ultimate outcome of JEPP to have a national emergency preparedness 
capacity enhanced to meet emergencies of all types has not yet been met; 

Therefore, be it resolved that the Federation of Canadian Municipalities urge the Government of 
Canada to fully restore annual JEPP funding to 2009 levels for emergency preparedness and to 
ensure there is continued, ongoing , effective JEPP funding to bujild capacity and capability to 
meet emergencies of all types in Canada. 

Experience the Fraser: Advancing Implementation Approved 

Experience the Fraser is a project to connect communities, parks, natural features, historic and 
cultural sites and other points of interest along the Lower Fraser River by means of 550 
kilometres of trails and via the river itself. The Board accepted a $500,000 provincial government 
grant for the project Experience the Fraser project and increased the 2012 contribution to the 
Parks basic facilities capital reserve by 5500,000 . 

............ metro 
vancouver www.metrovancouver org 
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Regional Electric Vehic le Charging Infrastructure Project Approved 

On March 31 , 2012, the Province of B.C. announced a $2 .74-million Community Charging 
Infrastructure Fund that will see 570 electric vehicle (EV) charging stations in publicly accessible 
locations across B.C. These funds will be allocated in the form of grants of up to 75% of the cost 
of equipment and labour to a maximum of $4,000 per installation. 

The Board directed staff to apply for all pertinent Provincial grant opportunities that support the 
deployment of electric vehicles in our region. 

legislative and Jurisdictional Barriers to Utility Servicing Agreements 
with Non-Treaty First Nations 

Approved 

The Board received a report, dated April 25, 2012 and titled ~Legislative and Jurisdictional 
Barriers to Utility Servicing Agreements with Non-Treaty First Nations. ~ It directed staff to : 
convey the report to the federal Minister of Aboriginal Affairs and Northern Development Canada 
and to the provincial Minister of Aboriginal Relations and Reconciliation for consideration ; 
request the federal Minister of Aborig inal Affairs and Northern Development Canada and the 
provincial Minister of Aboriginal Relations and Reconciliation enter into discussions with the 
Metro Vancouver Board on the resolution of issues identified in the report so as to enable local 
governments to enter into utility servicing agreements with non-treaty First Nations. The Board 
will develop a process to engage non-treaty First Nations on how to jointly address legislative 
and jurisdictional barriers to utility servicing agreements. 

2012 Agriculture Awareness Grant Recommendations Approved 

The Board approved agricultural awareness grants to the following nonprofit organizations: 
1) BC Agriculture in the Classroom Foundation for the ~Take a Bite of BC~ project for the 
amount of $7,500; 
2) BC Chicken Grower's Association for the "Poultry in Motion Educational Mini Barn" project for 
the amount of $6,000; 
3) Delta Farmland & Wildlife Trust for the "Day at the Farm" event for the amount of $3,000; 
4) Faculty of Education at UBC for the ~Cu ltivating Learning Networkn for the amount of $5,000; 
5) Growing Chefs for the "Classroom Gardening Program- for the amount of $4,000; 
6) Langley Environmental Partners Society for the Seed to Plate: Community Action for a 
Sustainable Food System- project for the amount of $3,500; 
7) Maple Ridge Pit! Meadows Agricultural Association for the ~ Backyard Farming- display at 
County Fest for the amount of $1 ,500; 
6) North Shore Neighbourhood House for the "Loute! Farmn project for the amount of $4,500. 

2011 General Local Election: Electoral Area A - Public Notice of Failure 
to File a Disclosure Statement 

Received 
Approved 

Mr Colin Desjarlais, a candidate for the office of Director of Electoral Area A for the 201 1 
general local election, did not file disclosure statements before the end of the late filing 
period. Mr. Desjarlais is therefore disqualified from being nominated for, elected to or hold ing 
office on a local govemment until after the next general local election. A Metro Vancouver report 
about the failure to file disclosure statements will be sent to the B.C. Inspector of Municipalities. 

Page 2 of5 
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Village of Anmore Regional Growth Strategy Amendment - Initial 
Readings 

Approved 

The Village of Anmore and School District 43 have had longstanding plans to build a middle 
school at the southern boundary of Anmore, adjacent to the urban area of Port Moody. The 
school would serve both Anmore and Port Moody students. The GVS&DD Board has 
previously indicated support for providing sewer services to the school provided that certain 
conditions were met. 

The Board gave first and second reading to Greater Vancouver Regional District Regional 
Growth Strategy Amendment Bylaw No. 1168,2012. The bylaw will go to a public hearing held 
by the following Board members: Director Derek Corrigan, Director Harold Steves, Director Mike 
Clay, Director Jack Froese, Director Linda Hepner, Director Andrea Reimer. 

Greater Vancouver Water District 

Water Supply and Water Consumption Update for Summer 2012 Received 

The existing snow pack and lake levels should be sufficient to ensure adequate water supply for 
the 2012 summer season . Since 1993, the regional Water Shortage Response Plan has been 
used to manage lawn sprinkling and other outdoor water use during the June 1 to September 30 
period of every year. 

In the event of an extreme drought or unusually high demand for water, Metro Vancouver has 
the ability to increase its use of the Coquitlam source or, if necessary, implement additional 
demand management measures. 

Seymour·Capilano Filtration Project - Project Status Received 

Tunnel and shaft excavation for both tunnels in the Twin Tunnels Project is complete. 
Installation of the first phase of shotcrete lining in the central section of the tunnels is complete. 
The remaining shotcrete work will resume in mid-2012 following installation of the steel liner at 
the Capitano end of the tunnels. 

Delivery of steel liner pipe from the temporary storage area on Annacis Island continues. 
Installation and grouting of steel liner at the base of the Capitano shafts and at the Capilano end 
of the treated water tunnel are underway. Final preparations for liner installation in the raw water 
tunnel continue. 

Overall completion is 81 %. Projected substantial completion is end of 2013. The projected final 
cost for the Seymour-Capilano Filtration Project, including the Twin Tunnels project, is 
approximately $814 million. 

Page 3 of 5 
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Integrated Utility Management Advisory Committee Terms of Reference Approved 

The Board approved the creation of a new Integrated Utility Management Advisory Committee 
(IUMAC), a high level advisory committee established to monitor and provide advice to Metro 
Vancouver on the implementation of the Drinking Water Management Plan, the Integrated 
Liquid Waste and Resource Management Plan, and the Integrated Solid Waste and Resource 
Management Plan. 

The committee will includesmembers representing Metro Vancouver, its member municipalities, 
senior government agencies, technical and professional interests, public and non-government 
interests, and business interests. 

Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District 

Integrated Utili ty Management Advisory Committee Terms of Reference Approved 

The Board approved the creation of a new Integrated Utility Management Advisory Committee 
(IUMAC), a high level advisory committee established to monitor and provide advice to Metro 
Vancouver on the implementation of the Drinking Water Management Plan, the Integrated 
Liquid Waste and Resource Management Plan. and the Integrated Solid Waste and Resource 
Management Plan. 

The committee will includesmembers representing Metro Vancouver, its member municipalities, 
senior government agencies, technical and professional interests, public and non-government 
interests, and business interests. 

Lions Gate and lana Is land Secondary Wastewater Treatment Plants -
Project Update 

Approved 

The Board received an update on the work now underway to complete the project definition 
phases for the lions Gate and lona Island secondary wastewater treatment plant upgrades. The 
expect cost for the lions Gate upgrade is $400 million. The expected cost for the lona Island 
upgrade is $1 billion. 

The Board also directed staff to submit an application for the lions Gate Secondary Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Project Definition Phase to the Union of BC Municipalities' Gas Tax Agreement 
Innovations Fund. 

P3 Canada Application for New Waste-ta-Energy Capacity Approved 

The P3 Canada Fund is a merit-based federal program that co-funds public infrastructure 
projects best delivered via a public-private partnership or P3. The Board directed staff to submit 
an application to the P3 Canada Fund to help fund new Waste-to-Energy capacity for Metro 
Vancouver. 

Page4of5 
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Packaging and Printed Paper - Multi-Material Be Update Approved 

In May 201 1. the Province of B.C. added packaging and printed paper to its recycling regulation, 
creating an obligation for industry to design and implement an Extended Producer 
Responsibility program. An industry agency - Multi-Material BC - was created to manage the 
development and implementation of the new EPR program. 

The Board approved a resolution that requests that the Chair send a letter to Multi-Material BC 
and the Provincial Minister of Environment highlighting the need to address key local 
government concerns in the ongoing planning process for the Pack.aging and Printed Paper 
Extended Producer Responsibility Program prior to submission of the draft plan to the Minister 
of Environment. 

Page 5 of 5 
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Date: 

Place: 

Present : 

City of 
Richmond 

Finance Committee 

Monday, June 4, 2012 

Anderson Room 
Richmond City Hall 

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie, Chair 
Counci llor Chak Au 
Councillor Linda Barnes 
Councillor Derek Dang 
Councillor Evelina Halsey-Brandt 
Councillor Ken Johnston 
Councillor Bill McNulty 
Councillor Linda McPhail 
Councillor Harold Steves 

Minutes 

Call to Order: The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:04 p.m. 

3545104 

MINUTES 

It was moved and seconded 
Tlrat tire ",inutes o/the meeting of the FilJalJce Committee Ireld 0 11 Monday, 
May 7, 2012, be adopted as circulated. 

CARRIED 

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

l. RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION - 2011 AUDITED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(File Ref. No. OI ·OO60·20·RQVAI12012·Vo! 01) (REDMS No. 352671]) 

In answer to questions from Committee, Andrew Nazareth, General Manager, 
Business and Financial Services, and John Mills, General Manager, 
Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation, provided the following information: 
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Finance Committee 
Monday, June 4, 2012 

• the Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation has an accwnulated surplus of 
approximately 2.2 million dollars, with 1.7 million allocated as a capital 
reserve; 

• there were 43 fu ll-time employees at the end of the fiscal year, which has 
now increased to 49 full-time employees; 

• the City will continue to receive funding from the 2010 Games Operating 
Trust Fund (GOT) as long as the City continues to comply with the 
obligations set by the Trust; 

• GOT is an endowment fund which is maintained by the 2010 Games 
Operating Trust Society; and 

• an annual report on GOT is provided to the City following the 2010 
Games Operating Trust Society's Annual General Meeting. 

Staff were requested to provide copies of the 2010 Games Operating Trust 
Fund Annual Report to Council when it is available. 

It was moved and seconded 
Tlrat tlte report 0 11 tlte 2011 A udited Fimmcial Statements for tire Ricltmolld 
Olympic Oval Corporatioll from lite COil troller 0/ tlte Riclrmond Olympic 
Oval Corporatioll be received/or ill formation. 

CARRIED 

2. 2011 ANNUAL REPORT AND 2011 ANNUAL REPORT 
IDGHLIGHTS 
(File Ref. No.: ) (REDMS No. 352 1666) 

Ted Townsend, Senior Manager, Corporate Communications, accompanied 
by Jerry Chong, Director. Finance, drew attention to the following two 
changes that have been made to the Annual Report since last year: (i) the 
short version of the report was further reduced in size, and new reader 
friendly charts were introduced; and (ii) in the interest of accountability and 
transparency, a four page wrap will be developed and placed in the Richmond 
Review. 

It was moved and seconded 
Tltat tfle attached City 0/ Ricll1llOml 201 J Allllual Report aud tlte 2011 
Annual Report - Highlights be approved. 

3. 2011 ANNUAL DEVELOPMENT COST CHARGES 
(File Ref. No. 03-0900-01120 12-Vol 01) (REDMS No. 3516552) 

CARRIED 

In answer to questions, Jerry Chong, Director. Finance, advised that: (i) the 
Annual Development Cost Charges (DCC) report is a local government 
requirement; (ii) DCCs are reviewed every three to four years, and that the 
last review and increase of DCCs took place in 2009; and (i ii) an assessment 
ofDCCs will take place at the end of2012. 

2. 
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Finance Committee 
Monday, June 4, 2012 

It was moved and seconded 
Tlrat the staff report titled 2011 A mmal Developmellt Cost Charges (elated 
April 27, 2012 from lite Director, Finance) be received/or in/ormatioll. 

CARRIED 

4. REVENUE ANTICIPATION BORROWING (2012) BYLAW NO. 8896 
(File Ref. No.: 03-0900-011201 I-Vol 01) (REm .. 1S No. 3515105) 

Jerry Chong, Director, Finance, advised that Bylaw No. 8896 addressed 
"housekeeping" matters, and that in the event the City needs to draw upon its 
lines of credit, the City would need prior approval via this bylaw. 

It was moved and seconded 
Tltat Revenue Allticipation Borrowing (2012) Bylaw No. 8896 be introduced 
allli give" first, second, alld third readillgs. 

5. 2011 SURPLUS APPROPIUATION 
(File Ref. No. : ) (REDMS No. 3S 18825) 

CARRIED 

Andrew Nazareth, Business and Financial Services, j oined by Jerry Chong, 
Director, Finance, provided an overview of the process related to the proposed 
2011 Surplus Appropriation, advising that over 60 submissions had been 
reviewed by the The Administrators Group (TAG) Cost Control Sub­
Committee. The submissions were forwarded to the Corporate Directors 
Group to be prioritized, prior to TAGs final review. 

A discussion then ensued about: 

• options for the funds that have been proposed for Item No. 12 - 2013 
Capital Program. It was noted that expenditure of any funds allocated to 
Item No. 12 would require further approval from Council, and that 
Council may access funds proposed for rtem No. 12 for alternative uses if 
required; 

• costs related to labour, and how the TAG Cost Control Sub-Committee 
has recommended that labour costs and requests for positions become a 
part of the budget process rather than the surplus appropriation process; 

• Item No. 16 - Consultant Fees for Policy Development. It was noted that 
this item was not recommended at thi s time as it may also receive 
provincial funding; 

• a request from the Child Care Development Committee for a three year 
Chi ld Care Coordinator position. Jt was noted that the Committee had 
submitted a request last year, and that there was an understanding that the 
request would be addressed during the 2011 Surplus Appropriation 
process. Staff advised that the request had been deferred to the 2013 
budget process, as it is a staff expenditure; 

3. 
CNCL - 41



Finance Committee 
Monday, June 4, 2012 

• the feasibility of replenishing the Major Events Provision Fund (Item No. 
13); 

• the feasibility of providing seed funding for Item No. IS - Mobile 
Community Safety Education Unit, and Item No. 18 - Salmon Row 
2013. It was noted that sponsorship funding is being investigated for 
both items, and if achieved, sponsorship funding would be used to reduce 
the amount requested from the City; 

• the feasibility of re-allocating funds from Item No. 12 - 2013 Capi tal 
Program to other items; and 

• the need to place additional funds in reserves. 

It was moved and seconded 
T"al the December 31, 2011 surplus 0/ $4.556 million be appropriated as 
olltlille,[ ill tire staff report titled 2011 Surplus Appropriatioll (dated April 
26, 2012 from lite General Mallager, Busilless and Financial Services). 

The question on the motion was not called as the following amendment was 
introduced: 

It was moved and seconded 
That $50,000 be taken from Item No. 12 - 2013 Capital Program, for 
flluding of a olle year temporary part-time POSitiOIl of a Child Care 
Coordinator. 

CARRIED 

Staff were directed to provide further infonnation on the Child Care 
Coordinator position via memo. 

The question on the motion was not called as the fo llowing amendment was 
introduced: 

It was moved and seconded 
rhal $167,500 be takellfrom Item No. 12 - 2013 Capital Program, alld 

(1) $67,500 be appropriated to Item No. 15 - Mobile Commullity Safety 
Elilicatioll Uuit, as seedfimdillg; alld 

(2) $/00,000 be appropriated to Item No. 18 - Salmoll Row 2013, as seed 
fimdb'g. 

CARlUED 

4. 
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Finance Committee 
Monday, June 4, 2012 

The question on the motion was not called as the fo llowing amendment was 
introduced: 

It was moved and seconded 
Tltat $500,000 be take" from Item No. 12 - 2013 Capital Program, aml 
placed illio reserves. 

The question on the amendment motion was not called as a sub-amendment 
was introduced: 

It was moved and seconded 
That lite $500,000 for reserves be placed specifically illto ti,e Capital 
Buildillg alld In/rastructure Reserve. 

CARRIED 

The question on the amendment motion, which now reads as: 

"Tlrat $500,000 be taken from Item No. 12 - 2013 Capital Program, alld 
placed ;lIto Capital Buildiug alld Illfrastructure Reserve. 'J 

was then called, and it was CARRIED with Cllrs. McNulty and Steves 
opposed. 

The question on the motion was not called as the following amendment was 
introduced: 

It was moved and seconded 
Tlrat 5125,000 be taken from Item No. 12 - 2013 Capital Program, and 
placed ill tir e Major Events Provision Fllml. 

CARRIED 
OPPOSED: Cllrs. Johnston 

McNulty 

The question on the main motion as amended, which now reads as: 

"Tltat lite December 31, 2011 surplus 0/54.556 million be appropriated as 
ollttilled in tlte staff report titled 2011 Surpltls Appropriation (dated April 
26, 2012/rom tire General Mallager, Business ami Fillllllciai Services) with 
tlte/ollowing amendments: 

(1) Tlrat 550,000 be taken/rom Item No. 12 - 2013 Capital Program,/or 
fimdillg 0/ a Olle year temporary part-time position 0/ a Clrild Care 
Coordillator; 

(2) Tltat 5167,500 be takel1 from Item No. 12 - 2013 Capital Program, 
ami 

(a) 567,500 be appropriated to Item No. 15 - Mobile Community 
Safety Edllcation Ullit, as seed/lllltiillg,· and 

(b) 5100,000 be appropriated to Item No. 18 - Salmol1 Row 2013, as 
seed/unding; 

5. 
CNCL - 43



Finance Committee 
Monday, June 4, 2012 

(3) TIIat $500,000 be taken frolll Itelll No. 12 - 2013 Capital Progralll, 
{Illd placed illto Capilal Buildiug allli Illfrastructure R eserve; and 

(4) That $125,000 be taken from Item No. 12 - 2013 Capital Program, 
lind placed ill lite Major Events Provision FUlld.'J 

ADJOURNMENT 

It was moved and seconded 

CARRIED 
OPPOSED: Cllrs. Johnston 

McNulty 

Thai 'lie meeting adjollTll (5:16 p.m.). 

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie 
Chair 

CARRIED 

Certified a true and correct copy of the 
Minutes of the meeting of the Finance 
Committee of the Council of the City of 
Richmond held on Monday, June 4, 2012. 

Shanan Dhaliwal 
Executive Assistant 
City Clerk's Office 
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Date: 

Place: 

Present: 

City of 
Richmond 

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee 

Tuesday, May 29, 2012 

Anderson Room 
Richmond City Hall 

Councillor Harold Steves, Chair 
Councillor Ken Johnston, Vice-Chair 
Councillor Linda Barnes 
Councillor Evelina Halsey-Brandt 
Councillor Bill McNulty 

Minutes 

Also Present: Councillor Chak Au 

Call to Order: 

Councillor Linda McPhail 

The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:06 p.m. 

MINUTES 

It was moved and seconded 
Tlrat the minutes of the meetings of the Parks, Recreatioll (lnd Cultural 
Services Committee heM 0 11 Wednesday, December 14, 2011 and Tllesday, 
March 27, 2012, be adopted as circulated. 

CARRIED 

NEXT COMMITTEE MEETING DATE 

Tuesday, June 26, 2012 (tentative date) at 4:00 p.m. in the Anderson Room 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

Suzanne Haines, General Manager, Gateway Theatre, introduced Jovanni Sy, 
Gateway Theatre's new Artistic Director. Mr. Sy provided background 
infonnation regarding his work in the theatre industry and stated that he was 
pleased to join Gateway Theatre. 
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Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee 
Tuesday, May 29, 2012 

I. BRITANNIA HERITAGE SIlll'Y ARD NATIONAL m STORIC SITE 
(File Rer. No.) (REDMS No. 3526790) 

It was moved and seconded 
(1) That the Terms of Reference fo r a Bri/allllia Heritage Shipyard 

Building Committee, as outlined ill tlte report dalell May 3, 2012 f rom 
tire Director, Arts, Culture alld Heritage Services, be endorsed; amI 

(2) Thai a Britallll ia Heritage Slripyard Buildillg Committee he 
established as per fir e Terms of R eference. 

The question on the motion was not called as di scussion ensued and 
Committee suggested that Councillor Bill McNulty and Councillor Harold 
Steves be appointed to the Britarmia Heritage Shipyard Building Committee. 

Discussion further ensued regarding when works would begin on the 
remaining buildings and in reply to a query from Committee, Bryan Klassen, 
Britannia Site Supervisor, advised that staff anticipate commencing budgeted 
works in Fall 2012. 

The question on the main motion, which now reads as: 

(1) Tlrat tire Terms of Referellce fo r a Britannia Heritage Slripyartl 
Building Committee, as outlined ill tlte report dated May 3, 2012 from 
tire Director, Arts, Culture ami lIeritage Services, be endorsed,· 

(2) r hat a BritOllllia Heritage Shipyard Bui/dilrg Committee be 
established as per tile Terms of R eferellce; and 

(3) Tlrat Cormcillor Bill McNulty alld Councillor Harold S teves be 
appointed to tire Brita""ia Heritage Shipyard Buildillg Committee. 

was then called and it was CARRIED. 

2. STEVESTON INTERURBAN TRAM BUlLDTNG PUBLIC ART 
PROJECT 
(File Ref. No. 11-7000-09-20-134) (REDMS No. 3527761) 

Eric Fiss, Public Art Planner, accompanied by artist Mia Weinberg. Mr. Fiss 
spoke of the public art decision-making process for a City initiated public art 
project. He noted that as per the administrative procedures for artist selection, 
a selection panel reviewed the artist qualification of fifteen artists who 
responded to the open Call to Arti sts. The panel unanimously recommended 
artist Mia Weinberg for the proposed public art project. Mr. Fiss further 
commented that the arti st has collaborated with the tram building public art 
project team to develop the proposed publ ic art concept design. 
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Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee 
Tuesday, May 29, 2012 

Jim Kojima, 7611 Moffatt Road, President of the Steveston Community 
Society. cited concerns related to the proposed concept design consultation 
process. He stated that the Society's representative on the selection panel had 
not seen the final concept proposed and was not aware that the proposed 
concept was being presented to Committee. 

In reply to the concerns cited, Mr. Fiss clarified that the selection panel's role 
was to recommend an artist. As this is a civic public art project, the proposed 
project does not include community consultation. Also, Mr. Fiss stated that 
information regarding the proposed concept and its presentation to Committee 
was discussed at subsequent meetings with the public art project team, 
attended by the representative from the Steveston Community Society. 

Discussion ensued and the following Committee comments were noted: 

• the proposed concept design should be referred back to staff for 
adequate consultation with community stakeholders; 

• the proposed concept design itself is not a concern; and 

• staff have followed proper procedures in relation to the proposed public 
art project. 

Discussion further ensued and Mr. Fiss clarified the process for civic public 
art projects and in reply to queries from Committee advised that (i) the 
selection panel is an arms length group appointed through the Public Art 
Advisory Conunittee to review artist submissions; (ii) once the panel has 
recommended an artist, the panel is dismissed; (iii) a Steveston Community 
Society representative also sits on the tram public art project team; and (iv) 
once a concept design is approved by Council, the artist continues to refine the 
concept in consultation with the public art project team and various community 
stakeholders. 

Artist Mia Weinberg commented on her meetings with the various 
stakeholders and noted that the proposed concept design is not substantially 
different than what was previously discussed with the tram public art project 
team. 

It was moved and seconded 
Tltat tlte cOtlcept proposal amI installatioll of tlte Stevestoll Interurball 
Tram Huildillg Public Art Project "Interurban Map" by artist Mia 
Weinberg, as presented ill the report from the Director, Arts, Culture & 
Heritage Services dated May 7, 2012, be endorsed. 

The question on the motion was not called as d iscussion ensued regarding the 
staff recommendation and it was noted that Committee is merely considering 
endorsement of the project concept. 

Staff was directed to address the Steveston Community Society'S concerns 
prior to the matter being presented to Council. 
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Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee 
Tuesday, May 29, 2012 

The question on the motion was then called and it was CARRIED with 
Council lor McNulty opposed. 

PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 

3. IUCRMOND CHILDREN'S CHARTER 
(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No. 3527945) 

Elizabeth Ayers, Manager, Community Recreation Services, introduced Helen 
Davidson, Community Coordinator, Riclunond Children First. 

In reply to a query from Committee, Ms. Ayers advised that the endorsement 
of the proposed Richmond Children's Charter would act as a symbolic gesture 
as it would further demonstrate the City's commitment to making Richmond 
the best place in North America to raise children and youth. 

Ms. Davidson noted that she would like to play a video of a group of 
Richmond children reading the Charter at a future Cowlcil meeting. Also, 
Ms. Davidson spoke of the various ways Richmond Children First engaged 
with Richmond children in an effort to identify what Richmond children 
value. She stated that throughout various projects, it was evident that 
Richmond children value the right to play and the right to learn. 

In reply to queries from Committee, Ms. Davidson advised that other local 
governments, such as the City of Kamloops, the City of Rcvelstoke, and the 
City of Powell River. are endorsing children charters specific to the values of 
the children in their respective communities. 

Discussion ensued and it was noted that the format of the Children's Charter 
is well done as the quotations from children provide context. 

it was moved and seconded 
(1) That the Richmolld Childrell First's "Ricl,molld Children's Charter, JJ 

as presellted ill the report dated May 3, 2012, from the Actiug 
Director, Recreatioll, be endorsed; and 

(2) That tlte video of Richmolld cltildren readillg tlte Richmond 
Childrell 's Charter be played at aiutllre Council meetillg. 

CARRIED 

4. MANAGER' S REPORT 

(i) Floatillg Net Sited 

Jane Femyhough, Director, Arts, Culture & Heritage, updated Committee on 
discussions with the owner of the floating net shed. Ms. Femyhough advised 
that the owner would like the City to purchase the net shed at a cost of 
$350,000; otherwise she has indicated that she will continue to look for a new 
site to situate it. 
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Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee 
Tuesday, May 29, 2012 

(ii) Parks Department Updates 

Mike Redpath, Senior Manager, Parks, provided an update on various Parks 
Department activities and the following infomlation was noted: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

there will be a public open house for the Terra Nova play environment 
on Wednesday, June 6th at Thompson Community Centre from 5:00 
p.m. to 8:30 p.m; 

the Thompson Youth Park is scheduled to open on Thursday, June 21 st 

at 7:00 p.m; 

staff are working with Metro Vancouver's Parks Committee on 
developing a Richmond parks application for mobile devices; 

the tall ship Kaisei has confirmed its appearance at the Ships to Shore 
Steveston 2012 event; 

staff have engaged a consultant for the detail design of the Railway 
Avenue Corridor; and 

• staff anticipate consulting with the Thompson Community Centre, 
West Richmond Community Centre and the Steveston Community 
Centres in regards to the development of the Railway Avenue Corridor. 

In reply to queries from Committee, Mr. Redpath advised that giant hogweed 
found along the Shell Road Trail would be removed immediately. Also he 
stated that the Richmond parks application for mobile devices will eventually 
also include bike trails. It was requested that Mr. Redpath provide members 
of Council with the MAXguide application for mobile devices. 

(iii) Ships to Shore Stevesloll 2012 

Serena Lusk, Manager, Parks Pro rams, stated that the Ships to Shore 
Steveston 2012 will be held June 29 to July 1,2012 at Imperial Landing and 
spoke of the various activities being offered during the event. 

(iv) Boat Moorage at Imperial Lallding 

Ms. Lusk commented on the City's pilot program to gauge interest and 
viability in transient boat moorage at Imperial Landing and noted that 
moorage is free for up to three hours. 

(v) Stevestoll Farmers Market 

Dave Semple, General Manager, Parks and Recreation, commented on staff 
discussions with representatives of the Steveston Fanners Market and the 
Steveston Hotel. 
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Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee 
Tuesday, May 29, 2012 

ADJOURNMENT 

1t was moved and seconded 
That tire meetillg adjollfll (5: 00 p.m.). 

CARRIED 

Certified a true and correct copy of the 
Minutes of the meeting of the Parks, 
Recreation & Cultural Services Committee 
of the Council of O,e City of Richmond held 
on Tuesday, May 29, 2012. 

Councillor Harold Steves 
Chair 

Ranich Berg 
Committee Clerk 
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City of 
Richmond Minutes 

Date: 

Place: 

Present: 

Also Present: 

Call to Order: 

Planning Committee 

Tuesday, June 5, 2012 

Anderson Room 
Richmond City Hall 

Councillor Bill McNulty, Chair 
Councillor Evelina Halsey-Brandt 
Councillor Chak Au 
Councillor Linda Barnes 
Councillor Harold Steves 

Councillor Linda McPhail 

The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 

MINUTES 

It was moved and seconded 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Plmmillg Committee held 0 11 

Wednesday, May 23,2012, be adopted liS circulated. 

CARRIED 

NEXT COMMITTEE MEETING DATE 

Tuesday, June 19, 2012, (tentative date) at 4:00 p.m. in the Anderson Room 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

1. RICHMOND ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON THE ENVIRONMENT 
(ACE): 2011 ANNUAL REPORT AND 2012 WORK PLAN 
(File Ref. No. OI·O IOO·20.ACEN I·O I) (REDMS No. 3527086) 

Terry Crowe, Manager, Policy Planning, provided background information 
and commented on the Advisory Committee on the Environment's (ACE) 
2012 Work Program. Mr. Crowe stated that ACE is considering publishing 
an infonnation brochure that would highlight its mandate and comment on 
what ACE does. 

I. 
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Planning Committee 
Tuesday, June 5, 2012 

Discussion ensued and Committee noted that a brochure is a good way to 
infonn the public of ACE's activities. 

Mr. Crowe noted that ACE anticipates being more involved in local events in 
an effort to increase their awareness within the community. In reply to a 
query from Committee, Me Crowe advised that staff would work with ACE 
to ensure that a brochure is developed in 2012. 

It was moved and seconded 
That: 

(1) The 2011 Richmolld Advisory Committee 0" Tile Environment 
(ACE) Annual Report he received,' alld 

(2) The 2012 Richmond Advisory Committee 0" The Environment 
(ACE) Work Plait he endorsed. 

RICHMOND COMMENTS: PROPOSED 
REGIONAL DISTRICT REGIONAL 
AMENDMENT BYLAW 1160, 2012 
(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No. 3534599) 

CARRIED 

GREATER VANCOUVER 
GROWTH STRATEGY 

Mr. Crowe provided background illfonnation. He stated that the proposed 
bylaw does not affec~ the City and enables that all Regional Growth Strategy 
Conservation and Recreation designated land anlendments be made by a Type 
2 Minor (A) amendment. 

It was moved and seconded 
Tltal, as per Ihe staff report titled: ((RiclmlOlld Comments: Proposed Greater 
Vancouver Regional District Regional Growt" Strategy Amendment Bylaw 
1160,2012", tire M etro Vancouver (Ml? Board he advised that tlte City of 
Ricltmond accepts tlte proposed Greater Vancouver Regional District 
Regional Growtlt Strategy Amendment Bylaw 1160, 2012. 

CARRIED 

3. HAMILTON AREA PLAl'l - FrRST P UBLIC SURVEY FINDINGS 
AND PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT OPTIONS 
(File Ref. No. 08-4045.20-14) (REDMS No. 3532954) 

Mr. Crowe provided background information and advised the following: 

• 

• 

• 

the first open house was held on March 13, 2012 and there was a good 
turnout of approximately 135 people; 

the public survey results indicate that the community wishes to see 
various community improvements such as a community safety station,. 
a library, more indoor recreational space, and improved walkways and 
trails; and 

the community has accepted the notion of additional density in the area 
as it could provide more community amenities. 
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Planning Committee 
Tuesday, June 5, 2012 

Mr. Crowe stated that staff anticipate holding a second open house in the near 
future that would present the three proposed general development options. 
Also, he notcd that another public survey would be available to seek 
additional information regarding the proposed three general development 
options. 

Discussion ensued and Committee was pleased with the City-Developer 
approach to the public consultation process. 

In reply to a query from Committee, Dana Westemlark, Oris Consulting Ltd., 
advised that a community safety station is a top priority to the community as 
there is currently only one RCMP member designated to the area. Mr. 
Westemlark stated that many members of the community cited concerns with 
the response time to break and enter calls as a second officer must first be 
dispatched from the main detachment prior to the RCMP attending. Also, he 
commented that the community wishes to be more involved with policing. 

Discussion ensued regarding the community's desire to be more involved in 
policing and in reply to a query from Committee, Cathryn Volkering Carlile, 
General Manager - Community Services, advised that Fire Hall No.5 has a 
community use space. She noted that use of the space is coordinated through 
the Fire Department. Committee requested that this matter be discussed at the 
June 12,2012 Community Safety Committee meeting. 

In reply to a query from Committee, Mr. Westennark advised that a 
consultant has been retained to faci litate a retail market analysis, which would 
identify what types of businesses may be supported based on the level of 
density. Also, he commented on the different shopping experience provided 
in a neighbourhood strip mall as oppose to that ofa big retailer. 

Discussion ensued regarding what can be expected in the Queensborough 
area. Mr. Crowe advised that he would provide Cmmci! with a memorandmn 
addressing the Queensborough Community Plan and any proposed facilities 
such as a library which may be used by Hamilton residents. 

Discussion further ensued regarding the Queensborough area and it was noted 
that cost-sharing opportunities for certain amenities might exist between the 
City of New Westminster. 

It was moved and seconded 
That stal/proceed with Plrase 2 of the Hamilloll A rea Plan Update witlr tire 
tlrree proposed development options inc/udell ill this report dated May 23, 
2012 from tire Acting General Manager of Plallning amI Development. 

CARRIED 

4. MANAGER'S REPORT 

None. 
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Planning Committee 
Tuesday, June 5, 2012 

ADJOURNMENT 

[t was moved and seconded 
Thtll lite meeting adjoum (4:35 p.m.). 

CARRIED 

Certified a true and correct copy of the 
Minutes of the meeting of the PlalU1ing 
Committee of the Counci l of the City of 
Richmond held on Tuesday, June 5,2012. 

Councillor Bill McNulty 
Chair 

Hanieh Berg 
Committee Clerk 

4. 
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Andrew Nazareth 

Date : May 1, 2012 

File: 
General Manager, Business and Financial 
Services 

Re: 2011 Annual Report and 2011 Annual Report - Highlights 

Staff Recommendation 

That the attached City of Richmond 2011 Annual Report and the 20 II Annual Report­
Highlights be approved. 
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(4095) 
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May 18, 2011 - 2 -

Staff Report 

Origin 

Pursuant to Section 98 of the Community Charter, before June 30 in each year, a Council must 

a) Prepare an annual report 

b) Make the report available for public inspection 

c) Make the report avai lable for public inspection at a Councilor other public meeting 

Analysis 

The format of the City of Richmond ' s 201! Annual Report follows the formats which were 
successfull y adopted the prev ious years as two versions have been prepared. 

The first version is the comprehensive annual report (An nual Report) which meets all legislati ve 
requirements. This version will be made publicly available through the City ' s website and printed 
onl y on an except ion basis. The 2011 Annual Repan inc ludes the City' s audited consolidated 
financial statements, a statement of the City's corporate objectives and success indicators, as wel[ as 
a listing of permissive exemptions as required under the Community Charter for British Columbia's 
loca[ governments. In addition to the statutorily required information , the 2011 Annua[ Report 
provides information conce rnin g events that occurred during the year, a summary of the City ' S 
awards and achievements, as well as relevant statisti cal data. 

The second version is the popular financial report, titled 2011 An nual Report - Highl ights . It has 
been prepared for the purpose of in forming the public about the City of Richmond , its services, 
highlights from 2011 and its finan cial cond ition . Copies of this simplified version will be mailed out 
and made availab le for the general public in hard copy at Richmond City Ha1[ , Front of House and on 
our website. A version of this report will also be adapted as a four-page newspaper wrap to be 
published in the local newspaper in order to reach a broader audience and further enhance the City ' s 
accountabi lity and transparency. 

Both reports were prepared ent irely in-house by the City of Richmond ' s Finance Div ision and 
Communication Section with design , production and printing by the Prod uction Centre. 

Financial Impact 

No ne. 

Conclusion 

That the City of Ri chmond 2011 Ann ual Report and the 20 II Annua[ Report - Highlights be 
approved. 

erry 
Director, Finance 
(4064) 

T t l Townsend 
Senior Manager, Corporate Communications 
(4399) 
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The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Canadian Award for Financial Reporting to the City of Richmond for its annual financial report for 
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010. The Canadian Award for Financial Reporting program 
was established to encourage municipal governments throughout Canada to publish high quality 
financial reports and to provide peer recognition and technical guidance for officials preparing 
these reports.

In order to be awarded a Canadian Award for Financial Reporting, a government unit must publish 
an easily readable and efficiently organized annual financial report, whose contents conform to 
the program standards. Such reports should go beyond the minimum requirements of generally 
accepted accounting principles and demonstrate an effort to clearly communicate the municipal 
government’s financial picture, enhance an understanding of financial reporting by municipal 
governments, and address user needs.

A Canadian Award for Financial Reporting is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our 
current report continues to conform to the Canadian Award for Financial Reporting program 
requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA.
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Message from the Mayor
2011 will be remembered as a year of significant growth for the City of 
Richmond. With our population approaching the 200,000 level during 
2011, your Council paid significant attention to managing this new 
growth, while ensuring we provided for the needs of our expanding city.

Much of the new growth in our city continues to be focused in the City 
Centre. Fuelled by the arrival of the Canada Line, construction of the 
Richmond Olympic Oval and our innovative City Centre Area Plan, we are 
on the cusp of an extraordinary new wave of development. Thus, a key 
focus in 2011 was the continued work to update our Official Community 
Plan (OCP). The new OCP Update, designed to guide growth through 
2041, is expected to be completed in 2012.

Combined with the previously-adopted City Centre Area Plan, the OCP Update will ensure 
Richmond continues to enjoy well-planned beneficial growth that supports local and regional 
objectives for sustainability. We are directing new growth primarily into a higher density City Centre 
which is supported by rapid transit. This allows us to protect our farmland, natural spaces and 
existing single family neighbourhoods. The OCP Update also provides a framework that ensures 
Richmond will have adequate land areas designated for continued commercial and industrial 
growth so we can maintain the robust and balanced economy that is our hallmark.

The City also continued a major push to update our civic infrastructure to meet the needs of our 
growing community. Major milestones during 2011 included:
• opening the Richmond Community Safety building, the new home for the Richmond RCMP;
• officially opening a $5 million expansion of Hamilton Community Centre;
• opening the new Nelson Road interchange on Highway 91, providing much-needed expanded 

traffic access to Richmond’s port lands;
• completing the award-winning No. 4 Road pump station, part of an ongoing major upgrade of 

Richmond’s critical drainage and flood protection network; and
• opening of the new Steveston Fire Hall, the third of five new halls being built in our ambitious 

community safety infrastructure renewal program.

The end of 2011 also marked the beginning of a new Council term. I look forward to working 
together with all members of Council over the next three years as we continue to strive to make 
Richmond an even better place to work, live, visit and do business.

I hope you enjoy reading this Annual Report. As always, I welcome the opportunity at any time to 
talk to you directly about our City, our vision, our values and the services we provide.

Malcolm Brodie
Mayor, City of Richmond
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Richmond City Council

As of December 5, 2011

Front row, left to right: 
Councillor Linda Barnes, Councillor 
Bill McNulty, Mayor Malcolm Brodie, 
Councillor Linda McPhail, Councillor 
Harold Steves

Back row, left to right:
Captain Dave Cullen, Richmond Fire-
Rescue (retired), Councillor Chak Au, 
Councillor Derek Dang, Councillor Evelina 
Halsey-Brandt, Councillor Ken Johnston, 
Constable Melissa Lui, Richmond RCMP

To December 4, 2011

Front row, left to right: 
Councillor Evelina Halsey-Brandt, 
Councillor Bill McNulty, Mayor Malcolm 
Brodie, Councillor Sue Halsey-Brandt, 
Councillor Derek Dang

Back row, left to right:
Captain Dave Cullen, Richmond Fire-
Rescue (retired), Councillor Harold Steves, 
Councillor Greg Halsey-Brandt, Councillor 
Linda Barnes, Councillor Ken Johnston, 
Corporal J. J. Stephan Peters, Richmond 
RCMP
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City of Richmond organizational chart
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General Manager, Richmond Olympic Oval................................. John Mills
Chief Librarian, Richmond Public Library ..................................... Greg Buss

Banker Auditors
Scotiabank KPMG
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Message from the Chief
Administrative Offi cer

I am pleased to present the City of Richmond’s 2011 Annual Report. This 
past year, the City made many important strides toward fulfilling our 
corporate vision, while keeping Richmond at the forefront of outstanding 
and innovative municipal governance and service delivery.

Our commitment to sustainability is a major guiding factor in everything we 
do. In 2011, we launched construction of the first phase of the Alexandra 
District Energy Utility (ADEU) in West Cambie. The City’s first district energy 
system, the ADEU will use thermal energy to ultimately provide heating and 
cooling for almost four million square feet of residential and commercial 
buildings, all free of reliance on fossil fuels. The utility will provide an 
economical alternative energy source for its users and will eventually 

generate net revenues for the City. The City has created a District Energy Office and is actively pursuing 
other opportunities to develop district energy utilities within Richmond.

Preserving the long-term financial health of the City is also critical. Richmond continues to enjoy some 
of the lowest property tax rates in the region, while offering its citizens a spectrum of civic services 
and amenities that are second to none. Our reserves are healthy and our small amount of outstanding 
debt will be retired within two years. In order to protect our strong financial standing, we introduced a 
freeze on discretionary spending and the filling of vacant staff positions in late 2011. We also brought 
renewed rigour and commitment to our spending approval process and business case analysis. These 
steps ensured the City ended the year with a healthy surplus and is in good financial position to meet 
any future challenges.

2011 also marked the first full year of operations for the Richmond Olympic Oval. As President and 
Chief Executive Officer for the Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation, I am pleased to report that all of 
our financial targets and program goals were met or exceeded. We successfully continued the post-
Games retrofit of the Oval, allowing us to further broaden the incredible array of programs and services 
it offers. And while the Oval continues to fulfil its objectives as an international centre of excellence for 
sport, recreation and culture, we were pleased that more than 80 per cent of the venue’s use was by 
Richmond residents.

Our commitment to continuous improvement prevails throughout our organization from our Council 
through staff to our partners and citizens. Richmond is always seeking new and better ways to manage 
our existing business and exploring new opportunities to raise the level of service provided to our 
community. As we begin a new Council term, we look forward to providing continued success backed 
up by sound management practises.

George Duncan
Chief Administrative Officer
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2011 awards and recognitions
The City of Richmond always strives for 
excellence as proven by the numerous civic 
awards recently received. They include:
• The Public Works Association of BC Project of 

the Year Award for the No. 4 Road Drainage 
Pump Station. This initiative increased the City’s 
flood protection capacity.

• The BC Government’s Child Care Award of 
Excellence for progressive child care initiatives.

• Recognition as an “International Eco-Safety 
Demonstrative City” at the First World Eco-
Safety Assembly (WESA), organized by a United 
Nations affiliate.

• The Outstanding Regional Partnership 
Award presented by the Canadian Diabetes 
Association to our Library.

• Two awards from the Government Financial 
Officers Association for our annual report.

• Richmond ranking amongst the Top 10 Small 
Cities for Infrastructure in North America by 
Foreign Direct Investment magazine.

• Two highly prestigious architectural awards 
for the Richmond Olympic Oval, presented by 
the International Association for Sports and 
Leisure Facilities (IAKS) in partnership with the 
International Olympic Committee (IOC) and 
the International Paralympic Committee (IPC). 
The awards honour exemplary design and 
function for sports facilities and accessibility. 
The Oval was the only one of 135 entries in 
this worldwide competition to have won both 
a Gold Medal and an Award of Distinction.
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Corporate Plan: Objectives and 
success indicators 2011 to 2013
The City of Richmond’s vision is to be the most 
appealing, livable and well-managed community 
in Canada. This ambitious goal is being achieved 
through Richmond’s mission of:
• Visionary leadership and responsible decision 

making
• Accountable and sustainable fiscal practice
• The development of a unique and beautiful city
• Product and service excellence and efficiency
• Community consultation

The Community Charter requires that all BC 
municipalities include a statement of their annual 
municipal objectives for the current and future 
years, along with measures to track success 
towards these objectives.

2011–2013 Success Indicators
1. Organizational Transformation
Be exceptional, no exceptions.

Embrace and respect a powerful set of values. 
Continue to be a vision-driven organization 
with a values-based, results-oriented culture 
that makes us leaders in municipal service and 
administration.

2. Serving the Customer
Providing excellence, value and choice.

Enable all citizens, businesses and organizations 
to access excellent information and services in 
a timely and user-friendly manner. Evaluate and 
make necessary changes and adjustments using 
appropriate processes and resources to optimize 
services to internal and external customers.

3. Our People
For success, developing our team is paramount.

Recognize individual strengths, talents, 
experiences and needs to make our team 
stronger. For the organization to thrive, our 
people must thrive.

4. Financial Management
Financial stewardship for today and the future.

Continue to manage financial assets in a manner 
that is responsive to the needs of today, while 
ensuring vitality, opportunity and sustainability 
beyond. Through conscientious planning and 
leadership, Richmond enjoys excellent services 
and service levels, and a robust economy.

5. Placemaking
Small city, big destination.

Combine a diverse set of places, activities and 
amenities that are interconnected, safe and 
convenient to access. Integrate rural and urban 
areas by demonstrating a respectful relationship 
between people, activities, nature and the built 
environment.

6. Sustainability
Our tomorrow depends on sustainable actions 
today.

Align and integrate work programs with a 
corporate sustainability agenda that is integral to 
achieving the City’s vision. Achieve goals in ways 
that are earth-friendly, economically prudent and 
community responsive.

7. Olympic Legacies
Our Olympic journey: The start of something 
great.

Continue to build upon our Olympic successes 
to create significant benefits in economic 
development, sports tourism and tourism.

8. Safe Community
Working together for a safe community.

Continue community education, engagement 
and service strategies for the City to be 
recognized as a safe, desirable community in 
which to live, visit and conduct business.
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2011 key accomplishments
• The new, post-disaster rated Richmond 

Community Safety Building was opened to 
serve as home for our RCMP detachment. By 
purchasing and retrofitting an existing building, 
Council was able to save millions of dollars over 
the cost of constructing a new building.

• The new Steveston Fire Hall, built to Leadership 
in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) 
Gold standards, was officially opened.

• Community safety was further enhanced 
through $2.93 million in Strategic Community 
Investment Funds and Traffic Fine Revenue 
Sharing Program funding from the Ministry of 
Community, Sport and Cultural Development. 
These funds were used to support RCMP 
Integrated Teams, additional RCMP members 
for the local detachment and the Restorative 
Justice Program, provided by Touchstone Family 
Services.

• Construction of the first phase of the 
Alexandra District Energy Utility (ADEU) in West 
Cambie was launched. The City’s first district 
energy system will provide an economical 
alternative energy source for a broad number 
of users and will eventually generate net 
revenues for the City.

• The Highway 91-Nelson Road Interchange was 
opened. This will spur further development of 
Port Metro Vancouver’s industrial lands, help 
create hundreds of new jobs and strengthen 
our role as a gateway to the Asia-Pacific.

• The City acquired the last remaining privately-
held remnant of Richmond’s Northeast Bog 
Forest to create almost 50-acres of parkland 
forest. Additional parkland acquisitions 
included securing 12-acres of the former 
Fantasy Gardens site.

• The Hamilton Community Centre’s dramatic 
expansion was completed to produce a 
sustainable structure built to LEED Gold 
standards. The South Arm Community Centre 
also underwent extensive renovations.

• The Richmond Cultural Centre was enhanced 
with the opening of the new Media Lab, which 
is designed to increase technology, literacy and 
creativity, particularly for youth. The Rooftop 
Garden, an outdoor venue for arts programs 
and events, was also opened.
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Report from the General Manager,
Business and Financial Services
I am pleased to submit the City of Richmond’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2011. The financial statements reflect a consolidation of the financial position and 
operation results for the City of Richmond, Richmond Public Library and the Richmond Olympic Oval 
Corporation.

The external auditors, KPMG LLP, conducted an independent examination and have expressed 
their opinion that the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of the City of Richmond as at December 31, 2011 in accordance with 
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

The City’s net worth improved by $110.8 million to $2.2 billion in 2011. Net financial assets increased 
to $415.7 million, while net debt outstanding was reduced to $5.8 million. Statutory reserves 
increased by $28.2 million to $275.4 million. The City’s consolidated revenues were $424.0 million and 
consolidated expenses totalled $313.2 million.

Despite a slow recovering economy, Richmond’s housing and construction growth continued at a 
steady pace with 1,480 building permits issued in 2011 (2010: 1,547). Business growth was also 
evident with 12,988 business licenses issued in 2011 (2010: 12,832). With the growing population and 
wide array of high quality services provided, the City continued to experience significant demand for 
recreation programs, libraries, policing, fire-rescue, public works, sports field usage, arenas and pools.

In terms of property taxes, once again, the City had one of the lowest tax rate increases in Metro 
Vancouver without reducing the level of service. As well, to ensure fairness, the City successfully 
negotiated with the Province of BC to obtain unique, temporary tax exemptions for qualifying 
properties in the City Centre. These properties encountered extraordinary increases in property 
assessments due to transitioning land use. In 2011, Council passed the City Centre Transitional Tax 
Exemption Bylaw. This will give 37 Brighouse area properties with 248 businesses partial Municipal and 
School tax relief in 2012. The City has been given authority from the Province to continue to offer these 
exemptions over the next four years, allowing the City to protect jobs during the transformation of the 
City Centre.

Looking ahead, the City of Richmond is well positioned to carry out and meet service commitments in a 
flexible and sustainable manner with an extremely low level of vulnerability from a financial perspective.

Andrew Nazareth, BEc, CGA
General Manager, Business and Financial Services
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City of Richmond audited fi nancial statements
Year ended December 31, 2011
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KPMG LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Metrotower II 
Suite 2400 - 4720 Kingsway 
Burnaby BC  V5H 4N2 
Canada

Telephone (604) 527-3600 
Fax (604) 527-3636 
Internet www.kpmg.ca 

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG 
network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
To the Mayor and Council 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the City of Richmond, which 
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2011 and the 
consolidated statements of operations, changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. 
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant 
to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of the City of Richmond as at December 31, 2011, and its consolidated 
results of operations, its changes in net consolidated financial assets and its consolidated cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Chartered Accountants 

May 14, 2012 

Burnaby, Canada

City of Richmond audited financial statements
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 

December 31, 2011, with comparative figures for 2010 

2011 2010 
 (recast 
 - note 3) 

Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,766 $ 19,058 
Investments (note 4) 563,162 502,375 
Accrued interest receivable 2,710 3,418 
Accounts receivable (note 5) 22,095 29,651 
Taxes receivable 6,716 7,708 
Development fees receivable 16,826 21,189 
Debt reserve fund - deposits (note 6) 386 449 
  623,661 583,848 

Financial Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 7) 77,698 73,963 
Deposits and holdbacks (note 8) 36,753 45,447 
Deferred revenue (note 9) 34,801 43,946 
Development cost charges (note 10) 52,379 42,211 
Obligations under capital leases (note 11) 499 1,168 
Debt, net of MFA sinking fund deposits (note 12) 5,808 9,274 
  207,938 216,009 

Net financial assets 415,723 367,839 

Non-Financial Assets 
Tangible capital assets (note 13)  1,801,630 1,739,019 
Inventory of materials and supplies 1,934 1,745 
Prepaid expenses 1,847 1,734 
   1,805,411  1,742,498 

Accumulated surplus (note 14) $ 2,221,134 $ 2,110,337 

Commitments and contingencies (note 18) 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

General Manager, Business and Financial Services 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Consolidated Statement of Operations 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011, with comparative figures for 2010 

  Budget Actual Actual 
  2011 2011 2010 
  (unaudited  (recast 
  - notes 2(m) and 23)  - note 3) 
Revenue: 

Taxation and levies $ 161,335 $ 161,821 $ 156,071 
User fees 70,035 69,359 68,365 
Sales of services 37,053 41,518 37,403 
Development cost charges 13,813 14,321 17,804 
Payments-in-lieu of taxes 11,770 13,726 13,203 
Provincial and federal grants 6,215 8,066 6,353 
Other capital funding sources 6,054 50,063 53,217 
Other revenues: 

Investment income 16,830 20,328 16,864 
Gaming revenue 11,113 13,728 12,563 
Licenses and permits 7,060 7,524 7,328 
Other (note 21) 7,581 23,588 10,335 

  348,859 424,042 399,506 

Expenses: 
Law and Community safety 79,109 74,548 70,838 
Engineering, public works and project development 57,585 52,338 56,365 
General government 42,950 39,728 35,130 
Parks, recreation and community services 45,959 45,957 43,647 
Utilities: 

Water supply and distribution 33,434 33,437 30,277 
Sewerage collection and disposal 24,724 23,422 23,772 
Sanitation and recycling services 10,627 9,829 9,163 

Planning and development 12,150 11,560 11,427 
Library services 9,393 8,615 8,221 
Richmond Olympic Oval 9,911 8,647 6,614 
Interest and finance charges 5,745 5,164 6,002 
  331,587 313,245 301,456 

     
Annual surplus 17,272 110,797 98,050 

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 2,110,337 2,110,337 2,012,287 

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 2,127,609 $ 2,221,134 $ 2,110,337 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011, with comparative figures for 2010 

  2011 budget 2011 2010 
  (unaudited  (recast 
  - notes 2(m) and 23)  - note 3) 

Surplus for the year $ 17,272 $ 110,797 $ 98,050 

Acquisition of tangible capital assets in 
cash and financed by capital leases (17,272) (76,026) (149,088) 
Acquired tangible capital assets from developers - (35,740) (31,454) 
Amortization of tangible capital assets - 47,696 47,725 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets - (10,347) (3,897) 
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets - 11,806 5,424 
  - 48,186 (33,240) 

Acquisition of inventories of supplies - (1,934) (1,745) 
Acquisition of prepaid expenses - (1,847) (1,734) 
Consumption of inventories of supplies - 1,745 2,253 
Use of prepaid expenses - 1,734 1,594 

Change in net financial assets - 47,884 (32,872) 

Net financial assets, beginning of year 367,839 367,839 400,711 

Net financial assets, end of year $ 367,839 $ 415,723 $ 367,839 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011, with comparative figures for 2010 

2011 2010 
 (recast 
 - note 3) 

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operations:  
Annual surplus $ 110,797 $ 98,050 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization 47,696 47,725 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets (10,347) (3,897) 
Developer contributions of tangible capital assets (35,740) (31,454) 

Change in non-cash operating working capital: 
Decrease in accrued interest receivable 708 963 
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 7,556 (2,362) 
Decrease (increase) in taxes receivable 992 (552) 
Decrease (increase) in development fees receivable 4,363 (16,249) 
Decrease in debt reserve fund 63 - 
Increase in prepaid expenses (113) (140) 
(Increase) decrease in inventories of supplies (189) 508 
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,735 6,287 
(Decrease) increase in deposits and holdbacks (8,694) 22,015 
Increase in deferred revenue 2,585 3,834 
Increase in development cost charges 10,168 9,003 

Net change in cash from operating activities 133,580 133,731 

Capital activities:  
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (75,954) (148,414) 
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 76 5,424 
Net change in cash from capital activities (75,878) (142,990) 

Financing activities: 
Principal payments on debt (3,466) (2,534) 
Principal payments on obligations under capital leases (741) (821) 
Net change in cash from financing activities (4,207) (3,355) 

Investing activities: 
Change in investments (60,787) 23,928 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (7,292) 11,314 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 19,058 7,744 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 11,766 $ 19,058 

Supplementary Information: 
Non-cash transactions: 

Tangible capital assets financed by capital leases $ 72 $ 674 
Sale of property in exchange for leasehold interest 

in another property 11,730 - 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

1. Operations: 

The City of Richmond (the “City”) is incorporated under the Local Government Act of British 
Columbia. The City’s principal activities include the provision of local government services to 
residents of the incorporated area. These include administrative, protective, transportation, 
environmental, recreational, water, and sewer. 

2. Significant accounting policies: 

The consolidated financial statements of the City are the representation of management prepared 
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the 
Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB”) of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.  

(a) Basis of consolidation: 

The consolidated financial statements reflect a combination of the City’s General Revenue, 
General Capital and Loan, Waterworks and Sewerworks, and Reserve Funds consolidated 
with the Richmond Public Library (the “Library”) and the Richmond Olympic Oval. The Library 
is consolidated as the Library Board is appointed by the City. The Richmond Olympic Oval is 
consolidated as it is a wholly owned municipal corporation of the City and operates as 
another government organization. Interfund transactions, fund balances and activities have 
been eliminated on consolidation. 

(i) General Revenue Fund: 

This fund is used to account for the current operations of the City as provided for in the 
Annual Budget, including collection of taxes, administering operations, policing, and 
servicing general debt. 

(ii) General Capital and Loan Fund: 

This fund is used to record the City's capital assets and work-in-progress, including 
engineering structures such as roads and bridges, and the related long-term debt. 

(iii) Waterworks and Sewerworks Funds: 

These funds have been established to cover the costs of operating these utilities, with 
related capital and loan funds to record the related capital assets and long-term debt. 

(iv) Reserve Funds: 

Certain funds are established by bylaws for specific purposes. They are funded primarily 
by budgeted contributions from the General Revenue Fund plus interest earned on fund 
balances. 

(b) Basis of accounting: 

The City follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses. Revenues are 
normally recognized in the year in which they are earned and measurable. Expenses are 
recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods and services 
and/or the creation of a legal obligation to pay. 

City of Richmond audited financial statements
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(c) Government transfers: 

Restricted transfers from governments are deferred and recognized as revenue in the year in 
which the related expenditures are incurred. Unrestricted transfers are recognized as 
revenue when received. 

(d) Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, highly liquid money market investments and 
short-term investments with maturities of less than 90 days of acquisition. 

(e) Investments: 

Investments are recorded at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums or discounts. 
Provisions for losses are recorded when they are considered to be other than temporary. At 
various times during the term of each individual investment, market value may be less than 
cost. Such declines in value are considered temporary for investments with known maturity 
dates as they generally reverse as the investments mature and therefore an adjustment to 
market value for these market declines is not recorded. 

(f) Accounts receivable: 

Accounts receivable are net of an allowance for doubtful accounts and therefore represent 
amounts expected to be collected. 

(g) Development cost charges: 

Development cost charges are restricted by legislation to expenditures on capital 
infrastructure. These amounts are deferred upon receipt and recognized as revenue when 
the expenditures are incurred in accordance with the restrictions. 

(h) Post-employment benefits: 

The City and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan. As this plan is 
a multi-employee plan, contributions are expensed as incurred. 

Post-employment benefits also accrue to the City’s employees. The liabilities related to these 
benefits are actuarially determined based on service and best estimates of retirement ages 
and expected future salary and wage increases. The liabilities under these benefits plans are 
accrued based on projected benefits prorated as employees render services necessary to 
earn the future benefits. 

(i) Non-financial assets: 

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in 
the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are 
not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(i) Non-financial assets (continued): 

(i) Tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes amounts that are directly 
attributable to acquisition, construction, development, or betterment of the assets. The 
cost, less the residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land are amortized 
on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

Asset Useful life - years 

Buildings and building improvements  10 - 75 
Infrastructure  5 - 100 
Vehicles, machinery and equipment  3 - 40 
Library’s collections, furniture and equipment   4 - 20 

Amortization is charged over the asset’s useful life commencing when the asset is 
acquired. Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for 
productive use. 

(ii) Contributions of tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the 
date of receipt and also are recorded as revenue. 

(iii) Natural resources: 

Natural resources that have been purchased are not recognized as assets in the financial 
statements. 

(iv) Works of art and cultural and historic assets: 

Works of art and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as assets in these financial 
statements.  

(v) Interest capitalization: 

The City does not capitalize interest costs associated with the construction of a tangible 
capital asset. 

(vi) Leased tangible capital assets: 

Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of 
property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are 
accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses as 
incurred. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(i) Non-financial assets (continued): 

(vii) Inventory of materials and supplies: 

Inventory is recorded at cost, net of an allowance for obsolete stock. Cost is determined 
on a weighted average basis. 

(j) Deferred revenue: 

The City defers a portion of the revenue collected from permits, licenses and other fees and 
recognizes this revenue in the year in which related inspections are performed or other 
related expenditures are incurred. 

(k) Deposits: 

Receipts restricted by the legislation of senior governments or by agreement with external 
parties are deferred and reported as deposits and are refundable under certain 
circumstances. When qualifying expenditures are incurred, deposits are recognized as 
revenue at amounts equal to the qualifying expenditures. 

(l) Debt: 

Debt is recorded net of related sinking fund balances. 

(m) Budget information: 

Unaudited budget information, presented on a basis consistent with that used for actual 
results, was included in the City of Richmond’s Five Year Financial Plan and was adopted 
through Bylaw #8707 on March 14, 2011. 

(n) Use of accounting estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenditures during the reporting period. Significant areas requiring 
the use of management estimates relate to the value of contributed capital assets, value of 
developer contributions, useful lives for amortization, determination of provisions for accrued 
liabilities, performing actuarial valuation of employee future benefits, allowance for doubtful 
accounts, and provision for contingencies. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
Adjustments, if any, will be reflected in the financial statements in the period that the change 
in estimate is made, as well as in the period of settlement if the amount is different. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(o) Segment disclosures: 

A segment is defined as a distinguishable activity of group of activities of a government for 
which it is appropriate to separately report financial information to achieve the objectives of 
the standard. The City of Richmond has provided definitions of segments used by the City as 
well as presented financial information in segment format (note 22). 

3. Recast of comparative figures: 

During the year, the City determined that certain developer contributed land was omitted and 
should be added to the 2010 and 2009 tangible capital asset register. 

The 2010 comparative figures have been recast for this item. The effects of the recast on the 
2010 comparative figures have been applied retroactively and are summarized below: 

Accumulated surplus at January 1, 2010  

Accumulated surplus, as previously reported      $ 2,005,249 
Add: Net book value of tangible capital asset  7,038 

Accumulated surplus, as recast       $ 2,012,287 

Annual surplus for 2010 

Annual surplus, as previously reported      $ 77,247 
Add: Developer contribution of tangible capital assets  20,803 

Annual surplus, as recast       $ 98,050 

Tangible capital assets, December 31, 2010 

Tangible capital assets, as previously reported     $ 1,711,178 
Add: Net book value of tangible capital asset    27,841 

Tangible capital assets, as recast       $ 1,739,019 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

4. Investments: 

   2011   2010 
   Market  Market 
  Cost value Cost value 

Short-term notes and deposits $ 99,424 $ 99,457 $ 136,309 $ 136,309 
Government and government 

guaranteed bonds 402,293 410,633 305,113 315,332 
Municipal Finance Authority 

Pooled Investment 21,289 21,289 20,723 20,723 
Other Bonds 40,156 42,162 40,230  42,283 

  $ 563,162 $ 573,541 $ 502,375 $ 514,647 

5. Accounts receivable: 

  2011 2010 

Water and sewer utilities $ 6,880 $ 6,467 
Casino revenues 3,186 3,146 
Capital grant 2,934 12,980 
Other trade receivables 9,095 7,058 

  $ 22,095 $ 29,651 

6. Debt reserve fund deposits and contingent demand notes: 

The City issues its debt instruments through the Municipal Finance Authority (the “MFA”). As a 
condition of these borrowings, a portion of the debenture proceeds is withheld by the MFA as a 
Debt Reserve Fund. The City also executes demand notes in connection with each debenture 
whereby the City may be required to loan certain amounts to the MFA. These demand notes are 
contingent in nature and are not reflected in the accounts. The details of the cash deposits and 
contingent demand notes at December 31, 2011 are as follows: 

    Contingent 
   Cash demand 
   deposits notes 

General Revenue Fund   $ 376 $ 1,706 
Sewerworks Revenue Fund  10 48 

Total   $ 386 $ 1,754 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

7. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities: 

  2011 2010 

Trade and other liabilities $ 50,808 $ 48,892 
Post-employment benefits (note 16) 26,890 25,071 

  $ 77,698 $ 73,963 

8. Deposits and holdbacks: 

  Balance   Balance 
  December 31, Deposit Refund December 31, 
  2010 contributions expenditures 2011 

Security deposits $ 33,059 $ 6,175 $ 14,094 $ 25,140 
Contract holdbacks 2,075 3,640 4,509 1,206 
Developer contribution 5,197 340 - 5,537 
Transit Oriented Development Fund 1,523 - - 1,523 
Other 3,593 3,124 3,370 3,347 

  $ 45,447 $ 13,279 $ 21,973 $ 36,753 

9. Deferred revenue: 

Deferred revenue represents revenues that 1) are collected but not earned as of December 31, 
2011. These revenues will be recognized in future periods as they are earned. 2) Funds received 
from external parties for specified purposes. These revenues are recognized in the period in 
which the related expenses are incurred. 

  2011 2010 

Prepaid taxes $ 12,652 $ 11,737 
Capital grants 4,919 6,151 
Business license revenues 2,433 1,882 
Firm price billing revenues 2,723 3,375 
Other 9,671 6,078 
Parking easement and leased land revenues  2,403  14,723 

Balance, end of year $ 34,801 $ 43,946 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

10. Development cost charges: 

  2011 2010 

Balance, beginning of year $ 42,211 $ 33,208   
Contributions 23,518 26,101 
Interest 971 706 
Revenue recognized (14,321) (17,804) 

Balance, end of year $ 52,379 $ 42,211 

11. Obligations under capital leases: 

The City has entered into capital lease agreements to finance certain equipment at an estimated 
cost of borrowing ranging from 1.25% to 5% per year.  

Future minimum lease payments relating to obligations under capital leases expiring on various 
dates as follows: 

Year ending December 31: 

2012   $ 337 
2013  80 
2014  59 
2015  26 
2016 and thereafter  6 
Total future minimum lease payments  508 
Less amount representing interest  (9) 

Present value of capital lease payments  $ 499 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

12. Debt, net of MFA sinking fund deposits: 

The rates of interest on the principal amount of the MFA debentures vary between 3.15% and 
8.50% per annum. The average rate of interest for the year ended December 31, 2011 
approximates 5.85%. 

The City issues debt instruments through the MFA pursuant to security issuing bylaws under 
authority of the Community Charter to finance certain capital expenditures. Sinking fund balances 
managed by the MFA are netted against related debt. 

Gross amount for the debt and the amount for the sinking funds assets available to retire the debt 
are as follows: 

   Sinking Net Net  
  Gross fund debt debt 
  debt asset 2011 2010 

General Fund $ 39,546 $ 33,887 $ 5,659 $ 9,055 
Sewerworks Fund 1,109 960 149 219 

  $ 40,655 $ 34,847 $ 5,808 $ 9,274 

Principal payments and sinking fund instalments on net outstanding debenture debt over the next 
three years are as follows: 

  General Sewerworks Total 

2012 $ 2,248 $ 73  $ 2,321 
2013 2,355 76 2,431 
2014 1,056 - 1,056 

  $ 5,659 $ 149 $ 5,808 

City of Richmond audited financial statements

CNCL - 83



26City of Richmond 2011 Annual Report

CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

13. Tangible capital assets: 

  Balance at   Balance at 
  December 31, Additions  December 31, 
Cost 2010 and transfers Disposals 2011 
  (recast 
 - note 3) 

Land $ 570,939 $ 37,582 $ 10 $ 608,511 
Buildings and building 

improvements 313,067 27,705 600 340,172 
Infrastructure 1,455,639 47,349 3,394 1,499,594 
Vehicles, machinery and 

equipment 81,498 4,864 1,099 85,263 
Library’s collections, furniture and 

equipment 8,203 2,788 1,329 9,662 
Assets under construction 34,379 (8,522) - 25,857 

  $ 2,463,725 $ 111,766 $ 6,432 $ 2,569,059 

  Balance at   Balance at 
  December 31,  Amortization December 31, 
Accumulated amortization 2010 Disposals expense 2011 
  (recast 
 - note 3) 
Buildings and building 

improvements $ 80,489 $ 508 $ 10,950 $ 90,931 
Infrastructure 591,261 2,069 29,868 619,060 
Vehicles, machinery and 

equipment 47,819 1,067 5,514 52,266 
Library’s collections, furniture and 

equipment 5,137 1,329 1,364 5,172 

  $ 724,706 $ 4,973 $ 47,696 $ 767,429 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

13. Tangible capital assets (continued): 

  Net book Net book 
  value value 
  December 31, December 31, 
  2010 2011 
  (recast 
 - note 3) 

Land $ 570,939 $ 608,511 
Buildings and building improvements 232,578 249,241 
Infrastructure 864,378 880,534 
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 33,679 32,997 
Library’s collection, furniture and equipment 3,066 4,490 
Assets under construction 34,379 25,857 

Balance, end of year $ 1,739,019 $ 1,801,630 

(a) Assets under construction:

Assets under construction having a value of approximately $25,857,000 (2010 - $34,379,000) 
have not been amortized. Amortization of these assets will commence when the asset is put 
into service. 

(b) Contributed tangible capital assets:

Contributed capital assets have been recognized at fair market value at the date of 
contribution. The value of contributed assets received during the year is approximately 
$35,740,000 (2010 - $31,454,000) comprised of infrastructure in the amount of approximately 
$11,978,000 (2010 - $10,061,000), land in the amount of approximately $22,483,000 (2010 - 
$21,393,000) and library collections in the amount of approximately $1,279,000 (2010 - nil)  

(c) Tangible capital assets disclosed at nominal values:

Where an estimate of fair value could not be made, the tangible capital asset was recognized 
at a nominal value.  

(d) Works of Art and Historical Treasures:

The City manages and controls various works of art and non-operational historical cultural 
assets including building, artifacts, paintings, and sculptures located at City sites and public 
display areas. The assets are not recorded as tangible capital assets and are not amortized.  

(e) Write-down of tangible capital assets:

There were no writedowns of tangible capital assets during the year (2010-$nil). 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

14. Accumulated surplus: 

General 
Fund

Water Utility 
Fund

Sanitary 
Sewer Utility 

Fund
Capital and 
Loan Fund

Reserves 
Fund

Library 
Services

Richmond 
Oval 2011 Total 2010 Total

(recast -
note 3)

Investment in tangible capital assets -$                -$                  -$                  1,790,377$   -$              4,490$        456$             1,795,323$     1,728,577$    
Reserves (note 15) -                  -                    -                    -                   273,653     -                 1,700            275,353          247,123         
Appropriated Surplus 105,134       11,561          5,442             1,790            -                16               -                   123,943          111,895         
Obligations to be funded -                  -                    -                    -                   -                (50)              -                   (50)                  (101)               
Surplus 1,516           15,218          9,219             (1,927)          -                483             122 24,631            21,098           
Other equity 1,934           -                    -                    -                   -                -                 -                   1,934              1,745             

Balance, end of year 108,584$     26,779$        14,661$         1,790,240$   273,653$   4,939$        2,278$          2,221,134$     2,110,337$    
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

15. Reserves: 

   Change  
  2010 during year 2011 

Reserve funds: 
Affordable housing $ 10,728 $ 616 $ 11,344 
Capital building and infrastructure 26,238 1,408 27,646 
Capital reserve  76,229  5,591  81,820 
Child care development 1,789 357 2,146 
Community legacy and land replacement 5,718 11,379 17,097 
Drainage improvement 18,213 5,182 23,395 
Equipment replacement 14,912 1,832 16,744 
Leisure facilities 2,522 99 2,621 
Local improvements 6,117 213 6,330 
Neighborhood improvement 5,649 408 6,057 
Public art program 1,278 307 1,585 
Sanitary sewer 27,661 2,593 30,254 
Steveston off-street parking 266 11 277 
Steveston road ends 2,930 (207) 2,723 
Waterfront improvement 496 (317) 179 
Watermain replacement 46,377 (2,942) 43,435 
Oval - 1,700   1,700 

  $ 247,123 $ 28,230 $ 275,353 

16. Post-employment future benefits: 

The City provides certain post-employment benefits, non-vested sick leave, compensated 
absences, and termination benefits to its employees. 

  2011 2010 

Balance, beginning of year $ 25,071 $ 23,263   
Current service cost 1,843 1,696 
Interest cost 1,207 1,320 
Amortization of actuarial loss 424 545 
Benefits paid (1,655) (1,753) 

Balance, end of year $ 26,890 $ 25,071 

An actuarial valuation for these benefits was performed to determine the City's accrued benefit 
obligation as at December 31, 2009 and the results are extrapolated to December 31, 2011. The 
difference between the actuarially determined accrued benefit obligation of approximately 
$28,471,000 and the liability of approximately $26,890,000 as at December 31, 2011 is an 
unamortized actuarial loss of $1,581,000. This actuarial loss is being amortized over a period 
equal to the employees' average remaining service life of 10 years. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

16. Post-employment future benefits (continued): 

  2011 2010 

Actuarial benefit obligation: 

Liability, end of year $ 26,890 $ 25,071 
Unamortized actuarial loss 1,581 1,642 

Balance, end of year $ 28,471 $ 26,713 

Actuarial assumptions used to determine the City’s accrued benefit obligation are as follows: 

    2011 2010 

Discount rate 3.50% 4.50% 
Expected future inflation rate 2.50% 2.50% 
Expected wage and salary range increases 3.50% 3.50% 

17. Pension plan: 

The City and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the “Plan”), a jointly 
trusteed pension plan. The Plan’s Board of Trustees, representing plan members and employers, 
is responsible for overseeing the management of the Plan, including the investment of the assets 
and administration of benefits. The pension plan is a multi-employer contributory pension plan. 
Basic pension benefits provided are defined. The Plan has about 173,000 active members and 
approximately 63,000 retired members. Active members include approximately 35,000 
contributors from local governments. 

Every three years an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the Plan 
and the adequacy of plan funding. The most recent valuation as at December 31, 2009 indicated 
an unfunded liability of $1,024 million for basic pension benefits. The next actuarial valuation will 
be performed as at December 31, 2012 with results available in 2013. The actuary does not 
attribute portions of the unfunded liability to individual employers. The City paid $9,291,000 (2010 
- $8,832,000) for employer contributions to the Plan in fiscal 2011. Employees paid $7,624,000 
(2010 - $7,170,000) for employee contributions to the Plan in fiscal 2011. 

18. Commitments and contingencies: 

(a) Joint and several liabilities: 

The City has a contingent liability with respect to debentures of the Greater Vancouver Water 
District, Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District and Greater Vancouver Regional 
District, to the extent provided for in their respective Enabling Acts, Acts of Incorporation and 
Amending Acts. Management does not consider payment under this contingency to be likely 
and therefore no amounts have been accrued. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

18. Commitments and contingencies (continued): 

(b) Lease payments: 

In addition to the obligations under capital leases, at December 31, 2011, the City was 
committed to operating lease payments for premises and equipment in the following 
approximate amounts: 

2012  $ 4,338 
2013  4,172 
2014  4,123 
2015  4,091 
2016 and thereafter  28,449 

(c) Litigation: 

As at December 31, 2011, there were a number of legal claims in various stages of litigation. 
The City has made no specific provision for those where the outcome is presently not 
determinable. 

(d) Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia: 

The City is a participant in the Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia 
(the “Association”). Should the Association pay out claims in excess of premiums received, it 
is possible that the City, along with other participants, would be required to contribute towards 
the deficit. Management does not consider external payment under this contingency to be 
likely and therefore, no amounts have been accrued. 

(e) Contractual obligation: 

The City has entered into various contracts for services and construction with periods ranging 
beyond one year. These commitments are in accordance with budgets passed by Council.  

(f) E-Comm Emergency Communications for Southwest British Columbia (“E-Comm”): 

The City is a shareholder of the Emergency Communications for Southwest British Columbia 
Incorporated (E-Comm) whose services provided include:  regional 9-1-1 call centre for the 
Greater Vancouver Regional District; Wide Area Radio network; dispatch operations; and 
records management. The City has 2 Class A shares and 1 Class B share (of a total of 26 
Class A and 23 Class B shares issued and outstanding as at December 31, 2011). As a 
Class A shareholder, the City shares in both funding the future operations and capital 
obligations of E-Comm (in accordance with a cost sharing formula), including any lease 
obligations committed to by E-Comm up to the shareholder’s withdrawal date. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

18. Commitments and contingencies (continued):

(g) Community Associations: 

The City has a close relationship with the various community associations which operate the 
community centers throughout the City. While they are separate legal entities, the City does 
generally provide the buildings and grounds for the use of the community associations as well 
as pay the operating costs of the facilities.  Typically the community associations are 
responsible for providing programming and services to the community.  The community 
associations retain all revenue which they receive. The City provides the core staff for the 
facilities as well as certain additional services such as information technology services. 

(h) Contingent liabilities: 

The City has a contract with the federal government whereby the federal government 
provides Royal Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP) policing services. RCMP members and 
the federal government are currently in legal proceedings regarding pay raises for 2009 and 
2010 that were retracted for RCMP members.  As the final outcome of the legal action and 
the potential financial impact to the City is not determinable, the City has not recorded any 
provision for this matter in the financial statements as at December 31, 2011. 

19. Trust funds: 

Certain assets have been conveyed or assigned to the City to be administered as directed by 
agreement or statute. The City holds the assets for the benefit of and stands in fiduciary 
relationship to the beneficiary. The following trust fund is excluded from the City’s financial 
statements. 

  2011 2010 

Richmond Community Associations $ 1,015 $ 994 

20. Collections for other governments: 

The City is obligated to collect and transmit certain taxation revenue on behalf of other 
government bodies. These funds are excluded from the City’s financial statements since they are 
not revenue of the City. Such taxes collected and remitted to the government bodies during the 
year are as follows: 

  2011 2010 

Province of British Columbia - Schools $ 122,465 $ 118,391 
Greater Vancouver Regional District and others 37,655 35,715 

  $ 160,120 $ 154,106 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

21. Non-monetary transaction: 

During the year, the City sold a portion of land to a third party developer valued at an agreed 
amount of $6 million. In a separate but related transaction, the City acquired and discharged the 
developer from its use of a leasehold interest for the equivalent amount. The transactions 
occurred at fair value and no cash was exchanged. 

The sale of land resulted in a gain on disposition in the amount of $6 million. The discharge of the 
leasehold interest and discharge of an easement for parking resulted in an accounting gain on 
settlement of $6 million. The total resulting gain of $12 million has been included in Other 
Revenues – Other on the statement of operations. 

22. Segmented reporting: 

The City of Richmond provides a wide variety of services to its residents. For segment disclosure, 
these services are grouped and reported under service areas/departments that are responsible 
for providing such services. They are as follows: 

Law and Community Safety brings together the City's public safety providers such as Police
(RCMP), Fire-Rescue, Emergency Programs, and Community Bylaws along with sections 
responsible for legal and regulatory matters. It is responsible for ensuring safe communities by
providing protection services with a focus on law enforcement, crime prevention, emergency 
response, protection of life and properties, and legal services. 

Engineering, Public Works and Project Development comprises of General Public Works, 
Roads and Construction, Storm Drainage, Fleet Operations, Engineering Planning, Project 
Development, and Facility Management. The services provided are construction and 
maintenance of the City's infrastructure and all City owned buildings, maintenance of the City’s 
road networks, managing and operating a mixed fleet of vehicles, heavy equipment and an 
assortment of specialized work units for the City operations, development of current and long-
range engineering planning and planning, and construction of major projects. 

Parks, Recreation and Community Services comprises of Parks, Recreation and Community 
Services. These departments ensure recreation opportunities in Richmond by maintaining a 
variety of facilities such as arenas, community centres, pools, etc. It designs, constructs and 
maintains parks and sports fields to ensure, there is adequate open green space and sports fields 
available for Richmond residents. It also addresses the economic, arts, culture, and community 
issues that the City encounters.  

General Government comprises of Mayor and Council, Corporate Administration, Corporate 
Services, and Business and Financial Services. It is responsible for adopting bylaws, effectively 
administering city operations, levying taxes, providing sound management of human resources, 
information technology, and City finance, and ensuring high quality services to Richmond 
residents. 
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Year ended December 31, 2011 

22. Segmented reporting (continued):  

Utilities provide such services as planning, designing, constructing, operating, and maintaining 
the City’s infrastructure of water and sewer networks and sanitation and recycling.  

Planning and Development is responsible for land use plans, developing bylaws and policies for 
sustainable development in the City including the City’s transportation systems.  

Library Services provides public access to information by maintaining 5 branches throughout the 
City.

Richmond Olympic Oval is formed as a wholly owned subsidiary of the City. It uses the 
Richmond Olympic Oval facility as a venue for a wide range of sports, business and community 
activities. 
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Year ended December 31, 2011 

22. Segmented reporting (continued):  

2011 2010

Law and
Community

Safety

Engineering,
Public Works

and Project
Development

Parks,
Recreation

and
Community

Services
General

Government Utilities
Planning and
Development

Library
Services

Richmond
Olympic Oval Consolidated

      (recast
- note 3)

Consolidated

Revenues:
Taxation and levies -$                 -$                      -$                   161,821          -$               -$                     -$                 -$                       161,821$         156,071$        
User Fees -                   7,109                -                     -                      62,250       -                       -                   -                         69,359             68,365
Sales of Services 4,857           2,095                8,806             7,862              12,782       768                  278              4,070                 41,518             37,403
Development Cost Charges -                   2,514                4,580             6,483              744            -                       -                   -                         14,321             17,804
Provincial and Federal Grants 91                2,014                210                2,385              189            8                      430              2,739                 8,066               6,353
Other Capital Funding Sources 190              14,889              2,609             22,981            8,115         -                       1,279           -                         50,063             53,217
Payments-in-Lieu of taxes -                   -                        -                     13,726            -                 -                       -                   -                         13,726             13,203
Other revenue from own sources:
      Investment Income -                   -                        -                     19,702            626            -                       -                   -                         20,328             16,864

   Gaming Revenue 567              1,400                -                     11,761            -                 -                       -                   -                         13,728             12,563
      Licenses and permits 190              66                     -                     3,153              -                 4,115               -                   -                         7,524               7,328
      Other 1,445           292                   305                19,565            713            13                    224              1,031                 23,588             10,335

7,340           30,379              16,510           269,439          85,419       4,904               2,211           7,840                 424,042           399,506
Expenditures:

Wages and Salaries 34,669         19,501              25,460           18,439            9,717         8,942               6,286           5,347                 128,361           121,244
PW Maintenance 18                11,518              2,227             23                   4,600         54                    4                  -                     18,444             16,346
Contract Services 35,548         866                   1,603             2,486              4,780         199                  77                128                    45,687             46,582
Supplies and Materials 2,756           (3,162)               11,146           7,997              40,238       1,261               884              2,645                 63,765             78,972
Interest and Finance 15                (1)                      -                 2,405              2,742         -                       3                  -                         5,164               6,002
Transfer  from (to) capital for 

tangible capital assets 67                2,035                547                (128)                225            9                      -                   -                         2,755               (11,518)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,423           20,745              4,966             10,893            6,683         1,095               1,364           527                    47,696             47,725
Loss (gain) on disposal of capital assets 67                835                   8                    18                   445            -                       -                   -                         1,373               (3,897)

74,563         52,337              45,957           42,133            69,430       11,560             8,618           8,647                 313,245           301,456

Annual surplus (deficit) (67,223)$      (21,958)$           (29,447)$       227,306$        15,989$    (6,656)$           (6,407)$       (807)$                110,797$        98,050$         
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

23. Budget data: 

The unaudited budget data presented in these consolidated financial statements is based on the 
2011 operating and capital budgets approved by Council on March 14, 2011 and the approved 
budget for Richmond Olympic Oval. Below is the reconciliation of the approved budget to the 
budget amount reported in these financial statements. 

 Budget 
 Amount 

Revenues: 
Approved operating budget   $ 369,267 
Approved capital budget  216,081 
Approved Oval budget  10,520 

Less: 
Transfer from other funds  64,386 
Intercity recoveries  36,211 
Intercompany recoveries  3,030 
Carried forward capital expenditures  143,382 
Total revenue  348,859 
    

Expenses: 
Approved operating budget  369,267 
Approved capital budget  216,081 
Approved Oval budget  9,911 

Less: 
Transfer to other funds  7,019 
Intercity payments  36,211 
Intercompany payments  3,030 
Capital expenditures  72,699 
Debt principal payments  1,331 
Carried forward capital expenditures  143,382 
Total expenses  331,587 

Annual surplus per statement of operations  $ 17,272 
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2011 permissive property tax exemptions
In accordance with Section 98 (2)(b) of the Community Charter, we disclose that the following 
properties were provided permissive property tax exemptions by Richmond City Council in 2011. 
Permissive tax exemptions are those exemptions granted by bylaw in accordance with Section 224
of the Community Charter. 

Property / Organization Address
2011 Municipal 

tax exempted 

Churches and religious properties
BC Muslim Association 12300 Blundell Road  $ 6,419.97 

Bakerview Gospel Chapel 8991 Francis Road  2,132.99 

Beth Tikvah Congregation 9711 Geal Road  6,616.93 

Bethany Baptist Church 22680 Westminster Highway  15,027.48 

Brighouse United Church 8151 Bennett Road  4,919.87 

Broadmoor Baptist Church 8140 Saunders Road  6,438.38 

Canadian Martyrs Parish 5771 Granville Avenue  8,410.49 

Christian and Missionary Alliance 3360 Sexsmith Road  2,733.15 

Christian Reformed Church 9280 No. 2 Road  6,618.23 

Church of God 10011 No. 5 Road  3,946.36 

Church of Latter Day Saints 8440 Williams Road  9,442.89 

Cornerstone Evangelical Baptist Church 12011 Blundell Road  1,877.83 

Dharma Drum Mountain Buddhist Temple 8240 No. 5 Road  6,513.35 

Emmanuel Christian Community 10351 No. 1 Road  4,041.93 

Faith Evangelical Church 11960 Montego Street  3,086.21 

Fraserview Mennonite Brethren Church 11295 Mellis Drive  8,290.88 

Fujian Evangelical Church 12200 Blundell Road  5,583.71 

Gilmore Park United Church 8060 No. 1 Road  10,034.89 

I Kuan Tao (Fayi Chungder) Association 8866 Odlin Crescent  2,791.79 

Immanuel Christian Reformed Church 7600 No. 4 Road  3,644.87 

India Cultural Centre 8600 No. 5 Road  9,070.04 

International Buddhist Society 9120 Steveston Highway  3,900.80 

Ismaili Jamatkhama and Centre 7900 Alderbridge Way  27,059.53 

Johrei Fellowship Inc 10380 Odlin Road  3,871.69 

Lansdowne Congregation Jehovah’s Witnesses 11014 Westminster Highway  2,575.38 

Larch St. Gospel Meeting Room 8020 No. 5 Road  2,095.37 

Ling Yen Mountain Temple 10060 No. 5 Road  4,918.33 

Nanaksar Gurdwara Gursikh Temple 18691 Westminster Highway  2,157.96 

North Richmond Alliance Church 9140 Granville Avenue  1,991.63 

Our Savior Lutheran Church 6340 No. 4 Road  4,514.33 

Parish of St. Alban’s 7260 St. Albans Road  7,260.00 

City of Richmond permissive property tax exemptions
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Churches and religious properties continued . . .
Patterson Road Assembly 9291 Walford Street  $ 662.51 

Peace Evangelical Church 8280 No. 5 Road  5,505.82 

Peace Mennonite Church 11571 Daniels Road  9,306.96 

Richmond Alliance Church 11371 No. 3 Road  4,054.53 

Richmond Baptist Church 6560 Blundell Road  1,200.57 

Richmond Baptist Church 6640 Blundell Road  4,237.41 

Richmond Bethel Mennonite Church 10160 No. 5 Road  13,158.64 

Richmond Chinese Alliance Church 10100 No. 1 Road  5,934.70 

Richmond Chinese Evangelical Free Church 8040 No. 5 Road  2,616.37 

Richmond Gospel Society 9160 Dixon Avenue  7,159.23 

Richmond Pentecostal Church 9300 Westminster Highway  7,900.69 

Richmond Pentecostal Church 9260 Westminster Highway  612.73 

Richmond Presbyterian Church 7111 No. 2 Road  3,923.38 

Richmond Sea Island United Church 8711 Cambie Road  7,326.00 

Salvation Army Church 8280 Gilbert Road  2,982.94 

Science of Spirituality SKRM Inc 11011 Shell Road  1,104.87 

Shia Muslim Community 8580 No. 5 Road  5,432.23 

South Arm United Church 11051 No. 3 Road  2,616.88 

St. Anne’s Anglican Church 4071 Francis Road  3,687.16 

St. Edward’s Anglican Church 10111 Bird Road  3,525.11 

St. Gregory Armenian Apostolic Church 13780 Westminster Highway  785.25 

St. Joseph the Worker Roman Catholic Church 4451 Williams Road  8,578.29 

St. Monica’s Roman Catholic Church 12011 Woodhead Road  5,633.32 

St. Paul’s Roman Catholic Parish 8251 St. Albans Road  19,370.96 

Steveston Buddhist Temple 4360 Garry Street  8,521.49 

Steveston Congregation Jehovah’s Witnesses 4260 Williams Road  4,134.53 

Steveston United Church 3720 Broadway Street  2,807.39 

Subramaniya Swamy Temple 8840 No. 5 Road  753.30 

Thrangu Monastery Association 8140 No. 5 Road  4,566.65 

Thrangu Monastery Association 8160 No. 5 Road  155.05 

Towers Baptist Church 10311 Albion Road  6,879.14 

Trinity Lutheran Church 7100 Granville Avenue  8,746.24 

Ukrainian Catholic Church 8700 Railway Avenue  1,983.06 

Vancouver Airport Chaplaincy 3211 Grant McConachie Way  468.36 

Vancouver International Buddhist Progress Society 6690 - 8181 Cambie Road  8,149.21 

Vancouver International Buddhist Progress Society 8271 Cambie Road  2,897.06 

Vedic Cultural Society of BC 8200 No. 5 Road  1,453.08 

West Richmond Gospel Hall 5651 Francis Road  2,545.85 

City of Richmond permissive property tax exemptions
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Recreation, child care, and community service properties
Cook Road Children’s Centre 8300 Cook Road  $  1,825.78 

Girl Guides of Canada 4780 Blundell Road  2,346.83 

Kinsmen Club of Richmond 11851 Westminster Highway  428.76 

Navy League of Canada 7411 River Road  10,046.76 

Richmond Caring Place 7000 Minoru Boulevard  169,277.82 

Richmond Family Place 8660 Ash Street  8,471.76 

Richmond Lawn Bowling Club 6131 Bowling Green Road  7,526.08 

Richmond Public Library 11580 Cambie Road  3,240.95 

Richmond Public Library 11688 Steveston Highway  6,145.38 

Richmond Rod and Gun Club 7760 River Road  15,794.59 

Richmond Tennis Club 6820 Gilbert Road  13,706.98 

Richmond Winter Club 5540 Hollybridge Way  114,193.29 

Riverside Children’s Centre 5862 Dover Crescent  997.76 

Scotch Pond Heritage 2220 Chatham Street  7,836.59 

Terra Nova Children’s Centre 6011 Blanchard Drive  1,774.15 

Treehouse Learning Centre 100 - 5500 Andrews Road  1,315.14 

Richmond Ice Centre 14140 Triangle Road  138,898.32 

Richmond Watermania 14300 Entertainment Boulevard  207,971.91 

Private educational properties
BC Muslim Association 12300 Blundell Road  $  2,095.59 

Choice Learning Centre 20411 Westminster Highway  783.15 

Choice Learning Centre 20451 Westminster Highway  4,541.14 

Cornerstone Christian Academy School 12011 Blundell Road  1,493.42 

Richmond Christian School 10260 No. 5 Road  11,979.87 

Richmond Christian School Association 5240 Woodwards Road  28,930.88 

Richmond Jewish Day School 8760 No. 5 Road  15,466.40 

St. Joseph the Worker Roman Catholic Church 4451 Williams Road  21,224.49 

Senior citizen housing 
Richmond Kiwanis Senior Citizens Housing 6251 Minoru Boulevard  $  45,529.88 

Richmond Legion Senior Citizen Society 7251 Langton Road  23,404.41 

City of Richmond permissive property tax exemptions
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Community care facilities
Canadian Mental Health Association 8911 Westminster Highway  $  5,837.90 

Development Disabilities Association 6531 Azure Road  1,655.99 

Development Disabilities Association 8400 Robinson Road  1,974.64 

Greater Vancouver Community Service 4811 Williams Road  2,094.45 

Pinegrove Place, Mennonite Care Home Society 11331 Mellis Drive  15,910.92 

Richmond Society for Community Living 303 - 7560 Moffatt Road  728.54 

Richmond Society for Community Living 4433 Francis Road  1,669.85 

Richmond Society for Community Living 5635 Steveston Highway  6,123.15 

Richmond Society for Community Living 9 - 11020 No. 1 Road  915.75 

Richmond Society for Community Living 9580 Pendleton Road  6,531.08 
Rosewood Manor, Richmond Intermediate Care Society 6260 Blundell Road  34,880.20 

Municipal use
0815024 BC Ltd 5440 Hollybridge Way   $  34,594.23 

Richmond Olympic Oval 6111 River Road  2,064,041.27 

City of Richmond permissive property tax exemptions
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2011 tax rates
City of 

Richmond

School - 
Province

of BC
Metro 

Vancouver
BC 

Assessment

Municipal 
Finance 

Authority TransLink

Residential 2.16085 1.67470 0.06235 0.06210 0.00020 0.35000

Business 8.03836 6.60000 0.15274 0.18960 0.00050 1.60860

Light industrial 9.05396 2.64000 0.21197 0.18960 0.00070 1.96260

Seasonal / Recreational 1.83670 3.40000 0.06234 0.06210 0.00020 0.30590

Major industrial 12.96510 2.64000 0.21197 0.51140 0.00070 2.26920

Farm 11.88468 3.40000 0.06234 0.06210 0.00020 0.35430

Utilities 37.16662 14.10000 0.21820 0.51140 0.00070 2.70720

Source: City of Richmond Business and Financial Services Department

2011 general revenue fund assessment and 
taxation by property class (in $000s)

Assessment
% of assessment 

by class Taxation
% of taxation

by class

Residential  $38,773,463 80.32%  $83,784 51.65%

Business 7,753,426 16.06%  62,325 38.42%

Light industrial 1,480,246 3.07%  13,402 8.27%

Seasonal / Recreational 113,149 0.23%  208 0.13%

Major industrial 107,536 0.22%  1,394 0.86%

Farm 26,699 0.06%  317 0.20%

Utilities 21,094 0.04%  784 0.47%

Total  $48,275,613 100.00%  $162,214 100.00%

Source: City of Richmond Business and Financial Services Department

Taxes collected on behalf of taxing authorities (in $000s)

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

City of Richmond  $131,292  $141,531  $148,563  $156,071  $161,821 

School Board 112,484 117,124 115,122 118,391 122,465

Metro Vancouver 3,177 3,302 3,329 3,632 3,957

BC Assessment 3,474 3,655 3,791 4,013 4,258

TransLink 27,320 25,725 27,209 28,058 29,427

Other 9 8 11 11 13

Total taxes  $277,756  $291,345  $298,025  $310,176  $321,941 

Source: City of Richmond Business and Financial Services Department
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Long term debt repayments relative to 
expenditures 2007–2011 (in $000s)

General revenue fund 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Long term debt repayments   $ 4,735  $ 4,735  $  8,235  $ 3,554  $ 3,413 

General expenditures   $ 171,586  $ 186,923   $ 191,976  $ 249,446  $ 257,155 

Repayments as % of 
expenditures 2.8% 2.5% 4.3% 1.4% 1.3%

Waterworks revenue fund

Long term debt repayments  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ -   

Water expenditures  $ 21,498  $ 24,874  $ 26,835  $ 31,064  $ 33,434 

Repayments as % of 
expenditures 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Sewerworks revenue fund

Long term debt repayments  $ 115  $ 115  $ 115  $ 115  $ 115 

Sewer expenditures  $ 17,490  $ 20,880  $ 23,269  $ 23,291  $ 24,724 

Repayments as % of 
expenditures 0.7% 0.6% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%

Note: Expenditures do not include capital and infrastructure investments.

Source: City of Richmond Business and Financial Services Department

City of Richmond debt per capita 2006–2011

Source: City of Richmond Business and Financial Services Department
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Revenue by source 2007–2011 (in $000s)

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Taxation and levies  $135,393  $139,475  $148,503  $156,071  $161,821 

User fees 50,736  57,027  63,150  68,365  69,359 

Sales of services 29,649  31,714  33,528  37,403  41,518 

Licences and permits  8,413  7,833  5,844  7,328  7,524 

Investment income 19,396  25,011  22,147  16,864  20,328 

Grants including casino revenue 29,177  29,482  31,272  32,119  35,520 

Development cost charges 34,403  9,506  22,932  17,804  14,321 

Other capital funding sources 27,586  45,036  26,878  53,217  50,063 

Other   141,579  15,995  14,673  10,335  23,588 

Total  $476,332  $361,079  $368,927  $399,506  $424,042 

Source: City of Richmond Business and Financial Services Department

Expenses by object 2010–2011 (in $000s)

2010 2011

Wages, salaries and benefits  $121,244  $128,361 

Public Works maintenance 16,346  18,444 

Contract services  46,582  45,687 

Supplies, materials  78,972  63,765 

Interest and finance  6,002  5,164 

Transfer from (to) capital for tangible capital assets  (11,518)  2,755 

Amortization of tangible capital assets  47,725  47,696 

Loss/(gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets  (3,897)  1,373 

Total  $301,456  $313,245 

Source: City of Richmond Business and Financial Services Department
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Expenses by function 2010–2011 (in $000s)
2010 2011

Community Safety   $ 70,838  $ 74,548 

Engineering and Public Works  56,365  52,338 

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services  43,647  45,957 

General government  35,130  39,728 

Utilities  69,214  71,852 

Planning and Development  11,427  11,560 

Library services  8,221  8,615 

Richmond Olympic Oval  6,614  8,647 

Total expenditures  $ 301,456   $ 313,245 

Source: City of Richmond Business and Financial Services Department

Accumulated surplus 2010–2011 (in $000s)
2010 2011

Annual surplus  $ 98,050  $ 110,797 

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year  2,012,287  2,110,337 

Accumulated surplus, end of year   $ 2,110,337  $ 2,221,134 

Source: City of Richmond Business and Financial Services Department

Changes in net fi nancial assets 2010–2011 (in $000s)
2010 2011

Change in net financial assets  $ (32,872)  $ 47,844 

Source: City of Richmond Business and Financial Services Department
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Reserves 2007–2011 (in $000s)
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Affordable housing  $9,429  $10,121  $10,537  $10,728  $11,344 

Capital building and 
infrastructure 16,206  18,519 22,655 26,238 27,646

Capital reserve 68,507  68,171 70,799 76,229 81,820

Child care development 431  541 854 1,789 2,146

Community legacy and land 
replacement 88,094  68,962 57,298 5,718 17,097

Drainage improvement 9,051  11,269 13,493 18,213 23,395

Equipment replacement 11,530  12,667 13,823 14,912 16,744

Leisure facilities 1,229  2,114 2,319 2,522 2,621

Local improvements 4,834  5,433 5,750 6,117 6,330

Neighbourhood improvement 5,169  5,939 6,276 5,649 6,057

Public art program 459  1,088 1,105 1,278 1,585

Sanitary sewer 18,677  21,647 24,332 27,661 30,254

Steveston off-street parking 187  248 256 266 277

Steveston road ends 296  293 204 2,930 2,723

Waterfront improvement 2,276  3,051 1,344 496 179

Watermain replacement 39,070  43,276 42,619 46,377 43,435

Oval  -    -    -    -   1,700

Total reserves  $275,445  $273,339  $273,664  $247,123  $275,353 

Source: City of Richmond Business and Financial Services Department
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Investments per type

2011 $99,424 $402,293 $21,289 $40,156 $563,162

2010 $136,309 $305,113 $20,723 $40,230 $502,375

Short-term notes and 
deposits

Government and 
Government 

Guaranteed Bonds

MFA pooled 
investments Other bonds Total Investments

Investment portfolio per type 2010–2011 ($000’s)

Ratio analysis indicators of fi nancial condition
2010 2011

Sustainability ratios

Assets to liabilities (times)  11.5  11.2 

Financial assets to liabilities (times)  3.0  2.8 

Net debt to total revenues 2.6% 1.8%

Net debt to total assessment 0.0% 0.0%

Expenses to total assessment 0.7% 0.6%

Flexibility ratios   

Public debt charges to revenues 1.5% 1.2%

Net book value of capital assets to cost 70.4% 70.4%

Own source revenue to assessment 0.8% 0.8%

Vulnerability ratios

Government transfers to total revenues 1.6% 1.9%

Note: Based on average balance sheet amounts
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The City of Richmond’s services are organized into the Chief Administrator’s Office and eight 
departments, as well as three separate City services. The departments are: Office of the Chief 
Administrative Officer, Business and Financial Services, Corporate Services, Community Services, 
Engineering and Public Works, Law and Community Safety, Parks and Recreation, Planning and 
Development, and Project Development and Facility Services. The other City services are: Gateway 
Theatre, Richmond Olympic Oval and Richmond Public Library.

Mailing Address
City of Richmond
6911 No. 3 Road
Richmond, British Columbia
V6Y 2C1 Canada

Information Centre
Tel: 604-276-4000
Fax: 604-276-4029
Email: infocentre@richmond.ca

Telecommunication Device for the Deaf (TDD)
Tel: 604-276-4311

Mayor and Councillors
Mayor: 604-276-4123
Councillors: 604-276-4134
Email: MayorandCouncillors@richmond.ca

Website
www.richmond.ca

Community Bylaws
Dog Licences: 604-247-4633
Animal Control: 604-247-4630
Bylaw and Parking Ticket Enquiries: 604-276-4284
Automated Parking and Bylaw Enquiries: 
604-276-4345

Fire Department (Richmond Fire-Rescue)
Administration (non-emergency calls only):
Tel: 604-278-5131
911 (emergency calls only)

Police Department (Richmond RCMP)
Administration (non-emergency calls only):
Tel: 604-278-1212
911 (emergency calls only)

Garbage and Recycling
Information Line: 604-276-4010

Gateway Theatre

City of Richmond services and contact information

6500 Gilbert Road
Information Line: 604-270-6500
Box Office: 604-270-1812
Box Office Hours: Monday to Friday, noon to
6:00 p.m.; Saturday, 2:00 to 6:00 p.m.
Website: www.gatewaytheatre.com

Human Resources
Reception: 604-276-4105

Library
For hours: 604-231-6401
Website: www.yourlibrary.ca

Parks Department
Reception: 604-244-1208

Permit Centre
Business Licences: 604-276-4328
Building Permits: 604-276-4285
Inspection Enquiries: 604-276-4118
Inspection Request Line: 604-276-4111

Public Works
Public Works Service Centre: 604-244-1262
24 Hour Emergency Calls: 604-270-8721

Recreation and Cultural Services
Information and Registration Line: 604-276-4300

Richmond Olympic Oval
6111 River Road
Information Line: 778-296-1400
Website: www.richmondoval.ca

Taxes–Property and Utility
General Enquiries: 604-276-4145

Transportation and Traffi c
Parking Tickets: 604-276-4345
Transportation and Traffic Enquiries: 
604-276-4388
Traffic Signals: 604-247-4616

Zoning Information
Zoning and Signs: 604-276-4017
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To: 

From: 

City of 
Richmond 

Finance Committee 

Jerry Chong 
Director, Finance 

Report to Committee 

\ Q ~\t,h'\\A,VJ\- u ;q 

Date: April 18, 2012 

File: 03-0900-01f2011-Vol 
01 

Re: Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2012) Bylaw No. 8896 

Staff Recommendation 

That Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2012) Bylaw No. 8896 be introduced and given first, 
second, and third readings. 

Jerry Chong 
Director, Finance 
(604-276-4064) 

ROUTEOTo: 

Budgets 
City Clerk 
Law 

ReVIEWED BY TAG 
SUBCOMMIITEE 

3SlS105 

REPORT CONCURRENCE 

CONCURRENCE CONCURRENCE OF GENERAL MANAGER 

~ ,+; --r-
;g/ 
IlY' 

INITIALS: REVIEWED BY CAO ' INITIALS: 

k' "T 7, ff 
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April 18, 2012 - 2 -

Siaff Report 

Origin 

The City has an existing credit facility agreement with its bank and is seeking Council's annual 
authorization through adoption of Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2012) Bylaw No. 8896 
(attached). The credit facility will be available in the fOffi1 of up to $3,000,000 in standby letters 
of credit, demand promissory notes or bank overdraft, and up to $4,500,000 in leasing lines of 
credit. 

Analysis 

The $7,500,000 credit facility arrangement aforementioned meets the definition of revenue 
anticipation borrowing as per Section 177 of the Community Charter. Under that section, 
Council may, by bylaw, provide the authority to borrow money that may be necessary to meet 
current lawful expenditures and to pay amounts required to meet the City's taxing obligations in 
relation to other local governments or public bodies. If money is borrowed pursuant to a revenue 
anticipation borrowing bylaw, any money to be collected from property taxes must be used to 
repay the money borrowed. 

The maximum amount of borrowing allowed for revenue anticipation borrowing is the sum of 
the unpaid taxes for the current year and the money remaining due from other governments (e.g. 
payment in lieu of taxes and grants etc.). Therefore, the bylaw amount of$7,500,000 is well 
below the limit imposed under Section 177 of the Community CharIer. 

The purpose of obtaining the $3,000,000 operating lines of credit is to ensure that the City has a 
secondary source of credit in place to protect its bank accounts from the unlikely event of going 
into an overdraft position. Staff regularly monitors the City 's cashflow position to prevent the 
possibility of having to draw down on the credit facility. The purpose of obtaining the 
$4,500,000 leasing lines of credit is to ensure that a leasing facility is available in the event it is 
required. 

Financial Impact 

Both types of credit facilities, if they remain unused, will be free of charge for the City to 
maintain. 

In the event the operating lines of credit will be drawn upon, the interest rate will be at the bank's 
prime lending rate minus 0.50% with interest payable monthly. 

In the event the leasing line will be drawn upon, the interest rate will be either floating at the 
bank's leasing prime rate or at a fixed rate of the bank ' s leasing base rate plus 0.60%, with 
periodic payments payable monthly. 

Should any of these credit facilities be drawn down in the future for a consecutive period of more 
than 2 weeks, staff will prepare a report to Council to infoffi1 Council of such financial activity. 
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Conclusion 

That the Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (20 12) Bylaw No. 8896 be approved in order for 
funds to be made available to the City in the event that the City is required to draw upon the 
existing credit facilities arrangement with its bank. 

ven!~C 
Manager, Treasury Services 
(604-276-42 17) 
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City of 
Richmond Bylaw 8896 

REVENUE ANTICIPATION BORROWING (2012) BYLAW NO. 8896 

The Council of the City of Richmond enacts as follows: 

1. Council shall be and is hereby empowered and authorized to borrow upon the credit of the 
City, from a financial institution, a swn not exceeding $7,500,000 at such times as may be 
required. . 

2. The fonn of obligation to be given as acknowledgement of the liability shall be $3,000,000 
in the form of standby letters of credit, demand promissory notes or bank overdraft, and 
$4,500,000 in the fonn of leasing lines of credit, bearing the corporate seal and signed by the 
authorized signing officers for the City, pursuant to Council 's banking resolution. 

3. AU unpaid taxes and the taxes of the current year (2012) when levied or so much thereof as 
may be necessary shall, when collected, be used to repay the money so borrowed. 

4. Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw No. 8755 is hereby repealed. 

5. This Bylaw is cited as "Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2012) Bylaw No. 8896". 

FIRST READING CITY OF 
RICHMOND 

SECOND READING 
APPROVED 

for content by 
origlna~ng 

THIRD READING 

ADOPTED 

MAYOR 

3S1S1I)3 

CORPORATE OFFICER 

.. " 
APPROVED 
10.legollty 
by Solicitor 
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City of 
Richmond 

Report to Committee 

1() P\203, - ID;vvl k'l 2D\l..-

To: 

From: 

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee 

Jane Fernyhough 

Date: May 3, 2012 

File: 
Director, Arts, Culture & Heritage 

Re: Britannia Heritage Shipyard National Historic Site 

Staff Recommendations: 

1. That the Terms of Reference for a Britannia Heritage Shipyard Building Committee, as 
outlined in the report dated May 3, 2012 from the Director, Arts , Culture and Heritage 
Services, be endorsed; and, 

2. That a Britannia Heritage Shipyard Buifding Committee e established as per the Terms 
of Reference. 

Jane Fernyhough 
Director, Arts, Culture & Her 
(604-276-4288) 

Att:2 

FOR ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT USE ONLY 

ROUTED To: CONCURRENCE CONCUR~E OF GENERAL MANAGER 

Project Development Y~O ---- . //_ ,,1 , 
REVIEWED BY TAG YES NO ReVIEWED BY CAO YES / NO 
SUBCOMMITTEE ~ D ~ D 
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May 3, 2012 

Staff Report 

Origin 

At the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee of March 27, 2012 the following 
referral motion was passed: 

That the staff report entitled "Britannia Heritage Shipyard National Historic Site" dated 
March 9, 2012 from the Director, Arts, Culture & Heritage be referred back to staff to 
examine the Terms of Reference for the Building Committee to oversee the final three 
buildings. 

This report responds to this referral. 

Analysis 

The report MBritannia Heritage Shipyard National Historic Site" (Attachment 1) responded to a 
request for information regarding several areas of the operation, including -that staff consider 
the establishment of a Building Committee to determine the uses of the final three buildings, the 
Seine Net Loft, Japanese Duplex and Longhouse and develop a timeline and costs to bring 
them up to code for those usesn

• At the March 27th meeting Committee requested 
reconsideration of the term "Task Force" instead of "Committee" and the proposed Terms of 
Reference as outlined in the report. Council's original intent for a Britannia Building Committee 
as outlined in the Britannia Heritage Shipyard Business Plan, and the proposed mandate and 
composition for the Building Committee was referenced. 

The Britannia Business Plan adopted by Council in 2000 proposed "a Building Committee be 
appointed by Council when a capital project is being planned. This Committee would oversee 
the project from conception through planning and capital fundraising and construction. The 
committee would be comprised of three members of the Britannia Advisory Board and three 
members of City staff and or Council. " The Britannia Advisory Board, appointed by Council, 
was disbanded as of December 31,2008. 

As outlined in the March 9, 2012 report (Attachment 1) capital funding for the Seine Net Loft 
was approved as part of the 2011 capital budget and detailed designs are being completed for 
the seismic upgrade, fire suppression system, mechanical and electrical upgrades 10 bring the 
building to a "public assembly· usage. The Business Plans outlined the usage to be museum 
and exhibit space, small boat collection storage and open concept visible storage of artefacts, 
and now includes the Lubzinski exhibit. The Building Committee role could be to work with staff 
and designers on the use and planning of the restoration. The Committee would advise on the 
planning, restoration and future use of the remaining two buildings: Japanese Duplex and First 
Nations building as capital funding is allocated. A revised Terms of Reference and committee 
structure is attached. (Attachment 2) 

Financial Impact 

None. Staff time to liaise with the group as well as any additional meetings required with the 
building consultants will be absorbed into the project and approved operating budgets. 
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May 3, 2012 

Conclusion 

The establishment of a Building Committee to assist in guiding the restoration and future use of 
the remaining un-restored buildings and the stories to be told through those buildings is 
recommended. 

Bryan Klassen 
Britannia Site Supervi"" V 
(604-718-8044) 

BK:bk 
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ATTACHMENT I 

City of 
Richmond 

Report to Committee 

To: 

From: 

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee 

Jane Femyhough 
Director, Arts, Culture & Heritage 

Re: Britannia Heritage Shipyard National Historic Site 

Staff Recommendation 

Date: March 9, 2012 

File: 

1. That the Terms of Reference for a Britannia Building Task Force as outlined in this report be 
endorsed; and, 

2. That a Britannia Building Task Force be established as per the Terms of Reference. 

ane Femyh ugh 
Director, Arts , Cultur;e 
(604-276-4288) 

Att. 2 

ROUTED To: 

Parks 
Project Development 

ReVIEwED BY TAG 

FOR ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT USE ONLY 

CONCURRENCE CONCURRENCE OF G ENERAL MANAGER 

ya-NO ~ .fl. _~ 0......___ 
Yp-N0 .....---

YES NO ReVIEWED BY CAO YES/ NO 

«70 0 G~ 0 
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March 9, 2012 - 2 -

Staff Report 

Origin 

At the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee of September 27t1!, 2011 the 
following referral motion was passed: 

That the materials distributed from Councilfor Harold Steves, dated September 27, 2011 
regarding the Britannia Shipyard National Historic Site be referred to staff, with particular 
attention to the following: 

1. ~that staff investigate and report back to Committee the means of maintaining full public 
access to the wharf and fleet"; 

2. ·that staff review and consider implementation of the remaining recommendations of the 
Britannia Heritage Business Plan"; and 

3. "that staff consider the establishment of a Building Committee to determine the uses of 
the final three buildings, the Seine Net Loft, Japanese Duplex and Longhouse and 
develop a timeline and costs to bring them up to code for those uses·. 

This report responds to this referral. 

Ana lysis 

The Britannia Heritage Shipyard site is 3.29 hectares (8.14 acres) of land located on the south 
arm of the Fraser River. The oldest cannery site on the Fraser River, and later converted to a 
shipyard, the site is important to the historical development of Richmond and the Lower 
Mainland. The site has been owned by the CIty since 1990 and was declared a National 
Historic Site of Canada in 1992. 

The historical features at the Britannia site have a collective heritage value that exceeds their 
individual heritage value. The boardwalk and bulkhead are significant features in context with 
the buildings. The 12 buildings on the site are important for their sense of community that is 
achieved and help tell the many stories about the multj~ethnic residents and workers at the 
Britannia Shipyard and Steveston. 

In 2001 Council adopted the Britannia Heritage Shipyard Business Plan, which outlined the 
proposed development for the following five years , including the priorities for the restoration and 
use of the buildings. In 2004 work began on the restoration of the buildings in the Historic Zone, 
which was completed in 2009. The Business Plan was updated in 2008, which provided further 
direction for the development of the site . 
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Referral Points: 

1. -that staff investigate and report back to Committee the means of maintaining full public 
access to the wharf and neet~· 

As outlined in Schedule 1 prepared by Councillor Steves dated September 27, 2011 , there are 
no impediments to public access in terms of building usages. In 2002, the wharf was 
completely rebuilt, including new piles, timbers and decking. The wharf was subsequently used 
for programming, notably music concerts during the summers. This practice was stopped when 
questions arose as to the safety of the public through the Shipyard Building and onto the wharf. 
Discussion with Building Approvals produced the compromise that there could be up to 50 
people in the shipyard building at anyone time and that a tour guide accompany them. This 
has been the operating procedure since that time. 

In 2009, the floats were upgraded to 12 feet wide with improved floatation, in response to 
increased public use particularly during the Richmond Maritime Festival. There are several 
vessels moored at the Britannia floats, three owned by the Britannia Heritage Shipyard Society, 
one owned by the SS Master Society, one owned by the City of Richmond and one owned by 
the waterside caretaker. 

The vessels are subject to sudden movements due to wind and waves and present any number 
of hazards for people not familiar with boats. Further, the boats have safety related items from 
fuel containers to flares, which can be dangerous in untrained hands. Supervision of the public 
while on the floats and vessels is required . 

Due to reasons of safety and security the floats are not always open to the public. The Society 
is able to escort visitors and guests on to the floats to view their vessels . As there is always a 
risk to life and safety on the water there has never been provision to allow the public 
unsupervised access to the floats and vessels. The Britannia Heritage Shipyard Society has a 
resolution, approved at a board meeting some years ago, that their members must wear a life 
jacket or approved flotation device when they are on the floats and working on the boats. 

The City has limited staff to keep the buildings and exhibits open to the public and is not able to 
provide the supervision required to open the wharf and floats other than on special occasions 
such as the Richmond Maritime Festival. In order to allow access to the wharf and fleet, there 
should be a minimum of two trained people to provide supervision to the public; one person to 
escort the public through the Shipyard building and one person to supervise the public on the 
floats to ensure safety restrictions are enforced such as prohibited smoking, proper footwear, 
appropriate behaviour and ship-board etiquette. 

In order to have the wharf and floats accessible to the public on a regular basis staff are working 
with the Society to recruit and train volUnteers. Alternately , increased funding could be provided 
for additional staff to provide supervision to the dock and floats. 
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2. "that staff review and consider implementation of the remaining recommendations of the 
Britannia Heritage Business Plan"; 

In 2001 the Britannia Heritage Shipyard Business Plan was adopted by City Council. Guided by 
an eight-member steering committee comprised of Counci'flors, community members and City 
staff, the Business Plan outlined the guiding principles for the site, the site development 
priorities and estimated capital costs over a five-year period. The Business Plan included 
proposed building uses, staffing plans, site improvements, a management and operational 
model and the role of the Britannia Heritage Shipyard Society. 

In 2004 work began on the Historic Zone Development Plan, which was adopted by Council in 
2006. This moved the focus of the work at Britannia away from the priorities in the Business 
Plan. The development of the Historic Zone was spread over several years, as funding was 
made available, and opened to the public in May 2009, The final exhibits in the Chinese 
Bunkhouse were opened in 2011 . The new buildings and exhibits significantly expanded the 
public access to Britannia. Estimated attendance in 2011 was 55,000 visitors in total, which 
includes approximately 25,000 attending the Richmond Maritime Festival. . 

The 2008·2012 Business Plan Update, endorsed by Council in June 2008 (Attachment 1) 
reiterated the plans and priorities for the completion of the site, notably the restoration I 
renovation of the Seine Net Loft, the Japanese Duplex and the First Nations Bunk House. If 
further outlined three strategic directions - Long-term Site Preservation, Effective and Efficient 
Operations and Enhanced Visitor Experiences· with initiatives and action plans for each. 

Council approved capital funding for the Seine Net Loft superstructure in the 2011 capital 
budget. Capital funding for the Japanese Duplex and the First Nations Bunkhouse has not been 
approved at this time. Both of these buildings require additional historic research and 
engineering and design work to determine restoration costs, 

Construction work. on the Seine Net Loft, which includes superstructure seismic upgrade, fire 
suppression system, mechanical and electrical upgrades to bring the building to a ~public 
assembly· usage is projected to be completed in early 2013. The Seine Net Loft will be used as 
museum and exhibit space, small boat collection storage and open concept visible storage of 
artefacts, as outlined in the Business Plans. 

The remaining two buildings, the Japanese Duplex and the First Nations Bunkhouse restoration 
and interpretation remain unfunded. The Japanese Duplex is the next priority and has been 
submitted as a capital request (currently unfunded). The First Nations Bunkhouse requires 
research on its history and determination of appropriate use upon restoration. 

City Council has consistently provided funding over the years for the enhancement of the 
Britannia Heritage Shipyard. Often. projects have been divided and phased, as funding was 
made available. This has extended the time frame to complete projects. The Building Plan 
Update is an effective tool to guide the development of the site and staff will continue to bring 
forward funding requests within the annual budget cycles. 
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3. "that staff consider the establishment of a Building Committee to determine the uses of 
the final three buildings, the Seine Net Loft, Japanese Duplex and Longhouse and 
develop a time/ine and costs to bring them up to code for those uses·, 

Prior to the establishment of the Britannia Heritage Shipyard Advisory Board, a Building 
Committee under the auspices of the Britannia Heritage Shipyard Society was in place. That 
role was reassigned to the Advisory Board when it was established and subsequently 
disappeared with the dissolution of the Advisory Board in 2008. 

As the site moves into the restoration I remediation of the remaining three buildings, the 
establishment of a Britannia Building Task Force to assist in guiding the use of and the stories 
to be told through those buildings would be beneficial. 

The Task Force would assist with the required research of original and past uses and potential 
adaptive reuses of the Japanese Duplex and the First Nations Bunkhouse. The Task Force 
could consist of a representative from the Britannia Heritage Shipyard Society, the Council 
liaison to the Britannia Heritage Shipyard Society, Britannia Site Supervisor, and two members 
of the community . A proposed Terms of Reference for this Task Force is attached. 
(Attachment 2) 

Financial Impact 

There is no financial impact at this time. Recruitment and training of volunteers will be 
supported through existing operating budgets at Britannia Heritage Shipyard. Restoration I 
remediation funding of the buildings will continue to be submitted in the annual Capital Plan. 

ConclUSion 

During the past ten years , the Britannia Heritage Shipyard has developed as an important City 
asset. The restoration of the next buildings will complete the restoration of the buildings on site 
and provide a viable tourist product that promotes the Council goal of -advancing the City's 
destination status and ensure our continued development as a vibrant cultural city .- Staffwill 
assist the Society with the recruitment and training of volunteers to provide greater access to 
the vessels that the Sociely working to restore. 

~~sen 
\ Britannia S Ie Su 

(604-718-8044) 
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introduction: 

Britannia Heritage Shipyard 
Business Plan Update 

2008·2012 

in January 2001, Richmond City Council adopted a five-year business plan for the Britannia 
Heritage Shipyard Site. This business pian was developed in conjunction with a steering 
committee and provided direction and a basis for decision making by council and staff in 
regards to the site. Five key areas o! recommendations were included within the business plan; 

1. Increased operating budget 
2. Revenue generation strategies 
3. Site improvements 
4. Management model 
5. Capital improvements 

With many of the recommendations from the 2001 business plan fulfilled, and the site nearing 
completion in terms' of major capital construction, the need to update the' business plan was 
recognized. A consultative process including staff, council members and community 
stakeholders was undertaken to review the vision and guiding principles and to make 
recommendations for the future development and operation of the site. 

Site Description: 

The Britannia Heritage Shipyard site is 3.29 hectares (8.14 acres) of land located along the 
Steveston Channel of the south arm of the Fraser River. Previously a cannery and then 
converted to a shipyard, the site is important to the historical development of Richmond and to 
Greater Vancouver. The Britannia Heritage Shipyard ·site has been owned by the City of 
Richmond since 1990. 

Britannia is a part of Steveston's historic Cannery Row extending from Garry Point and the Gulf 
of Georgia Cannery National Historic Site on the western end to London Heritage Farm in the 
east. The site-is 0.8 kilometres from Steveston Village Centre. 

To the south of the site is the Fraser River with Shady (Steveston) Island offshore in the river 
channel ; to the west, the BC Packers lands have mainly been developed and provide a much 
needed land link to the Steveston Village Centre; land to the east is owned by Small Craft 
Harbours Branch of the Department of Fisheries and Oceans, administered through the 
Steveston Harbour Authority; and to the north there are elementary school grounds and 
apartment buildings. 
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The site was originally a treeless marshland but the vegetation changed significantly in the 
1950s when the marsh was filled in with sand dredged from Stel/eston Channel. The twelve 
buildings on the site help to teU many stories about the multi-ethnic residents and workers at the 
Britannia Cannery and Britannia Shipyard: Chinese, European, First Nations and Japanese. 

The historical features on the Britannia site have a collective heritage value that exceeds their 
indiv-iduat heritage value. The boardwalk and bulkhead are significant features in the context of 
the buildings. The buildings are Important for the sense of community that is' achieved. by their 
mass and density. The buildings and site play an important role in the interpretation of the 
history of wooden boat building and repair. They are also the best heritage resources al/ailable 
to tell the story of early Steveston residential and socia-economic traditions. 

Current Reality: 

Physical Assets on the Site 

At the time the City acquired the Britannia site. it consisted of the following nine buildings: (west 
to east) 

1. Japanese Duplex dating from the'Jate 1880's and last used as a residence and net toft by 
two Japanese Canadian families. Substructure repairs completed in 2005 and currently not 
restored and not open to the public. 

2 
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2. First Nations Bunkhouse moved to the site circa 1950 and originally used to house First 
Nations cannery workers. Not restored and not open to the public. 

3. Seine Net Loft built in the 1950's and used to store nets for the fishing fleet. Currently used 
for site storage. Not restored and not open to the public. 

4. Murakami Boatworks dating from the 1880's and restored in 1992 and currently used as 
public and program space and offices for staff and Society. 

5. Murakami House also dating from the 1880's and restored in 1992. Currently used as 
exhibit space to show the living conditions of Japanese-Canadians pre 1941. 

6. The Richmond Boat Builders (Kishi) and boat yard originally built in the 1930's as a 
Japanese-Canadian boat building facility, restored and upgraded in 1993 and currently used for 
boat repair and restoration projects. 

7. Winch House built circa 1950 houses the winch and machinery for the Richmond Boat 
Builders ways. 

8 . Cannery Office 'dating from the 1880's and originally the office for the Britannia cannery and 
shipyard. Restoration scheduled for completion in 2009. 

9. Britannia Shipyard from which the site takes its name. Dating from the 1880's as first a 
cannery and later converted to a repair facility for the fishing fleet, this large building houses 
public. exhibits and working areas for vessel repairs and restoration . Dock area and floats used 
for vessel display and limited public programs. 

Several additional buildings have been added to the site since 1992 and now form the Historic 
Zone at the eastern end of the site. They are: 

1. Murchison House 1 and 2 were pre-fabricated in New Westminster and delivered to 
Richmond by barge to house Steveston fishermen. They were purchased by Mr. Murchison, the 
first customs and police officer in Steveston. They were relocated to the site in 1994 and will 
become a site orientation centre and gift shop, public washrooms and exhibit areas. 
Completion scheduled for 2008. 

2. Stilt House 1 and 2 were moved to the site in 2002 and are representative of fishermen 's 
housing in Steveston. They will be used for exhibit areas and caretakers quarters. To be open 
to the public in 2009. 

3 . Chinese Bunkhouse was originally used to house Chinese labourers in the cannery at 
Knight Inlet. It was relocated to BC Packers Steveston and subsequently relocated to Britannia 
in 1994. It will be used for exhibits and publiG reception space to be open in 2009. 

Description of Operations: 

The Britannia Heritage Shipyard site currently has approximately 30,00"0 annual visitors. Of the 
30,000 about 2500 participate in Shipyard tours, 9500 attend the annual Richmond Maritime 
Festival and 3500 participate in programs such as Yoga on the Dock· or Birthday parties. The 
remainder are walk-in, spontaneous visitors. 
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The site is wholly owned and operated by the City of Richmond and includes responsibilities for 
staffing, parks maintenance, building maintenance and uti!'ities. The current annual operating 
budget is approximately $220,000 and im~ludes a full-time site manager, two part-time 
programmers and two auxiliary staff who work on weekends and evenings. Volunteers are a 
significant support for the site with about fifty individuals active in this capacity . 

Capital development at the Britannia Heritage Shipyard has been supported by a $6,000,000 
investment by Council over the past ten years. Funding has been allocated for 2008 for the 
Historic Zone and capital requests for future years will focus on the Seine Net Loft (Building #9), 
the Japanese Duplex and the First Nations Bunkhouse. 

The Britannia Heritage Shipyard Society, with about fifty members and six active volunteers, 
operates some limited programming on the site and participates in wooden boat restoration . 

The Britannia Heritage Shipyard Advisory Board, appointed by Council upon the 
recommendation of the 2000 Business Plan, acts as a liaison to Council and advises on matters 
related to site development. All appointments to the Advisory Board terminate at the end of 
2008. 

ConcUlTent Pfans; 

A number of studies. plans and strategies have influenced the development of Britannia 
Heritage Shipyard and its operations in the p_ast. Most recently, the following documents have 
been developed since the 2000 Britannia Business Plan and inform the updated plan: 

Britannia Heritage Shipyard Historic-Zone DevefopmefJt Pfan (2004) 

This plan, developed in 2004, clearly outlines the steps required to improve the cluster of 
buildings at the eastern edge of the site including the cannery office, the Chinese Bunkhouse, 
the two Murchison houses and the two stilt pile houses. Two phases were Identified with Phase 
2 (relocating buildings onto foundations, finishing interiors and exteriors, landscaping and 
roadways and interpretation and displays) scheduled to be completed and open to the public in 
2008. 

Britannia Heritage SfJipyard MuJti·year Marketing & COmmunications Road·Map (2006) 

Endorsed by Council in September 2006 with the direction that strategies and actions be 
included in work plans and budget requests, this road-map provides guidance through the 
following recommendations: 

1. implement a branding program across all forms of communication 

2. develop a'n integrated marketing network 

3. enhance online presence 

4. further develop exhibits and interpretation 

5. expand product and program offerings 

6. build partnerships within the community 
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7. develop a fundraising program 

8. expand volunteer program 

9. develop a marketing resource plan 

.10. leverage public relations and media opportunities 

11. explore strategic advertising opportunities 
12. develop a visitor evaluation 'program 

City of Richmond Museum & Heritage Strategy: (2007) 

The vision, goals and objectives of this strategy were adopted by Council in June 2007 with the 
direction to prepare an implementation strategy. Central to the impacts or influences this 
strategy may have on the development and operations of the Britannia Heritage Shipyard are 
the following recommendations: 

1. Involve and engage the community 
2. Position Richmond as the leading integrated museum and heritage destination in the 

lower Mainland 
3. Build a new dynamic Destination Museum 
4. Create and promote a network of satellite museums, historic sites and heritage areas 

radiating out from the hub of the new Richmond museum 
5. Create and support excellence in heritage conservation standards through a revised 

heritage framework 
6. Assist the private sector in achieving the goals of heritage conservation 

In particular, two s.tatements which relate to governance, impact the future operational planning 
for Britannia: 

1. Create a ~Friends of Society at each of the major sites. 
2. Create a Council-appointed Museum & Heritage Task Force. 

Statement of Commemoration: 

In 1992 the Britannia Heritage Shipyard was designated by the National Historic Sites and 
Monuments Board of Canada as a National Historic Site. The following statement of 
commemoration informs the heritage significance of the site and provides guidance in 
determining the types of activities which might be appropriate for the site: 

"The buildings on this site are important components of a large complex of wOrkshops and 
dwellings that seNed the shore-based salmon fishery during its boom years ( 1890 - 1913). 
The historic property included Britannia Shipyard buitding itself Bnd two boatworks operated by 
Japanese-Canadians. Labourers and craftsmen of diverse cultural origins lived in houses on 
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site, and worked in salmon canneries, on the fishing boats, and in the boatworks. They built 
and serviced wooden fishing vessels for British Columbia's coastal salmon fleet. " 

National Hislon'c Sites of Canaqa 

Vision: 

The 2000 Business Plan vision for Britannia Heritage Shipyard was: 

"To be a publicly accessible waterfront heritage park and .working mUSeum with passive, active 
and interactive activities, focusing on the local industrial marine heritage. Emphasis is on the 

west coast wooden commercial fish boat building and repair that was historically based in 
Steveston; and the cultural mosaic and living conditions of the labour force on the Steveston 

waterfront" 

The new vision for 2008 was created with input from staff and many stakeholders and considers 
the need to provide a compelling and far·reaching future state for Britannia: 

Britannia Heritage Shipyard will be the best, heritage maritime experience in Canada. 

Mission: 

A mission is intended to define purpose for an organization. It defines the 'how' and the 'why' of 
the organization's services. No mission was developed in 2000, however, staff at the Shipyard 
have been working with the following statement to guide activities at the site: 

Preserve the Site 
Enhance the Visitor Experience 

Promote MaritilJ1e Skills 

Through the consultation process, it was determined that the Mission should be further clarified 
to be: 

Guiding Principles: 

Preserve the Site 
Enhance the Visitor Experience 

Promote the Maritime Experience. 

A number of guiding principles were developed in 2000 to guide decision making regarding 
capital projects and operations. These principles were reviewed in developing the business 
plan update and modified to reflect the current operations and status of the site. 

The Guiding_ Principles for 2008 for the development and operations of the Britannia Heritage 
Shipyard site are: 

1. The spatial context of the buflt environment should be retained in order to maintain the 
feeling of closeness to each other and to the water; 

2. The built environment should relate to the traditional activities on the site; 
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3. The landscape characteristics that renect the historical development of the land (including 
the plantings. natural features, landscape elements ego fences, established land uses, 
circulation patterns) should be retained. 

4. The depiction of living conditions should reflect those who worked In the Industries on the 
waterfront in the early 1900s (and not Richmond In general); 

5. The boat collection on display should be heritage boats of the type that would have been 
repaired at Britannia and should be accessible to the publJc; 

6. Interventions to the buildings will be guided by the Standards and Guidelines for the 
Conservation of Heritage places in Canad,,; 

7. Where possible, the built environment should be fully accessible; 

8. Where appropriate, interpretation should be Interactive; and 

9. Where possible, programming wu/ include traditional activities reflected in the site's 
statement of commemoration. 

Strategic Directions: 

A number of sfrategic directions were identified through the business plan I.)pdate process to 
assist council and staff with decision making for current and future development a-nd operations. 
They will be the keys to realizing the vision for the site and meeting its mission, 
The Strategic Directions and accompanying objectives for Britannia Heritage,Shipyard for 2008 
are as follows: 

1) Long~term site preservation 
a) To maintain the authenticity of the site 
b) To maintain and enhance the character and atmosphere of the site 
c) To maintain the historical integrity ofthe site. 
d) To improve access to the site and protect its assets 

2) Effective and efficient operations 
a) To clarify working relationships with key stakeholders 
b) To ensure staff and volunteer support allows for full utilization of the site's assets 
c) To implement the recommendations in the Marketing & Communications Roadmap 

3) An enhanced visitor experience 
a) To ensure effective community programs that balance community. needs and site 

specific objectives 
b) To add vibrant, dynamic and interactive activities to the site 
c) To develop ancillary services such as food services and gift shop 

In relation to the direction provided by the 2007 Museum & Heritage Strategy, ~long-term site 
preservatjon~ relates the need for a comprehensive conservation plan for each site and 
"effective and efficient operations" and "an enh~nced visitor experience" relate to the need for a 
comprehensive interpretation plan. 

23607()4 
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Implementation Plan: 

Each of the strategic directions for Britannia Heritage Shipyard is accompanied by specific 
initiatives which support implementation: 

Strategic Direction 1 Long Term Site Preservation 

Objectives: 
To maintain the authenticity of the site. 
To maintain and enhance the character and atmosphere of the site 
To maintain the historical integrity of the site. 
To improve access to the site and protect its assets. 

Initiative 
Action Ptan 

Ensure the Standards and Guidelines Review conservation needs annually and in conjunction with 
for the Conservation of Historic capital projects. 
Places in Canada are followed. 

Ensure familiarity with conservation guidelines for all on-site 
employees and project managers. 

Ensure project managers, film coordinator, etc work closely with 
contractors to ensure conservation Quidetines are followed. 

Ensure maintenance is completed in Review maintenance needs monthly. 
a timely and responsive manner. 

Communicate maintenance needs to appropriate City dept. 

Develop and implement a wayfinding Explore new technology to assist with wayfinding. 
program which allows for visitors to 
easily orient themselves upon arrival Review other sites for best practices. 
and throughout the site. 

Plan for and develop a site "entrance'. 

Complete necessary capital projects Complete historic zone. 
to finish the site. 
·see Capital Development section on Complete building #9 Seine Net Loft. 
page 11 for more detail. 

Complete Japanese Duplex. 

Comolete First Nations Bunkhouse. 
Add the dock to the capital inventory Submit a one lime capital request in 2009 budget, 
for public access and programming. 

236(1704 
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StrategIc DIrectIon 2 Effective and Efficient Operations 

Objectives: 
To clarify working relationships with key stakeholders. 
To ensure staff and volunteer support allows for full utilization of toe site's assets. 
To implement the recommendations in the Marketing & Communications Roadmap 

Init iat ive Action Plan 

Support the governance model Work with the Britannia Herilage Shipyard Society membership 
identified for Heritage Sites in section 10 transition to new role. 
4 of the Museum & Heritage Strategy 
by supporting the creation of a Work with the Britannia Heritage Shipyard Advisory Board 

·F~i~~~s of Bri~~.nla Heritage members to transition to roles with the "Friends of Britannia 
Shi ard Socie • Heritaoe Shiovard" or Ihe Museum & Heritaae Advisorv Board. 
Support Museum & Heritage Strategy Work with other slaff and human resources to support these 
recommendations regarding recommendations .. 
administrative structure of Heritage & 
Culture. 
Implement the Year 1, 2 & 3 Submit additionallev_el requests annually to support these 
recommendafions in the Marketing & initiatives. 
Communications roadmap 

Establish a pra:grarn to measure Develop a program to measure ongoing visitor satisfaction and 
visitor satisfaction and attendance. attendance. 

Increase staff to support enhanced Seek funding from the City and hire: 
operations Building Services' Worker (2008) 

Full-time Programmmer (2009) (include volunteer coordination 
duties at Britannia) 

Contract a caretaker for the Historic Zone (2008) 
Develop a contract with the on-site Wharfinger (2009) 

Work with HR to define status of Interpreters and hire on a cost-
recoverv basis as needed. 

Increase volunteer base Host recruiting and training events . 

Work with the City's VolUnteer Coordinator to develop a 
volunteer management plan which includes support for the 
Society. 

Improve management of volunteer Utilize the City's volunteer database to track volunteer hours 
base and commitment. (2009) 

Develop and provide volunteer training programs 
Offer-a variety of volunteer opportunities. 

Recoanize volunteers annuallv at Maritime F'estival. 

""n". 
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Strategic Direction 3 An enhanced visitor experience 

Objectives: 
Ensure effective community programs that balance community needs and site specific objectives 
Add vibrant, dynamic and interactive activities to the site 
Develop ancillary services 

Initiative 
Action Plan 

Deliver curriculum based school Align annual planning with the school year. 
programs in conjunction with other 
service providers including the Develop different programs for different grades based on 
Museum. curriculum. 

Work with the school district to share infonnation about program 
offerings and needs. 

Develoo a secondarv level oroaram. 
Identify and implement new Annually, survey program and event participants to determine 
programming and special event additional program needs and wants. 
opportunities. 

Consult with Society to identify new programming and event 
opportunities. 

Review market to ensure no dupli.cation of programming or 
event. 

Host focus groups to learn more about the needs of existing 
and potential program and event partiCipants. 

Annually, develop a program and event plan which adds and 
renews "nrol1ramminn. 

Develop on-site visitor experiences Review best practices for interactive experiences. 
for the spontaneous visitor. 

Coordinate with wayfinding plan. 

Evaluate the potential for a 'gift shop Develop specific business plans and propose operating models. 
and food services and implement if 
supported by business plan. 

Evaluate new opportunities as they Evaluate aU new opportunities for 'fit' with the Vision, mission, 
arise. guiding principles and strategic directions. 
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Capital Development: 

As outlined in the five year budget the Capital Development plan for Britannia is: 

Year Details Rationale Estimated 
Cost 

2009 Upgrades to the dock for public The dock provides a unique $675,000 
assembly uses. One time additional -area for programming and 
request revenue generation for the 

site, Including concerts, 
receptions and rentals. 

2009 Complete the Historic Zone As per the Historic Zone $500,000 
including the restoration of the plan, this completes this area 
Cannery Office, boardwalks and of the site and opens the 
landscaping, signage and buildings to the public. 
wayfinding and interpretive exhibits 
of lifestyles in early Steveston 

2010 Complete the Seine Net Loft Seismic stabilization to the $1 ,000,000 
repaIrs and restoration including substructure was completed 
the superstructure seismic in 2005. This completes the 
upgrade, electncal and fire work required to open the 
suppression systems and open 
storaae interoretation area. 

building to the public . 

2011 Complete the Japanese Duplex Seismic stabilization of the $750,000 
repairs and restoration including substructure was completed 
the superstructure seismic in 2005. This work enhances 
upgrades, electrical and fires the visitor experience to the. 
suppression systems, signage and whole site and creates 
wayfinding and interior upgrades public program spaces. 
for proaram deliverv-. 

2012 Restoration and repairs to the First This is the final building 
Nations Bunkhouse including restoration at the site. Until 
foundations, seismic stabilization, engineering and design work 
electrical and fire suppression is undertaken costs for 
systems and interpretive exhibits. restoration are unknown at 

this time. 

Conclusion: 

Britannia Heritage Shipyard is an important asset for our City and our community. Achieving the 
vision and mission through the strategic directions and guiding principles will ensure its 
continued success. 
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May 3, 2012 

1. Purpose: 

Britannia Heritage Shipyard Building Committee 
Terms of Reference 

The Britannia Heritage Shipyard Building Committee will : 

Attachment 2 

a) Advise and provide input into the development of the program for the Seine Net Loft 
facility and the stories to be told in the exhibits ; and , 

b) Guide the focus of the development of the program of the restoration and future use of 
the remaining two buildings: Japanese Duplex and the First Nations Building. 

2. Composition : 

a) The Building Committee will consist of 7 members: 

- Two members of Council 
- Three members from the Britannia Heritage Shipyard Society 
- The Britannia Site Supervisor 
- Project Manager, Project Development 

b) The members of the Building Committee will designate the Chair and Vice Chair. 

c) Meetings will be scheduled by the Building Committee Chair, based on the program of 
work to be undertaken. 

d) A quorum will be 50 % + 1 of the committee members. 

3. Terms 

The Term for the Building Committee shall be for the duration of each restoration project. 

4. Procedures 

a) Decision process is to be consensus based. 

b) The Committee will receive staff support from the City for the preparation of agendas 
and recording of meetings. 

c) The Chair, in conjunction with City staff, will prepare the agenda. Agendas will be 
distributed to committee members in advance of the meeting. 
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City of 
Richmond 

Report to Committee 

10 ~ -DTIq ;?Pj 2-V 1"2-

To: 

From: 

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee 

Vern Jacques 

Date: May 3, 2012 

File: 99 - FILE 
LATERl2012-Vo101 Acting Director, Recreation 

Re: Richmond Children's Charter 

Staff Recommendation 

That the Richmond Children First's "Richmond Children 's Charter," as presented in the report 
dated May 3, 20 12, m the Acting Director, Recreation, be endorsed. 

s 
Acting Director, Recreation 
(604-247-4930) 

Art. 2 

3527945 

FOR ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT USE ONLY 

CONCU OFG /i'ANAGER 

« V 
l:. ( ~ 

'---' 
REVIEWED BY t::v 
SUBCOMMITTEE rn NO 

D 
REVIEWED BY CAO .,.. YES/ NO 

(.J iB D 
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Staff Report 

Origin 

Richmond Children's First was initiated in 2004 as an umbrella of corrununity-based youth 
serving organizations. City staff have participated, with Council support, in Children's First 
activities since its inception. As part of this initiative staff have participated in a working 
committee to develop a Richmond Children's Charter. 

Richmond Children First has worked with children throughout the City of Richmond to develop 
a Charter specific to the needs and interests of children in Richmond. The Charter promotes the 
implementation of the UN Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC), which was ratified 
by Canada in 199] . 

Recently, Council received a letter asking that they endorse the Richmond Children's Charter 
(Attachment 1). This report provides the background and context for how the Richmond 
Children's Charter fits with the City's initiatives and it's vision of being " .... the most 
appealing, livable, and well-managed community in Canada. " 

Analysis 

Richmond Children First (RCF) is a community initiative that has been active in Richmond since 
2004. A list of the RCF Steering Committee members is provided in Attachment 2. Staff from 
both Community Services and Parks and Recreation represent the City on the Steering 
Committee, and various staff have participated in RCF Action Teams, including the Children' s 
Charter working committee. 

In 2005, Council endorsed the vision for "Richmond to be the best place in North America to 
raise children and youth." Consistent with this vision the City has pursued many positive 
initiatives for youth, including the development of the 2008-2012 Youth Service Plan: Where 
Youth Thrive. As well, the City is a signatory to the Public Agency Partner's Commitment to 
the Children and Youth of Richmond. This commitment outlines how the public agencies will 
work together to provide children and youth of Richmond access to: 

• Safe places to live, work and play 

• A healthy start in life, and a foundation for life 

• A supporting, caring community where children and youth feel they belong 

• Life long learning opportunities 

• Opportunities to reach their full potential 

By endorsing the Richmond Children's Charter (Attachment 3), Council could further 
demonstrate the City'S commitment to making Richmond the best place in North America to 
raise children and youth. 

Staff from Parks and Recreation and Community Services will support the Charter within 
existing programs and services. 
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Also, Staff are currently preparing the Social Development Strategy which will be presented in 
draft form to Council in the near future. Once the Strategy is adopted by Council, staff will be 
developing a work program for its implementation. Consideration will be given to how the 
Riclunond Children's Charter might be integrated into the implementation plan. 

Riclunond Children First will also be asking other agencies, such as School District No.38, the 
Ministry of Children and Family Development, and Vancouver Coastal Health to endorse the 
Charter. 

Financial Impact 

None. 

Conclusion 

The Richmond Children's Charter (Attachment 3) provides a children's lens to building a child 
and youth friendly City and support the City commitment, ''for Richmond to be the best place in 
North America to raise children and youth. " 

£Jh;0. 
Elizabeth Ayers 
Manager, Community Recreation Services 
(604-247-4669) 

EA:ea 

Lesley Sherlock 
Social Planner 
(604-276-4220) 

CNCL - 163



Attachment 1 

May7,2012 

Mayor and Council 
City of Richmond 
6911 No.3 Road 
Richmond BC 

Dear Mayor and Council, 

On behalf of Richmond children we are pleased to present to you, for endorsement, the Richmond 
Children's Charter (Appendix 1). 

Children grow up not only as part of a family, but also as part of a community. Research tells us that early 
human development - what happens to a child between birth and 12 years old - affects long term health, 
well-being and competence. Research is also helping us understand how community circumstances can be 
shaped to improve the lives of children. 

Richmond Children First, a community initiative active in Richmond since 2004, is made up of community 
agencies and public organizations, including the City of Richmond (Appendix 2). Funded by the Province of 
British Columbia and the United Way of the lower Mainland, Richmond Ch ildren First brings partners 
together to plan, build and expand capacity in the neighbourhoods and communities where children and 
families live, grow, play and learn. Richmond Children First activities are based on a strategic plan, 
developed in collaboration with community partners, which is research-based and builds on the needs of 
our ch ildren and the assets in our community. The vision of Richmond Chi ldren First is a child friendly 
community where 01/ children thrive, and one of our main goals is developing a community vision for 
children. 

The City of Richmond is recognized for its strong commitment to children, as evidenced through the many 
poliCies and strategies you have initiated and supported, induding being a signatory to the Public Agency 
Partners' Commitment to Children and Youth . This commitment outlines how you will wo rk together with 
other public partners to ensure that children and youth have: 
• Access to safe places to live, work, and play; 
• A healthy start in life, and a foundation for life; 
• A supporting, caring community where children and youth feel they belong; 
• lifelong learning opportunities; 
• And, opportun ities to reach their full potential. 

Interestingly, Richmond children have echoed these commitments in the creation of the Richmond 
Children's Charter. 

Over the last year, 3000+ Richmond children accepted the invitation to help shape the Richmond Children's 
Charter through words and drawings: 

RICHMOND CHILDREN FIRST 
8660 Ash Street, Richmond, Be V6Y 2S3 • Phone : 604.241.4035 

www.richmondchildrenfirst.ca 
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• 2500 elementary school children 'from 45 public and independent schools submitted bookmarks to 
the annual bookmark contest hosted by Richmond Public Health, depicting the theme, "Every 
Richmond child has the right to ... " 

• The voices of 350 preschoolers were included through the creation of 25 Magical Trees of 
Children's Rights submitted by child care centres, preschools, 5trongStart centres and family place 
programs. 

• 150 children attending summer camp programs submitted entries to the Richmond Children's 
Rights Summer Poster Contest. 

• And, 28 children from the Hamilton Out-of-School Program and the Mitchell Boys and Girls Club 
helped finalize the Richmond Ch ildren's Charter through rights activities, community visioning and 
the creation of the Richmond Children's Charter video. 

The Richmond Children's Charter promotes the implementation of the UN Convention on the Rights of the 
Child (UNCRC) at a commun ity level, where it can have a significant impact on children's lives. 

The United Nations General Assembly adopted the Convention on the Rights of the Ch ild in 1989. Th is 
important initiative addresses the rights of aU children and states that "the child, by reason of his physica l 
and mental immaturity, needs special safeguards and care, including appropriate legal protection, before 
as well as after birth". The Government of Canada ratified the UNCRC in 1991. These rights are the things 
that all children should have or be able to do. All the rights are connected to each other and all are equally 
important. As ch ildren grow, they have more responsibility to make choices and exercise these rights. 

The Richmond Ch ildren's Charter provides a children's lens to building a child-friendly city and can help 
guide policy decisions, programs and planning as they relate to children, not only for the city but for all 
organizations who support children. 

Your endorsement will be the first step in launching the Richmond Children's Charter in the broader 
community. We want to assure you that Richmond Children First partners share a collective responsibility 
for the health and well-being of our chi ldren and we are committed to introducing the Richmond Children's 
Charter with an invitation to organizations and groups to endorse the Charter by making a promise to 
children. The Children"s Charter will be celebrated, communicated through presentations and promotiona l 
materia ls, and we will continue to engage the voices of children so they are actively involved in creating 
their community's future. 

Sincerely, 

Kim Winchell 
Co-Chair 

~ 
David Phillips 
Co-Chair 

Richmond Children First Richmond Children First 

Attach. 
Appendix 1: Richmond Children's Charter 
Appendix 2: Richmond Children First Steering Committee: Membership 

RICHMOND CHILDREN FIRST 
8660 Ash Street, Richmond, Be V6Y 2S3 • Phone: 604.241.4035 
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Attachment 2 

Richmond Children First 

STEERING COMMITIEE 
1. Big Brothers Vancouver Melissa Wilson Assistant Program Director 

2. Boys and Girls Club of South Coast BC lason lee Manager, Clubs and Camp 

3. CHIMa Crisis Services Rebeca Avendano Director, Development & External Relations 

4. City of Richmond lesley Sherlock Social Planner, 

S. City of Richmond Elizabeth Ayers Manager, Community Recreation 

6. Famil Services of Greater Vancouver Kareen Hudson Manager 

7. Ministry for Childre n & Family Development David Phillips Community Serv ices Manager 

•• Richmond Addiction Services Rick Dubras Executive Director 

9. Richmond Family Place Kim Winchell Executive Director 

10. Richmond Mental Health & Addictions Mary lago Program Manager, Child & Youth Mental Health 

11. Richmond Mult icultura l Concerns Society Parm Grewal Executive Director 

12. Richmond Public Library Virginia McCreedy Youth Librarian 

13. Richmond School District Kathy Champion Director of Instruction, learning Services 

14. Richmond Society for Community Living Sue Graf Director of Children's Services 

1S. Richmond Youth Service Agency Marshall Thompson Executive Director 

16. Scouts Canada Viki Fanous Council Field Executive 

17. SUCCESS Mary Kam Director, Family & Youth Services 

lB. Touchstone Family Association Judy Valsonis Director of Operations 

19. Vancouver Coastal Hea lth - Richmond Diane Bissenden Director, Population & Family Health 

20. Child Care Resource and Referral (VRIS) Marcia MacKenzie Manager 

21. YMCA Jenny Payton Manager, Programs and Services 

Richmond Children First 

CHILDREN'S CHARTER ACTION TEAM 
City of Richmond Elizabeth Ayers Manager, Community Recreation 

Ministry for Children & Family Development David Phillips Community Services Manager 

Richmond Family Place Kim Winchell Executive Director 

Richmond School District l" Antrim Coordinator of Counsellin & Social Res onsibili 

Touchstone Family Association Judy Valsonis Director of Operations 

Vancouver Coastal Health - Richmond Dr. lames Lu Medical Health Officer 

Vancouver Coasta l Health - Richmond Chris Sal ado Mana er, Communi and Famil Health 

Child Care Resource and Referral (VRIS) Marcia MacKenzie Manager 

YMCA Jenny Payton Manager, Programs and Services 

May 2012 
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Richmond 
Children's Charter 

~~----------------------~-- -
RICHMOND CHILDREN HAVE ... 

I-The Right To Ploy .,-",. ....... _ ....... -. .. 
·~ __ -. .... """bo_-_.,Q1 

2-The Right To learn 
",_",...". to ...... by moQ-o .... ""'n· .-."'" 111 

....... _ ..... "' ....... -."" ....... -..-._-_. 
1hw¥>_ .......... 0l 

3-The Right To Belong o.nd Be Ourselves ___ ..... rigN .. --' .... W __ il_l __ ... ~ __ 

_ • --.., dog Thot is __ IIOIID.' ~. 000 $I 

·,_Oho_ ... ___ -~. , QI 

-~ eNId ~ "'" ~ .. bo .......... - 10'<"0*." IQI 

4-The Right To Be Loved 
and Hove A Family 

.,_ .... rigN ........ _~"".I>r9'It_-~_. 

""",,_lhorighl"'bo.""' __ ~·""".51 

5-The Right To Nutritious Food 
and A Healthy Life ·, ................. __ ... 1_',.. .... ·1£ ....... _51 

___ ...... _ .. _.""""'_~ •• 'CII 

6-The Right to a Home 
"e-. __ ._." tIuw\.ogol(f 

·, ..... &9oII ... o.r-lIuIl_~ .. ~-__ !i1 

7-The Right to Choose Friends 
"'_""righIo"''''''frioncIotroo.._aAno-IIrInoi, •• ",_-. __ .. _ll<>000<00''" v.st>Ioy. _9I 

8-The Right to Explore. Dream, 
Imagine, and Create ___ ""o;I!I .. ~ __ bofNoo· _._ 

·1_"" ..... _"'_.tOg....-.lI~Io_.· ............ 

9-The Right to Peace and Safety 
·1_""rigN_"'bo"'oo1-~"" • . n..~ __ ._ ...... ____ -... ____ -

~."".51 

IO-The Right to 8e Heard 
'I __ IV'M""'" qo-.o ... _""""" ......... 'n .w._"" ... _ ..... _ ..... __ ... ___ _ 

.... 01 __ ·_.51 

ll-The Right to Our Own Religion 
'1_!nO,;gN .. "'., W. _ n 

........ _ .......... booIIow'" ___ ID_io..·I.IIklo._'(f 

12-The Right to Q Clean Environment ·hwf _____ ".."._1OIIOi< ." 

.,_"" ....... ""'_""_.IK-.._" 

www.richmondchildrenfirst.ca 

Attachment 3 
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City of Richmond Report to Committee 

fi: //,.44 ... ;y CO.,n,m. J"-'le S; ef'tJ/2. 

To: Planning Committee Date: May 24. 2012 

From: Brian J . Jackson. MCIP. Acting General File: 0I-0100-20-ACEN1-
Manager 0112012-Vo10l 
Planning & Development 

Re: RICHMOND ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON THE ENVIRONMENT (ACE): 2011 
ANNUAL REPORT AND 2012 WORK PLAN 

Staff Recommendation 

That: 
(I) The 20 II Richmond Advisory Committee On The Environment (ACE) Annual Report be 

received; and 
(2) The 2012 Richmond Advisory Committee On The Environment (ACE) Work Plan bc 

endorsed . 

Brian 1. J son, Mel?, Acting General Manager 
Planning & Development 

Alt 2 

BJJ: dj 

FOR ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT USE ONLY 

ROUTEOTo: CONCURRENCE CONCURRENCE OF ACTING GENERAL 

Y«~ MANAGER.r ~ 
Parks f Avv 
Sustainability Y NO 

• • 
RevIEwED BY TAG YES NO 

R(/fX;~) ~ 
NO 

SUBCOMMITIEE 8'# 0 ~ 0 
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Staff Report 

Origin 

1. The Richmond Advisory Committee on the Environment (ACE) is required to: 
- present an Annual Report (see Attachment 1) to City Counci l, and 
- prepare a Work Program and Budget for the coming year (see Attachment 2). 

Findings of Fact 

Commillee Mandate 
The Richmond Advisory Committee on the Environment (ACE) is appointed for the following 
purposes: 

to provide advice to City Council on environmental issues of concern to the community; 
to generate independent and credible information on key environmental issues; 
to anticipate and advise Council and staff of potential problems and opportunities for 
environmental sustainability; 
to review and monitor the existing situation and trends to identify environmental concerns; 
to work with City staff to encourage and co~ordinate public participation in the identification 
and development of so lutions to environmental issues; 
to help enhance public awareness of environmental issues; 
to provide environmental information to the Agricultural Advisory Committee (AAC); and 
to assist representing the City on the Vancouver International Airport Authority 
Environmental Advisory Committee (YVREAC). 

The Committee consists of: 
Thirteen (13) voting members appointed for (2) year terms; 
One (I) voting member who also sits on the YVREAC, appointed for a two (2) year term 
(Mr. Saleh Haidar); 
One (1) non-voting member who is an alternate member to the YVREAC, appointed for a 
two (2) year term (Mr. Paul Shapp); and 
one (1) non~voting Council liaison (Councillor Chak Au). 

Analysis 
1. 2011 ACE Annual Report 

The 2011 ACE Annual Report (see Attachmen t J) clearly demonstrates a high level of 
vo lunteerism, professionalism and commitment to environmental stewardship and 
promotion in Richmond. 

2. 2012 ACE Work Program 
The proposed 2012 ACE Work Program (see Attachment 2) is aligned with the Official 
Community Plan (OCP) (e.g., the 1999 OCP Natural and Human Environment Policies ~ 
including effectively managing environmentally sensitive areas of the City), 
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The proposed ACE 2012 Work Program activities include: 
Providing input to the 2041 acp and Environmentally Sensitive Areas Updates; 
Providing comments to City staff on certain proposed policies (TBD by Council and 
staff), 
Providing comments to City staff on proposed development related activities that are 
located on or near lands that are considered environmentally sensitive, 
Being kept up to date on the Airport Fuel pipel ine proposal. 
Consider publishing an ACE information brochure to inform the public regarding 
what the Committee is and does (e.g., general environmental activities, Earth Day, 
the Salmon Festival),] 
Communicating with the development community to support sustainable practices 
(e.g. agricultural related development proposals). 

Financial Impact 

None 

Conclusion 

ACE: 
has worked diligently to advance the City 's 1999 OCP environmental management policies 
including updating the proposed 2041 OCP ESA Management Strategy 
proposes a positive 20 12 Work program. 

< T~nager 
Policy Planning 
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City of 
Richmond 

ATTACHMENT 1 

Richmond Advisory Committee 
on the Environment 
ANNUAL REPORT 

6911 No.3 Road, Richmond, BC V6Y 2CI 

2011 ANNUAL REPORT I Page 112 

Purpose 

Purpose: The purpose of this update is to report on the Richmond Advisory Committee on the 
Environment (ACE) 2011 activities 2011. 

The Year In Review ... A Message from the Co-Chairs (Saleh Haidar and Gordon Kibble) 
- 111 2011, ACE applied its environmental kllow/el/ge alld experience to provide constructive 

feedback to staff and tIre development com""mily. Examples include: 
- the update 011 II,e implemelltatioll 0/ the City's Pesticide Bylaw, 
- lite opportunity to providefeedhack Oil lite City's compost pick-up ami recycling programs, 

- As well ACE addressed lhe mailer of better meeting its quorum which it is anticipated to have 

• 

• 

• 

resolved by all approved amendment to tir e Committee's Terms of Reference which im10lved a 
small reductioll ill tire required attelldallce at meetillgs. This will be closely monitored over tire 
next year. 

2011 Work Program Highlights 
Planning Policies: 
- Through presentations from City staff, ACE provided comments and advice on key City 

initiatives such as the Pesticide Bylaw, current recycling and composting programs and 
commented on Smart Meters as requested by Council. 

- The Committee also provided comments on City initiatives such as the District Energy 
program for the Alexandra Neighbourhood of West Cambie. 

- As City Staff provides the Committee with updates, ACE, as requested and as information 
becomes available, will stands prepared to provide comments, as necessary and requested. 

Development Reviews: 
- ACE provided comments on development related projects that impact, either the foreshore 

areas of the City, or lands that are envirorunentally sensitive. 
- Two significant projects that ACE provided comments on were the proposed Riclunond Island 

Marina project, and proposed EcoWaste development in the Fraser Lands area. 
Education: 
- With the vast amount of infonnation that is related with the topic of environmental 

management practice, ACE received infonnation packages on City policies and activities and 
provided constructive feedback including: 
- The use of pesticides for cosmetic use and wha legislate the sale of such products, 

- Recycling and the composting of household waste, to increase co llection, 
- Improving the awareness aflaeal initiatives toward environmental protection from Metro 

Vancouver's Environment and Parks Committee, and the sharing of inform at ian through 
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national news articles. 

• Commullity Outreach: 
ACE members have discussed the opportunity to be more involved in the conununity as 
indicated in their Terms of Reference, such as creating: 

an information brochure that may be distributed to the public at events such as the City's 
Earth Day events and the Salmon Festival. 
an information newsletter to provide public information on environmental protection and 
sustainability practices was also considered. This discussion will continue in 2012. 

• Terms of Referellce A mendment (TOR): 
In 2011 , the ACE quorum was reduced from eight (8) to seven (7) to bettcr enable ACE to 
meet its quorum requirements. The so lution included a reduction of the main ACE member 
appointment to the YVR Noise Management Committee. In previous years, this ACE 
membership was included as a representatives to the YVR NMC. The membership was 
removed from the recommendation of the "Richmond Airport Noise Citizens Advisory Task 
Force" and to have this representative report directly to General Purposes Committee. The 
ACE TOR was amended to reflect the removal of this main, but the required ACE quorum 
remained. The recent ACE TOR amendment to reduce the required quorum keeps the ratio of 
member attendance to ACE meetings as before. 

2011 ACE Membership: 
Co· Chair 
S. Haidar (YVR Environment Committee) and G. Kibble 

D. Coutts 
P. Grindlay 
F. San 
G. Sihola 
R. Tse 
C. Wang 
T. Zhong 

J. Fisher 
A. Leung 
P. Schaap (YVR Env. alternate) 
S. Sugita 
B. Vernier 
Z. Xie 

Councillor D. Dang, Council liaison 
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ATTACHMENT 2 

ACE 2012 WORK PROGRAM 

Activities 2012 Calendar 
J F M A M J J A S 0 N 0 

1. Meetings X X X X X X X X X X X 
2. Annual Report X X 
3. Possible Promotion: 

- Earth Day X 
- Salmon Festival X 
- Consider a public X 

information Brochure 
- Consider a public X 

information Newsletter 
- Communicate developers 

to promote best Ongoing 
sustainability practices 

- Comment on the proposed 2041 OCP 
4 . Planning and Policy ESA update 

- Other as requested 
5. Development Reviews - Review and comment as reQuired 
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To: 

City of 
Richmond 

Planning Committee 

Report to Committee 

'/P.' t1/q/N?/~ Cl?~~ . ..::ru ..... ~ s: ;:;> 0 ,I ~ 
Date: May 23, 2012 

From: Brian Jackson, Acting Genera l Manager, 
Planning & Development 

File: 

Re: Richmond Comments: Proposed Greater Vancouver Regional District Regional 
Growth Strategy Amendment Bylaw 1160,2012 

Staff Recommendation 

That, as per the slaff report titled: "Richmond Comments: Proposed Greater Vancouver Regional 
District Regional Growth Strategy Amendment Bylaw 1160,2012", the Metro Vancouver (MY) 
Board be advised that the City of Richmond accepts the proposed Greater Vancouver Regional 
District Regional Growth Strategy Amendment Bylaw 11 60,2012. 

BJJ:ttc 

Att.2 

FOR ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT USE ONLY 

ROUTED To: CONCURRENCE 

7;;JlJr;;;~':: ~ENERAL MANAGER 
Parks Y g:::N 0 
Law Y [V'N 0 
sustainability Y NO 

, 
V(J 

REVIEWED BY TAG ~ NO 
Re/[3:P:t) YES NO 

SUBCOMMITIEE t o B"~ 0 

3Sl4599 CNCL - 175



May 23, 2012 -2-

Staff Report 

Origin 

On April 12, 2012, the City received a request [Tom the Metro Vancouver Board to consider 
accepting a proposed Greater Vancouver Regional District Regional Growth Strategy (RGS) 
Amendment Bylaw 1160,2012 (Bylaw), to change how certain RGS "Conservation and 
Recreation" designated lands are managed. The City has a comment deadline of60 days (i.e., by 
June II , 2012. (Attachment 1). 

This report addresses Metro Vancouver's request for Richmond to comment. 

Council's 2011-214 Term Goals 

This report addresses the Council Tenn Goals # 6 Intergovernmental Relations and 
# 7 Managing Growth and Development. 

Background 

Context 

The MV Regional Growth Strategy (RGS) was approved by Metro Vancouver on July 29, 2011. 
Changes to the approved RGS designations may occur by the following three processes: Type 1: 
Major, Type 2: Minor (A) and Type 3: Minor (B) (see Attachmen t 2 for details). 

The proposed Bylaw involves a RGS Type 1 Major amendment which involves the following: 
- Two formal rounds for a local government comment: 

1 5\ opportunity is a minimum 30 day notification period where local government response 
is optional. Note that if there is no response, MV assumes that the local government has 
no comment. (Richmond did not comment as the proposed Bylaw does not affect the 
City). 

2nd opportunity is a maximum 60 day acceptance period for the actual proposed bylaw 
where local government response is optional. Note that if there is no response, MV 
deems that the local government is OK with (accept) the proposal. 

A Public Hearing: Not required 
All local governments need to accept: Yes 
To adopt: MB Board a 50% + I weigbted MY Board. 

RGS "Conservation and Recreation" Definition 

In the RGS the det:inition of "Conservation and Recreation" (R&C) is as follows: Conservation 
and Recreation areas are intended to protect significant ecological and recreation assets, 
including: drinking watersheds, conservation areas, wildlife management areas and ecological 
reserves, forests, wetlands, riparian corridors, major parks and recreation areas, ski hills and 
other tourist recreation areas. 

CNCL - 176



May23,2012 

Proposed RGS Amendment Bylaw Details 

General 

- 3 -

The RGS manages changes within the RGS Urban Containment Boundary, from "Conservation 
and Recreation" designated lands, to another RGS designation (e.g., General Urban), in two 
ways, namely: 
1. For most RGS "Conservation and Recreation" re-designations, by a RGS Type 2 Minor (A) 

amendment: or 
2. For those RGS "Conservation and Recreation" fe-designations which involve only 

Conservation and Recreation lands used/or commercial extensive recreation/oeili/ies 
(e.g., golf courses, country clubs)", by a Type 3 Minor (B) RGS amendment (e.g., 50% + I 
MV Board vote, no MV Board public hearing and invited local government comment). 

Coquillam's Request 

Coquitlam is requesting an amendment to the RGS, specifically to delete. fTom the RGS 
Section 6.3.4 (b), the policy: "Conservation and Recreation lands utilized only for commercial 
extensive recreationfacililies ". The reason that Coquitlam is requesting this change is to 
respond to its citizens' requests for better RGS Conservation and Recreation land protection by 
proposing that all RGS R&C changes be a Type 2 - Minor (A) amendment which requires higher 
approval criteria to re-designate than a Type 3 - Minor (B) amendment. 

Analysis 

Protecting Richmond 's Regional Growth Strategy Planning Interests 

Richmond's Regional Growth Strategy planning interests are to: 

I. Protect the City ' s autonomy in decision making, 
2. Ensure effective City community planning, 
3. Participate co-operatively in effective regional planning, to create a World Class livable 

region by flexibly balancing the City's regional and community planning interests with those 
of the Region. 

Richmond RGS (R&C) Designation 

In Richmond, RGS Conservation and Recreation designated lands include Terra Nova, The 
Garden City Lands, Department of National Defence Lands, the West Dyke and the north part of 
Sea Island. In Richmond, any RGS redesignations would acceptably involve a Type 2 Minor (A) 
amendment. (Richmond's golf courses are in RGS Agricultural designated area.) Richmond has 
no RGS "Conservation and Recreation lands utilized only for commercial extensive recreation 
facilities". 

Summary 

City staff have reviewed the proposed Bylaw and find that it is acceptable, as it: (1) achieves the 
above City interests, (2) does not affect the City and (3) enables all C&R amendments to be 
made only by a Type 2 Minor (A) amendment, which is the approach which Richmond has 
accepted for itself. 
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Financial Impact 

None 

Conclusion 

Staff have reviewed Metro Vancouver's Proposed Regional Growth Strategy Amendment 
Bylaw 1160, 2012 and recommend that Council advise the MV Board that it accepts it, as it does 
not affect the City. 

y rowe, 
Manager, Policy Planning 
(4139) 

TIC:cas 

Attachment 1: Metro Vancouver's Proposed Regional Growth Strategy Amendment Bylaw 1160, 2012 

Attachment 2: Summary Chart - MV RGS Amendment Procedures 
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~ 4330 Kingsway. Burnaby. BC, Ca nada VSH 4G8 604·432-6200 www.metrovancouver.org 

ATTACHMENT 1 

I ! D8J~:1 
01$1-- 30- RGST.~ 

Board Secretariat and Corporate Information Department 
Tel. 604·432~6250 Fax 604-451-6686 

April 4, 2012 

Mayor Malcolm Brodie 
and Members of Council 
City of Richmond 
6911 No. 3 Road 
Richmond , BC V6Y 2C1 

Dear Mayor Brodie and Members of Council: 

PHOTOCOPI~ i) 

APR 1(1 2012 

& Dlt~~rCi) 

File: CP-11,Ol-RGS-14 

> .. 
;1" RIC"" 

:;:.'1.. DATE ~O 
() "t-

O 
APR 1 2 2012 

C) 
~ RECEIVED r!Y 

Re: 
~~~ 

Acceptance of Greater Vancouver Regional District Regional Growth StrategV"·=::O­
Ame ndment Bylaw 1160, 2012 

Metro Vancouver has received a request from the City of Coquitlam to amend Metro Vancouver's 
Regional Growth Strategy Bylaw. The amendment would remove the following words from section 
6.3.4 (b) of the Regional Growth Strategy: ·Conservation and Recreation lands utilized on ly for 
commercial extensive recreation facilities. ~ 

This section is currently written as follows : 
u6.3.4 The following Type 3 minor amendments require an affirmative 50%+1 weighted vote of the 
Metro Vancouver Board and do not require a regional public hearing: 
b) for sites with in the Urban Containment Boundary, amendments from Industrial, Mixed 
Employment, Conservation and Recreation lands utilized only for commercial extensive recreation 
facilities, or General Urban land use designations to any olher such regional land use 
designations.~ 

This is a Type 1 amendment because it involves a change to the minor amendment process of the 
Regional Growth Strategy. Type 1 amendments require unanimous acceptance from all affected 
local governments. . 

The Metro Vancouver Board gave first and second readings to Regional Growth Strategy 
Amendment Bylaw 1160, 2012 on March 30, 2012. Under the provisions of the Local Government 
Act, Metro Vancouver's affected local governments have 60 days from receipt of this letter in which 
to consider acceptance of this Regional Growth Strategy Amendment Bylaw. At the conclusion of 
the 60 day period, staff will be reporting to the Board on the status of acceptance, and if 
appropriate, whether the Bylaw may be given final adoption. 

You are requested to consider acceptance of this amendment to the Regional Growth Strategy. 
Please provide any response to this request in the form of a Council/Board resolution and submit 
to me at paulette.vetleson@metrovancouver.org within 60 days of receipt of this letter. If you have 
any questions with respect to the amendment, please contact Jason Smith, Regional Planner, at 
778-452-2690 or jason.smith@metrovancouver.org. More information about the Regional Growth 
Strategy can be found on our website at www.metrovancouver.org. 
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Acceptance of Greater Vancouver Regional District Regional Growth Strategy Amendment Bylaw 1160, 2012 
To: Mayor Brodie and Members of Council , City of Richmond 
Page 2 of 2 

Since Iy, 

L Paul e Vetteson 
" Mana er/Corporate Secretary 

PVlGRlcd 

Attachment 
Report to the Metro Vancouver Board on March 30, 2012, titled 'Request by the City of Coquitlam 
for Type 1 Amendment to the Regional Growth Strategy', dated February 20, 2012 

6065022 
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To: 

me t r ov a n co uv e r Gfeal~ fV~ nrouver ReRIon.1 I Oistricl- Greater V~ ncOllvcf Watllf Oi ~\,kl 

Urea terVancower SeWefJ«!! and Or.linJg2 Dis 1ri(:1 - Me Iro Va IlCQl,Ne. Houslf1l Corporallon 

4330 Ki ngsway, Burna by. BC, C.1nada VSH 4G8 604·4]2-6200 www.melrovancQuyer.org 

Regional Planning and Agriculture Committee rv1eeting Date: tv1arch 9, 2012 

Regional Planning and Agriculture Committee 

From: Jason Smith, Regional Planner 

Date: 

Subject: 

Metropolitan Planning, Environment and Parks Department 

February 20, 2012 

Request from the City of Coquitlam for a Regional Growth Strategy 
Amendment 

Recommendation: 
. l . .'."'".' . , .'--~ . 

That the Board: 

a) Introduce and give fi rst and second reading to Greater Vancouver Regional Distric t 
Regional Growth Strategy Amendment Bylaw No. 1160, 2012; and 

b) Direct Metro Vancouver staff to send the Greater Vancouver Regional District 
Regional Growth Strategy Amendment Bylaw No. 1160, 2012 to all affected local 
governments for consideration of acceptance. 

1. PURPOSE 

To introduce a Regional Growth Strategy Amendment Bylaw that would remove reference to 
"Conservation and Recreation lands utilized for commercial extensive recreation facilities" 
from the minor amendment process. The removal of this clause would mean that this land 
use would follow a similar amendment process to other areas designated in the Regional 
Growth Strategy as Conservation and Recreation. This request was made by the City of 
Coquitlam during the Regional Growth Strategy acceptance process. 

2. CONTEXT 

The City of Coquitlam requested thallhe phrase ·Conservation and Recreation lands utilized 
only for commercial extensive recreation facilities~ included in section 6.3.4 (b) of the 
Regional Growth Strategy be deleted. This request was made by resolution of the City of 
Coquitlam Council in March, 2011 (Attachment 1). 

Section 6.3.4 is part of the Regional GroVoIth Strategy minor amendment process. Any 
changes to minor amendment process are considered to be Type 1 amendments. Type 1 
amendments require unanimous acceptance of all affected local governments. 

The Metro Vancouver Board responded to the City of Coquitlam's request by initiating a Type 
1 amendment process at their September 23. 2011 Board meeting. The Board chose to 
delay introduction of the Bylaw because the Type 1 process requires a 60 day period for 
acceptance by affected local governments, which would have extended beyond the term of 
the previous Board. Initiating the Bylaw in 2012 avoided having the bylaw amendment 
considered by two different Boards. 
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The Regional Growth Strategy (RGS) sets out that any changes to the Conservation and 
Recreation area requires a two-thirds vote of the Board and a regional public hearing. 
However, the RGS section 6.3.4(b) includes a provision to allow Conservation and 
Recreation lands to be re-designated by a simple majority vote if those lands are used for 
commercial extensive recreation facilities, and are situated within the Urban Containment 
Boundary. 

This section is currently written as follows, with the portion that is proposed to be removed in 
italics: 

"6.3.4 The following Type 3 minor amendments require an affirmative 50%+1 weighted vote 
of the rv1etro Vancouver Board and do not require a regional public hearing: 
b) for sites within the Urban Containment Boundary, amendments from Industrial, Mxed 
Employment, Conservation and Recreation fands utilized only for commercial extensive 
recreation facilities, or General Urban land use designations to any other such regional land 
use designations~. 

The City of Coquitlam had initially requested the clause to allow increased flexibility to 
change land use designations for those particular uses, such as golf courses. However, the 
City has subsequently determined that this clause is not necessary, and requested that the 
clause be removed. Metro Vancouver staff support the proposed amendment. 

Regional Planning Pdvisory Committee (RPAC) Comments 
RPAC (formerly known as the Technical Advisory Committee or TAC) supports the flletro 
Vancouver staff recommendation to amend the Regional Growth Strategy as proposed by 
Coquitlam . 

Process and T imeline for Type 1 Jl.mendment 
The tv1etro Vancouver Board initiated this amendment at its September 23, 2011 meeting. 
Notice of this proposed amendment was sent to all affected local governments in January 
2012, as required by section 6.4.2 of the Regional Growth Strategy. Notice is also required to 
all members of the Intergovernmental A£lvisory Committee (composed largely of members of 
RPAC and provincial ministries). No comments have been received to date. Any comments 
received in response to this notice will be provided to the rv1etro Vancouver Board at the time 
fi rst and second reading is considered. 

If the Board gives initial readings to the amendment Bylaw, then it must be sent to all 
affected local governments for acceptance. Unanimous acceptance from all affected local 
governments is required in order to proceed. Affected local governments wjll have 60 days to 
consider their acceptance once the request has been received. A public hearing is not 
required for Type 1 amendments. If unanimous acceptance is achieved, the Bylaw will be 
brought back to the Board for final readings and adoption. 

3. ALTERNATIVES 

The following options are provided for consideration: 

That the Board: 

a) Introduce and give first and second reading to Greater Vancouver Regional District 
Regional Growth Strategy Ivnendment Bylaw No. 1160, 2012; and 

CNCL - 182



Or 

b) Direct l\Ietro Vancouver staff to send the Greater Vancouver Regional District 
Regional Growth Strategy Amendment Bylaw No. 1160, 2012 to an affected local 
governments for consideration of acceptance] 

That the Board decline to advance a request to amend the Regional Growth Strategy. 

4. CONCLUSION 

r.letro Vancouver staff support the proposed amendment requested by the City of CoquitJam 
as it will provide a higher degree of protection for designated Conservation and Recreation 
lands throughout the region. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1 - Request from the City of Coquitlam for Type 1 Regional Growth Strategy Amendment. 

2 - Greater Vancouver Regional District Regional Growth Strategy Amendment Bylaw No. 
1160,2012. 
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Coc uitlam 
-----

March 22, 2011 
OUf Fire: 01-0480-20/R013-01/2011-1 
Doc #: 104740S.vl 

Christina DeMarco 
Regional Development Division Manager 
Policy and Planning Department 
Metro Vancouver 
4330 Klngsway 
Burnaby, Be VSH 4G8 
Christina.DeMarco@metrov3ncouver.org 

Clear Ms. DeMarco: 

EMAllED AND FAXED 

RE: Redesignation of the Westwood Plateau Golf Course lands 

Please be advised that at the March 21, 2011 Regu lar Meeting of Council for the City of 
CoquiUam, the followihg resolution was adopted: 

That the Metro Vancouver Board be requested to: 

1. Redesignate the Westwood Plateau Golf Course lands, which are presently 
designated in the proposed Regional Growth Strategy (RGS) as "General 
Urban" and in the City of Coquitlam's Officia l Community Plan as "Extensive 
Recreation" to the RGS "Conservation and Recreation" land use designationj 

2. Delete the.phrase, "Conservation and Recreation lands utilized only fo r 
commercia l e;q:ensive recreati'on facilities" in Section 6.3.4 .. b) on page 60 of 
the proposed RGSI and, 

3. Extend the "Conservation and Recreation" land use designation to exl sting 
public parks and protected riparian corridors in Coquitlam as shown on the 
attached map. 

( i\y of (Clql.ll t\~m 

JCOO Gulldford Way, C()Q(;otl~rn. ilC v~6 7'tl 
Offi~t': 60.4. ~J'/. ~ooo 
",,,,·!.'-~(>t;Ult l .. rna 

File t : OI4l8().!OIRDD-OlllO ll·l 1>« t; 11»7.;(\j,y\ 
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March 22, 2011 

Please find enclosed a copy of the report of the Generah;'Aah.ager Planning and 
Development dated March 17, 2011 entitled "suppremi:!~lary . r.nfo rmation Regarding 
Notic.e of Motion - Redeslgnation of the Westwcio.d. Platea.u Golf Course lands!'. 

Should you have any questions or require furthe r informati~n with respect to this 
matter please contact Jim Mcintyre, General Manager Plan:ning and Development 
at 604-927-3401. 

Yours truly, 

, 

c - Jim Mcintyre, General Manager Planning and Development 

File #": Ol-04BO-20JRD13-01J2011-1 Doc It: l04740S.vl 
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GREATER VANCOUVER REGIONAL DISTRICT REGIONAL GROWTH STRATEGY 
AMENDMENT BYLAW NO. 1160, 201 2 

A Bylaw to Amend Greater Vancouver Regional District Regional Growth Strategy Bylaw 
Number 1136, 2010. 

WHEREAS the Board of the Greater Vancouver Regional District adopted the Greater 
Vancouver Regional District Regional Growth Strategy Bylaw Number 1136, 2010 on the 
29th day of July, 2011; 

NOW I THEREFORE, the Board of the Greater Vancouver Regional District in open 
meeting assembled ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The "Greater Vancouver Regional District Regional Growth Strategy Bylaw 
Number 1136, 2010" is hereby amended by deleting the following from Section 
6.3.4 (b): 

Nt Conservation and Recreation lands utilized only for commercial extensive 
recreation facilities", 

2. The official citation for this bylaw is "Greater Vancouver Regional District 
Regional Growth Strategy Amendment Bylaw No. 1160, 2012.~ This bylaw may 
be cited as -Regional Growth Strategy Amendment Bylaw No. 1160, 2012: 

Read a First time this day of 

Read a Second time this day of 

Read a Third time this day of 

Reconsidered, Passed and Finally Adopted this 

Paulette A. Vetleson 
Corporate Secretary 

,2012. 

,2012. 

,201 2. 

day of 

Greg Moore 
Chair 

,2012 
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Regional Growth Strategy Land Use Designation Amendment 

C Urban Conta inment Boundary RGSOesignations 
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ATTACHMENT 2 

Summary Chart - MV RGS Amendment Procedures 

Type 1 RGS Amendment - Major 
Involves: two formal rounds for local government comment: 
_ 15t opportunity is a minimum 30 day notification period where local government response is 

optional 
If no local government response, MV assumes that the local government has no comment 

- 2nd opportunity is a maximum 60 day acceptance period for the actual bylaw where local 
government response is optional (LGA 857 (3) and (4)) 

If no local government response, MV deems that the local government is OK with (accept) 
the proposal (LGA 857 (6)) 

Public Hearing: Not required 
All local governments need to accept: Yes 
To adopt: MB Board a 50% + 1 weighted MV Board. 

Type 2 RGS Amendment - Minor A 
Involves one formal round for local government comment: 
- A minimum 30 day notification period where local government response is optional 

If no local government response, MV assumes that the local government has no comment 
- No formal second opportunity (see below), 

Public Hearing: Yes: a local government may comment at the public hearing (a short window) 
If no local government response, MV assumes that the local government has no comment 
LGA 892 (3) (2 consecutive issues of a newspaper, the last publication to appear not less 
than 3 and not more than 10 days before the public hearing 

All local governments need to accept: - No 
To adopt: MB Board a 2/3 weighted MV Board. 

Tvpe 3 RGS Amendment - Minor B 
Involves one formal round for local government comment: 
- A 30 day minimum notification period where local government response is optional 

If no local government response, MV assumes that the local government has no comment 
Public Hearing: No 
All local governments need to accept: - No 
To adopt: MB Board a 50% + 1 weighted MV Board. 

Prepared by Policy Planning 
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City of 
Richmond 

Report to Committee 

To: Planning Committee 

fr ~/q/?/~/n:J Co a'1-?-f • '::;-u/\ e s: oR 0 J <­
Date: May 23, 2012 

From: Brian Jackson, MCIP File: 06-4045-20-14/2012-
Acting General Manager, Planning & Development Vol 01 

Re: Hamilton Area Plan 
First Public Survey Findings and Proposed Development Options 

Staff Recommendation 

That staff proceed with Phase 2 of the Hamilton Area Plan Update with the three proposed 
development options included in this Report dated May 23, 2012 from the Acting General 
Manager of Planning and Development. 

Brian Jackson, MelP 
Acting General Manager, Planning & Development 

Att.5 

FOR ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT USE ONLY 

RauTEoTo: CONCUR~CE CONCURRENCE OF ACTING GENERAL 
Parks Y~O 

~~ Envi ronmental Sustainability Y~O 
Transportation Y~,O 
Law and Community Safety Administration Y NO 
Community Services Y~O 
Community Social Development Y 0 
REVIEWED BY TAG 

~ 
NO I ?fj,EWEr:p ~;o YES NO 

SUBCOMMITIEE ~ D B't D I ) 
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May 23, 2012 - 2 -

Staff Report 

Origin 

The purpose of this Report is to provide an update on progress regarding the first Public Survey 
and Open House for the Hamilton Area Plan Update and an overview of three (3) proposed 
Development Options to be presented at the second public Open House, ideally in late June 
2012. 

Finding of Fact 

As part of the 2041 OCP Update Concept, with public support, in April 20 11, Council endorsed 
undertaking more detailed planning to densify the Hamilton, East Carnbic, Blundell and Garden 
City neighbourhood shopping centres. The 2041 OCP Update Concept anticipated, that with 
Council's direction, staff will lead and undertake a planning process first for the Hamilton 
Neighbourhood Shopping Centre, as the Hamilton community strongly supports such a process. 

The Hamilton Plan Update is proceeding as Council approved in December 2011 with Oris 
Consulting Ltd. undertaking the approved Work Plan, under City direction (see Attachment 1 
regarding affected areas). The main highlights of this five-phase Work Plan include: 

~ Phase 1: Prepare Baseline Information 
Phase 2: Analyse Phase 1 Findings to Prepare Policy Options 

- Phase 3: Detailed Studies on Planning Options 
- Phase 4: Prepare Draft Hamilton Plan Update 
- Phase 5: Finalize tht? Hamilton Plan Update and Public Consultation. 

On March 13, 2012, the first Open House was held. Invitations were sent via mass mailing to all 
household and business mailing addresses in Hamilton. The survey and Open House display 
boards were available on the City'S website (www.richmond.ca) and the Place Speak website 
(www.placespeak.com/hamiltonareaplan). Residents were asked to complete and return the 
survey (one per household) forms by April 1,2012. 

There was a good Open House turnout of approximately 135 people. City staff from Policy 
Planning, Development Applications, Environmental Sustainabi lity, Parks, Engineering and 
Transportation Divisions were present, as well as the Oris planning consultants (e.g., Dana 
Westermark, Patrick Cotter). Display boards and survey forms were avai lable (Attachment 2). 
City staff led the Open House with an introductory presentation which outlined the purpose and 
scope of the Area Plan update, followed by a consultant presentation regarding the current status 
of community planning matters and an open Q & A session. 
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Analysis 

Community Consu ltation Survey Results 

General 
Hamilton has 1565 households and a population of 4825 people as of the 2011 Census (Not 
induding undcrcounts yet to be provided by Slats Canada). A total of 70 completed surveys were 
submitted to the City (4.4% of all households). 

The Public Survey (Attachments 2 and 3) include seventeen (17) questions of which question 
Nos. 1 to 11 involved a description of the respondents' circumstances (e.g., age, similar size, 
shopping habits, etc.). The remaining question Nos. 12 to 17 involved the respondent's opinions 
of community development options and possible amenities. The top responses to key questions , 
from Hamilton as a whole, from the 70 respondents arc included below. Please refer to 
Attachment 3 for the complete survey results . (A package of colour pie and bar charts 
graphically representing the findings in Attachment 3 is available in the Planning and 
Development Department and Mayor and Councillor's Office). 

Housing Choices and Density: 
The Public Survey indicates that there is a sufficient choice of single-family homes and 
townhomes but an insufficient choice of apartment-style housing, servicing the needs of singles 
through to seniors. 

The choice to live in Hamilton may be due to its central location within Metro Vancouver with 
easy access to various freeways and bridges. This survey data indicates that residents commute 
to work mainly in Richmond and Vancouver and shop mainly in Queensborough, Burnaby and 
Richmond. 

54% of respondents agree or strongly agree to have more density with a further 16% staying 
neutral at this time. The survey has indicated support for more medium density development 
between 3 and 6 storeys. Specifically, the Public Survey includes the following opinions: 

• Feel there should be. more medium density development (3 to 6 storey) - Question No. 
14: 
Strongly Agree-19 
Agree-1 9 . 
Neutral-l I 

Disagree-9 
Strongly Disagree-12 

Parks, Greenways and Pathways and Trails: 
These amenities are highly valued and well used in the conununity as indicated by the Public 
Survey. 62% of respondents use the nature parks, dyke trails and bike trails while a further 38% 
use both the active play parks and sports parks. There was strong support for improved li.nkages 
for pedestrians and cyclists and several comments in support of off-leash areas . As well, the 
Public Survey includes the following opinions: 

• Hamilton Parks and Recreation Used Top Priority - Question No 15: 
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Nature Parks-3?; Active Play Parks-33; Sports Parks-27; Bike Trails-26; Dyke Trails-
33 

Transportation, Sidewalks and Safety: 
There is a strong survey response for transportation improvements, in particular at Westminster 
and Gilley. Concerns were raised around truck traffic and vehicular speed, a lack of safe 
crossings for pedestrians and cyclists to access the school, community centre and shopping 
centre. The highest response rates were for improvements at Westminster and Gilley and 
Westminster Highway overall as requiring improvements for sidewalks and bike lanes. The 
Public Survey includes the following opinions: 

• Sidewalks and Signals Top Priority - Question No. 16a: 
Westminster Hwy & Gilley-48; Westminster Hwy & River Road-41; Westminster 
Hwy & Hwy 91-16; Sidewalks on Westminster Highway-56 

Community Services: 
The Public Survey indicates that there is a community preference for services including; a 
policing office, improved library services; fitness facilities, additional childcare spaces and care 
for seniors. There are a number of respondents who indicate concerns over not having a middle 
school and / or a high school in Hamilton. The Public Survey includes the following opinions: 

• Community Services Most Wanted - Question No. J 2a: 
Policing Office- 21; Library Services- 18; Fitness Centre-} a 

Retail Services: 
With over 17% of respondents preferring to shop within three (3) minutes from home, 
respondents have a strong desire for newer fonnat, pedestrian-oriented retail and retail services 
being available close to home. The priorities are strongly identified as follows: grocery, 
medical , pharmacy dental ; and general retail services including; specifically coffee shops and 
restaurants. The Public Survey includes the following opinions: 

• Personal ICommercial Services Most Wanted Question No. 12b: 
Food-25; Medical-I 7; Pharmacy-IS 

Proposed Development Options & Amenities Discussion 

Based on the Public Survey results and a preliminary analysis of the market development 
potential of lands within Areas 2 and 3 (see map. Attachment 1), three (3) proposed 
Development Options for consideration have been created as illustrated in At1aciunent 5, 
namely: 

3532954 

Option 1: Lower Medium Density 
Option 2: Mixed Medium Density 
Option 3: Higher Medium Density 
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It should be noted that these are generalized Development Options for initial review by Council 
and will be refined after comments from Council have been received before being taken to the 
public for review. Each option includes a new commercial village core on the site of the existing 
Bridgeview Shopping Centre. 

For Areas 2 and 3, there is an estimated addition of7,212 to 12,696 people under Options 1 to 3 
and 4,200 people under the current OCP (Attachment 4). These additional estimated people 
would be added to the 2011 census population of 4825 people for all of Hamilton. This would 
lead to a possible built-out population 0[9,025 under the current OCP to 17,521 under Option 3 
(based on an assumed 2.5 people/dwelling) . 

As well , Oris Consulting has undertaken a preliminary analysis of the potential community 
amenities that could be provided in conjunction with each of the three (3) proposed Development 
Options (Attachment 4). Generally, with more density, more community amenities and 
commercial services can be provided. 

Based on feedback from the second Open House and Public Survey, a preferred option and 
amenity package with more detail will be brought to Council for review. 

Discussion of Possible Amenity Improvements 

Parks, Open Space and Environmenratly Sensitive Areas (ESAsj 
Parks and open spaces are well distributed across the Hamilton area and meet the City's 
standards for neighbourhood and community park access. There is also a sufficient quantity of 
parks and open spaces to accommodate future growth. As the community grows, the quality of 
some of the parks and open spaces will have to be improved to accommodate increased use 
and to add greater diversity to the types of functions and activities available (e.g., more activities 
for seniors and youth). 

The location of the 2.8 ha. (7.0 acre) Hamilton Highway Park, immediately east of Highway 91, 
is not ideal for a neighbourhood park. If redevelopment occurs in Area 2 under Development 
Option 3, then relocating the park to a more favourable location (TBD) in the Hamilton area 
would be considered by the City. There would be no net loss of park land in the Hamilton area. 

The City would seek improvements to the existing trail system to close gaps, create better 
connections to the regional trail system and New Westminster, and to upgrade some trails to 
accommodate greater use and add more amenities such as benches and gathering areas. There 
may be adjustments to the generally-indicated greenways and park areas, as well as other 
policies to address the current and proposed ESAs and Riparian Management Areas. 
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Transportation 
The level of road and transit improvements will be detennined in accordance with the level of 
land use and density. The number of transportation improvements proposed increases with each 
successive option with increased density. It is noted that the proposed improvements would be 
provided adjacent to fe-developed parcels by proposed developments. In the Hamilton area, only 
Westminster Highway is on TransLink's Major Road Network (MRN) and the City's DeC 
program and therefore, depending on priority and available funding, any improvements to 
Westminster Highway to its ultimate standard (curb and gutter, sidewalk and boulevard, and 
bicycle lanes) could occur independent of development. These arc long-term improvements, 
however, with the proposed development options with increased densities, these improvements 
could be advanced. 

More detailed transportation improvement options will be developed by Oris' traffic consultant 
through the traffic study being undertaken for the Hamilton Plan Update. This study would 
validate the currently proposed improvements and assess if additional enhancements would be 
needed for the preferred Development Option to be determined through the public consultation 
and Council review later 2012. 

Community Policing Office (CPO) 
The public consultations over the past several months have found that there is a general desire to 
establish a CPO in Hamilton. While Options 1 to 3 include a developer-constructed CPO, the 
operation of a CPO has long-term budget implications including additional staffing, maintenance 
and equipment costs that are not a priority at this time. On this basis, staff advises that the 
preservation of the space for future use as a CPO maybe beneficial, but should be part of a 
broader City study of policing response. 

Public Library Branch 
Previous and current public consultation and initial general discussions with the Richmond 
Public Library have emphasized the general desire to establish a branch library in Hamilton. 
Option 3 includes the provision of public library space with development contributions. A 
permanent library branch in Hamilton remains a lower priority for the Library Board. When a 
branch is built, space requirements will be approximately one (1) sq. ft. per capita thus requiring 
about 15,000 sq. ft. (I ,400m2

) at Option 3 full build out. 

Indoor Community Recreation Space 
There will be a need for increased indoor community recreation space, the scale of which is 
dependent upon the Development Option selected. The increased space needs would generally 
be based on the amount of population increase over the current OCP popUlation estimates. It 
would also be dependent upon whether new community indoor recreation space is combined 
with the existing community centre building and any potential library space. 

Next Steps 
The next steps are to ho ld the second Open House and conduct a Public Survey ideally in late 
June 2012 in a similar manner as the first Open House and report back to Council in the Fall 
2012, as per the Work Program. The proposed Development Options will be refined before the 
Open House, as necessary. 
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Financial Impact 

None. 

Conclusion 

This report presents the findings of the flTst Hamilton Area Plan Update Public Survey and Open 
House, and three (3) proposed general Development Options to be presented at the second public 
Open House ideally in late June 2012. 

frUlffi~,~ 
Mark McMullen, 
Senior Coordinator, Major Projects 
(604-276-4173) 

Terry Crowe, Manager, 
Policy Planning 
(604-276-4139) 

MM:rg 

Attachment 1 Hamilton Planning Areas Map 

Attachment 2 Public Survey No.1 

Attachment 3 Summary of Public Survey No. 1 Results 

Attachment 4 Population Projections and list of Proposed Amenities by Development Option 

Attachment 5 Proposed Development Options & Amenities and Infrastructure Improvements 
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I. Lower Westminster Sub-Area (Area 1) 

2. Boundaryffhompson SlID-Area (Area 2) 
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Public Survey 
Hamilton Area Plan Update 

Public Survey #1 - Community Baseline Information 

For the Hamilton Area Plan Update 

Purpose: 

The purpose of this survey, is to invite you 10 comment on how Ihe 1995 Hamilton Area Plan is updated, particularly regarding Areas 2 
and 3 (see Map #1 attached). 

• This survey is the first of several surveys that will be undertaken as the Hamilton Area Plan is updated, 

• The City of Richmond is leading the Hamitton Area Plan Update arn:! has engaged Oris Consulting Ltd. to undertake won< on the 
Plan Update, 

• This Survey #1 focuses on your opinions about the current slate of the community. 

• Please complete and return the survey by April 1, 2012. 

• Please only complote one survey per household. 

Thank you 

Please Tel l Us About Yourse lf: (Individual survey responses are confidontial) . 

1. tlive in (refer to Hamilton Area Plan Map #1 attached): 

o Hamilton Area 2 

o Hamilton Area 3 

a Hamilton elsewhere 

o Richmond elsewhere 

o New Westminster - Queensborough 

o Other I Elsewhere 

2. My postal code Is: _____________ _ 

3. I or my family own or rent the place where I live 

Please choose only one of the following: 

o Own 

o Rent 

4. lor my famil y: 

o Own a residential property in Hamilton other than where I live 

o Own a commercial property business in Hamilton 

5. I live in the following type of housing: 

o Single family house o Townhouse 

o Suite in a house o Duplex 

o Apartment 

o Other 

s. The following number of family members live in my household in each of the age brackets listed below 
(please write answers(s) as numbers): 

0 0-5 0 6·12 0 13-18 

0 19· 24 0 25--44 0 45-64 

0 65·74 0 75' 
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7. The following number of adult family members of my household work in the locations listed below 
(please write answer(s) as numbers): 

' __ Hamilton 

' __ Richmond elsewhere (please indicate general area) _______ _ 

' __ Queensborough ,---_,--_---:---:_:-_ 
' __ New West elsewhere (please indicate general area) _______ _ 

' __ Annacis Island 
' __ Delta elsewhere (please indicate general area) ______ _ _ 

• __ Surrey (please indicate general area) _______ _ 

' __ Burnaby (please indicate general area) ________ _ 

' __ Vancouver (please indicate general area) -, ________ _ 

' __ GVRD I Other (please indicate general area) _______ _ 

8. I own a business in Hamilton 

Please choose only one of the fol lowing: 

o Yes 

o No 

9. The number of adutt members of my household commute to work in the following manner 
(please write answer(s) as numbers ): 

' _ _ B", 
• __ Bike 

• __ Wheelchair 

' __ Walk 
• __ C" 
• __ Carpool 

10. Tell us about your patterns of shopping and service needs 

I shop in the following regional shopping centers I stores 

(Check as many as you like· Refer to attached Commercial Centres· Map #2): 

o Bridgeport Home Depot o Bridgeport Costcoo Lansdowne Centre o Richmond Centre 

o Queensborough Landing o Marine Way Market o Big Bend Crossing o Royal City Centre 

o Plaza 88 (New West) o Westminster Market o Nordel Crossing 

o Other _____ _ 

11 . a) My daily shopping needs include 

(Check as many as you like - Refer to attached Grocery Stores Map #3): 

o Produce store 0 Bakeryo Butcher o Convenience store o Coffee shop 
o Other (please indicate types) ____________________________ _ 

b) My weekly shopping needs Include: 

o Grocery store 0 Pharmacy o Restaurants 0 Gas 
o other (please indicate types) ______________________________ _ 

c) My monthly shopping needs include: 

o Clothing o Household goods o Bulk services 0 Persona l services o Hair I na ils 

o Medica l o Dental o Insurance o Car services 
o Other (please indicate types) ___________ _________________ _ 

12. The services I most want in my community are (list in order of priority from 1 to 10, with 1 being the most wanted 
services): 

a) Community services: 

o Policing office __ o Childcare (0 to 5) __ o After school care (K to Grade 7) __ 

o Seniors care o Fitness center o Library services __ 0 Other 

b) Personal services: 

2 
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o Medical 
Housing Choices : 

o Dental o Food o Pharmacy __ 0 Other __ 

13. In my neighbourhood, I feel there are enough housing choices suitable for: (Please indicate Yes or No) 

a) Sing le people: __ Studio apartments __ , bedroom apartments 

b) Couples : 

c) Families with children: 

• Apartments : 

• Townhomes : 

• Single Family Homes: 

d) Seniors: 

e) People with disabilities 
or othcr spcclal needs: 

__ , bedroom/den apartments __ 2 bedroom apartments 

__ Studio apartments __ 1 bedroom apartments 

__ 1 bedroom/den apartments __ 2 bedroom apartments 

__ 2 bedroom/den apartments __ 3 bedroom apartments 

2 bedroom 

2 bedroom/den 

2 bedroom/den 

3 bedroom 

3 bedroom 

3 bedroom/den 

__ Studio apartments __ 1 bedroom apartments __ , bedroom/den apartments 

__ 2 bedroom apartments 

__ Studio apartments __ , bedroom apartments __ , bedroomfden apartments 
__ 2 bedroom apartments __ 2 bedroom/den apartments __ 3 bedroom apartments 

f) People with low incoma: __ Studio apartments __ , bedroom apartments 

__ , bedroom/den apartments __ 2 bedroom apartments 

__ 2 bedroom/den apartments __ 3 bedroom apartments 

14. I feel that there should be allowance for more med ium density development (e.g., 3·storey townhouses and 4 to 
6 s torey apartments) In selected areas on arterial roads and along the main shopping street 

o Strongly Agree 0 Agree 0 Neutral 0 Disagree 0 Strongly Disagree 0 No Answer 

Other Services: 

15. In the Hamilton neighbourhood , 1 currently use (list in order of priority 1 to 10 wi th 1 being most wanted services): 

a) Parks & open spaces: 

__ Nature parks __ Active play parks __ Sports parks Bike trails __ Dyke trails 

16. In order of priority (between 1 to 10, with 1 being strongest), I would like to see: 

a) Sidewalks and traffic signals at: 

• Westminster and Gilley __ 

• Westminster and River Road 

• Westminster and Hwy 91 __ 

• Sidewalks on Westminster Hwy __ 
Other' _________ _ 

b) Bike lanes and whee l f walk paths : 

• On Westminster Hwy __ 

• On Gilley __ ._ 

• Other _________ _ 

17. In my neighbourhood, I am able to easily get to my dally destinations (e.g., school, work, play, library, stores) by: 

Wheelchair o Strongly Agree o Agree o Neutral o Disagree o Strongly Disagree o No Answer 

Cycling o Strongly Agree o Agree o Neutral o Disagree o Strongly Disagree o No Answer 

Bus o Strongly Agree o Agree o Neutral o Disagree o Strongly Disagree o No Answer 

Walking o Strongly Agree o Agree o Neutral o Disagree o Strongly Disagree o No Answer 

Cae o Strongly Agree o Agree o Neutral o Disagree o Strongly Disagree o No Answer 
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18. My top three exciting changes that I would like to see In Hamilton in the future are: 

1. ____________________________________________________________ __ 

2. ____________________________________________________________ __ 

3. ____________________________________________________________ __ 

19. My top three favourite things that I would not want to see changed in Hamilton are : 

1. ______________________________________________________ _ 

2. _____________________________________________________ _ 

3. _________________________________________ ____________ ~ __ __ 

20. My general comments : ____________________________________ _ 

Thank you for your time 
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Please complete and retum the survey by April 1, 2012. 

Fill out your survey online at w.vw.placespeak.com/hamillonareaplao or WW'It.richmond·ca 
0, 

2. Fill out your survey and submit at the Publ ic Consultation Meeting. 

3. Pick-up Idrop-off a paper copy of your survey off at the Hamilton Community Centre or City Hall. 

0, 
4. Fax it to (604) 276-4052. 

0, 
5. Ma il to: Hamilton Public Survey 

Richmond City Hall 
691 r NO. 3 Road , Richmond, BC V6Y 2C1 
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ORIS 
www.orisconsult ing.ca 

Executive Summary 

To: 
From: 
Dated: 
RE : 

City of Richmond - Long Range Planning 
Oris Consult ing ltd. 
May 07,2012 
Survey #1 Public Consultation for Hamilton Area Plan Update 

Attachment 3 

Oris Consulting ltd. 
12235 - No.1 Road 

Richmond, Be 
V7E 1T6 

As part of the public consultation process a survey of the residents of Hamilton and Queensborough was conducted. 
There has been a strong level of community engagement with an impressive showing at the Public Consultation meeting 
coupled with a solid response to the su rvey. Of the 1,900 notices delivered to Hamilton and Queensborough area 
reside nces, and the two local newspaper notifications plus one in Queensborough, over 135 members of the 
community attended the Public Consultation Meeting #1 and over 70 surveys were f i led by Hamilton residents (only one 
from Queensboroughl. 

At the open house, members were very interested in what was being proposed and generally supportive of change 
provid ing infrastructural improvements were made and valued amenit ies enhanced. The supportive comments and 
concerns vocalized at the Consultation Meeting were mirrored in both the qualitative data and the general comments 
section of the survey. 

While the results were consistent with what Oris has been hearing informally from the community, the survey gave 
voice to the community interest s, and set priorities of expectations to their vision for Hamilton. 

Transportation, Sidewalks and Safety: 

A strong response rate was received regarding a perceived need for transportation improvements in particular at 
Westminst er and Gi lley. Concerns were raised around truck traffic and vehicular speed, lack of safe crossings for 
pedestrians and cyclist s to access the school, community cent re and shopping centre . The highest respondent rate 
identif ied Westminster and Gilley and Westminster Highway overall as requiring improvements for sidewalks and bike 
lanes . 

Civil Infrastructure : 

Through the comments section of the survey, there were a number of respondents who indicated disappointment in the 
lack of sanitary and sewer connections. 

Parks, Greenways and Pathways and Trails: 

These amen ities are highly valued and well used in the community. 62% of respondents use the nature parks, dyke trails 
and bike t rails while a further 38% use both the active play parks and sports parks. In the comments section there was 
strong support for improved linkages for pedestrians and cyclists and several comments in support of off-leash areas. 

Telephone: 604.241.4657 { WW'W.orisconsulting.ca 
High Quality, Environmentally Sustainable Housing 
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Co mmunity Services: 

The community cont inues to voice its priorities for community services induding; a policing office, improved library 
services; fi t ness facili t ies, additiona l childcare spaces and ca re for seniors. 

There were a number of respondents who indicated concerns ovef not having a middle school and / or a high school in 
Hamilton 

Retail Services: 

With over 17% of respondents preferring to snop within 3 minutes from home, respondents to the survey and in the 
comments section indicated a strong desire for new format retail and retail services being available dose to home. The 
priorities were st rongly identified as follows: grocery. medical, pharmacy dental; and general retail services induding; 

specifically coffee shops and restaurants. 

Housing Choices: 

As it relates to housing choice, there was a wide range of responses to the questions posed. The overall genera l 
indications from the community suggested that t hey felt there was sufficient choice of single family homes and 
townhomes in that 91% of respondents indicated they lived in Single Family Dwellings or Townhouses and 78% of 
respondents in both categories, indicated there was enough choice for Single Family Homes and Town homes. 

Further, a blend response of the other housing choices resulted in an overall average of 73% indicated that there was 
insufficient choice of apartment style housing, servicing the needs of singles through to seniors. 

Respondents indicated through their comments that they place a strong importance on the 'atmosphere' in Hami lton 
including a "village feeling", the tranquility; cycle paths, trails and parks. 

The choice to live in Hami lton may be due to its centra l location within the GVRO with ease of access via a number of 
easily access freeways and bridges. Th is is suggested based on work commuting routes which indicate Richmond and 
Vancouver as being the primary commute routes to and from work, while Queensborough, Burnaby and Richmond 
appear to be the primary shopping destinations for daity, weekly and monthly shopping and services. 

Density: 

S4% of respondents agreed or strongly agreed regarding higher dens ity (as opposed to single fam ily homes and 
townhomes), with a further 16% staying neutra l at t his time. The community has indicated it supports an allowance for 

T""ph". 604.241.4657 I 

CNCL - 203
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more medium density development between 3 and 6 storey's. In the comments section of the survey, this sentiment 
was echoed however, it also indicated the types of amenities and improvements to the community, that would be 

expected in concert with density increases. 

An interesting comment made in the survey was concern noted as to how one builds a community with a Translink bus 

depot and Westminster Highway running through its core. 

Conclusion: 
The results of the survey conducted to date, provide a general direction to Oris Consulting ltd. and to the City of 
Richmond. Members of the community have been in regular contact with Oris Consulting Ltd. to enquire when they can 
expect to hear back on the survey results and the next steps to this process. 

There is community support for change, and the community has indicated they are eager to continue the process 
through the 'next step' being an outline of a range of density options with indications as to the community amenities, 
services and facilities such growth would provide. 

Respectfully submitted; 

Rozanne Kipnes 
Vice President, Development 
Oris Consulting Ltd. 

Telephone: 604.241.4657 I www.orisCOflsu lting .ca 
High Quality, Environmentally Sustainable Housing 
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ATTACHMENT 4 

Population Projections and List of Proposed Amenities by Development Option 

With Currenl1999 OCP 
Build-Out in Areas 2 & 3 

, Uo", 

Existing DUs: 153 
Estimated New DUs: 1,535 
Total OUs: 1,688 

., 

Development Option 1 
Lower Medium Density 
Build-Out in Areas 2 & 3 

(e.g. 2021) 

Existing OUs; 153 
Estimated New OUs: 2,707 
Total OUs : 2,860 

'. A"" 2 ~od. 3 

Development Option 2 
Mixed Medium Density 

Build-Out in Areas 2 & 3 
(e.g. 2021) 

Existing aus: 153 
Estimated New DUs: 3,544 
Total aus: 3,697 

Existing aus: 198 (Includes Area 1 lots) 
Estimated New aus: 5,296 
Total DUs: 5,494 

Based on development mainly 
in ground-oriented townhouses. 

Approximately 35% in Ground­
oriented townhouses, 32% in 
stacked townhouses and 33% in 
four (4) to six (6) storey 
apartments. 

Approximately 6% Ground- 1 ~~o~;~';::~~~I\.5;:'?Vo : Ground-oriented 
oriented townhouses, 30% in ', 14% in stacked townhouses 
slacked townhouses, and 64% in and 81 % in four (4) to six (6) storey 

Estimated , ",220 Estimated I : 7,212 
I 

• Recently Expanded Hami!ton • Community Policing Office 
Community Centre (see Space Reserved 
Below under Personal • Additional Indoor 

four (4) to six (6) storey 
apartments. 

• Community Policing Office 
Space Reserved 

• Additionallr'ldoor 
Services) Community Centre Community Centre 

• New Fire Hall Recreation Space, including Recreation Space, including 

Community Policing Office Space 
Reserved 
Additional Indoor Community Centre 
Recreation Space, including fitness 

~~~~~spUbIiC Library fit"" "N~' ~ . ~------------~~~~~-----hIO~",".~O','2,. I 
CUrrent Transportation: Option 1 Transportation: t ;:,,0--'._,::- Option 3 Transportation: 

(Committed Projects) (ImPOp','o'vb.'·mE.~~alnced 1" ~:"u" n.", ~.". Ro "'d ,~",,~_f_'_om_~IP~O~'~'~Ib~'~'~E:O:h~'~O~"~d~'m~p~'~Otv~.m~':O"iiW~'~th;l .,~ .... t' ....... , those from previous Option 'shafled) 
, , 

• Full TraffIC Signal • Full Traffic Signal.. &..--:~~; I 1- Boundary Road 
Boundary Road and Boundary Road allg Hwy: 
Westminster Hwy Westmlnster Hwy, , __ " .!!1 

• 

• 

• 

to 
provide a walkway on the 
west side of Westminster 
~,_ ill to 

G.t, 

walkway/cycling path 
<llong Westminster Hwy. 
(with extruded curb) on: 1) 
e<ls\ side, Gilley Rd. to 
Smith Cr. and 2) west side, 
Smith Cr. to Bound<lry Rd. 

Full upgrade of 

• 

'~, I 

~~~!'..g ~ CU:b~:': 1), 
east side, GiJley Rd. to 
Smith Cr. and 2) west side; 
Smith Cr. to Bou.fldary Rd. 

• -F," 
Hamilton Interchange to il 
Westminster Hwy, from r M~'i~~ 

l-_~~~~R:'~'~d:' W~ith~::~:-, 

• 

3539386 

• 

• 
I~!,:?..":~:;~, 01 , 

; 

• 

· on 
, 11 I 
,G ... 

· 

• 

• 

~~~~ 

, , 

It 
side, 

~"~' 

, ,'~ I 

,~~ U;;, , 

I 
Boundary Road, with 

, 

, 
;;;; , ~R; "0 

, 
old, 

, 
~Idewalk.s, and bicycle 

I ; 
, gutt'" "0 ;;;;~c 

~;~;;.; 'COd i 

, 
",oj"t to ,Hwv 

Page 1 

CNCL - 217



Population Projections and List of Proposed Amenities by Development Option 

Current 
Parks and Trails' 
(Committed Projects) 

Ii 

• 11 

Option 1 Parks and Trails 
(Possible Enhanced 
Improvements) 

• 

" Gilley south, to 

• 

• 

(subject to traffic 

• 

Option 3 Parks and Trails 
(Possible Enhanced Improvements with 
those from previous Option §!!!.ded) 

I 
III t~t!Le. 

ii i 

ill 
iI 

, and South to 

1----------i-------------j-------------jlb~Ik~'~'~'~O~di ng, improving l i n kag~,~!!:: 
Areas 2 pedestrian !bike overpass and Area 

;;d;'~t ;I~;7,, ';;' ;;:;, ease of landing for the 
route overpass between 

i i 

of 

Page 2 
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Population Projections and List of Proposed Amenities by Development Option 

Current Personal Services: ~P"O',' I Service 
I ~p"O' .' 

Personal Service , 
existing shoPPin~ ce~:~et~~d ::isting shopping ce~;~et:~d the 

, ", , H, the. 

the Hamilton Community Cerltre Hamilton Community Centre ~:n~jut..L 
I 

ShOPPI~~a~IY , ~P"O', 
Dally / Weekly I :'Ptl~~.1. Daily / Weekly Shopping 

Business) Shopping Service I 
Improvements 

I 

I ~;"ti;~-, "'~:;:"' ~' 
,I, .. ~H'9' 

I iI 

~' , 

3539386 

North East end of greenway Westminster 
H , north to Da care East 

I ~P"O" 
Service 

I '-f" . ""' 
I , c:":~ I 

~J Daily / Weekly Shopping 
Service Improvements (Private 
Business) 

~ 
I 

I " I " 
, ... 

~' I 

I 

Page 3 
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To: 

From: 

City of 
Richmond 

Finance Committee 

Andrew Nazareth 

Report to Committee 
To FIN - J\J,...L =+ 2D\?-

Date: April 26, 2012 

File: 
General Manager, Business and Financial 
Services 

Re: 2011 Surplus Appropriation 

Staff Recommendation 

That the December 31, 2011 surplus 0[$4.556 million be appropriated as outlined in the attached 
report. 

"j-J. I.-
Andrew Nazareth 
General Manager Business and Financial Services Department 
(4046) 

FOR ORIGINATING DIVISION USE ONLY 

CONCURRENCE OF GENERAL MANAGER 

4--'- <-

REVIEWED BY TAG YES NO 

CJC-iTI 0 

rV~~)AO ~0 
NO 

0 
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Staff Re port 

Origin 

For the year ended December 31,2011, the City of Richmond had an operating surplus of $4.556 
million. This amount, which excludes the operations of the Library and the Oval, is due primarily 
to the following: 

• Higher than budgeted building pennit revenues and servicing agreement fees in 
Planning and Development. 

• Increased revenues in Roads and Storm and Engineering. 

• Lower than budgeted costs in both the ReMP and Fire Rescue due to unfilled positions 
and lower than expected contract and operational costs. 

• Lower than budgeted costs in other Departments due to vacant positions and cost 
savings due to the CAO's cost containment initiative that took place since September 
2011 in freezing atl of the City' s discretionary expenses. 

Pursuant to the Community Charter (the Charter), the City prepares on an annual basis, a 
balanced operating budget (budget). In addition the Charter expressly prohibits the City from 
making an expenditure unless it is included for that year in its financial plan. Therefore 
conservatism is encouraged in preparing the budget and the City might realise a surplus due to 
favourable revenues and costs at the end of each fiscal year. 

Analysis 

For 2011 there are 18 one time expenditure requests totalling $6.7M. The Corporate Directors 
Group prioritized the submissions and TAG provided the final re view, recommendations and 
ranking for Council's consideration. 

Ifany appropriations are approved by Council , the respective expenditure will be included in the 
upcoming amendment to the City ' s 5 Year Financial Plan. There is no tax impact to the approval 
of any of the proposed expenditures provided they are funded from the 2011 surplus. 

The following provides a brief description of all one-time expenditure requests from departments 
with recommendations provided by TAG. Council may change any of the recommendations or 
may choose to address other one-time funding needs, which are not contained in this section. 
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2011 One Time Expenditure Requests 

Ref Requested By Description Total Amt TAG 
Req'd recommendation 

$ $ 
1 Law Community 2012 Retroactive Pay Increase 1,289,053 1,289,053 

Safety/RCMP The anticipated 2012 retroactive pay increase was removed from 
the 2012 budget to assist in achieving the over-all tax increase. 
This may leave the City with a need to find between $O.712M to 
$1.29m, depending on the final results of the court case and the 
anticipated RCMP wage settlement. 

2 Project Hol1ybridge Lease· City Hall North 89,259 89,259 
Development & Funding request for 9 month lease (Jan1-Sep30, 2012) . 
Facility Unit Currently on month to month arrangement on an Qverhold basis . 
Admin $8,854.17 + $1,062.50 HST = $9,917.67 per month . 

3 Fire The Fire-Rescue Equipment and Vehicle Reserve 800,000 400,000 
Administration These funds will ensure funding for future vehicle and equipment 

replacement. The Fire-Rescue Equipment and Vehicle Reserve 
requires additional funding to ensure sustainable vehicle and 
equipment replacement. Based upon the current replacement 

Ian the reserve would be deoleted in 2016. 
4 library Ch inese Language Library Donation 203,320 100,000 

Technical In summer 2011 the library received a very substantial donation of 
Service books from Dr. and Mrs. Lee, long time supporters of the library. 

The donation consists of approximately 46 ,000 Chinese language 
books valued at just under $1.2 million. Subject matters include 
Chinese art: a wide selection of Chinese classics, literature, 
economics. philosophy, psychology, law and relig ion; and classics 
of world literature which have been translated into Chinese . The 
evaluator described it as "one of the most important Canadian 
cultural and literary legacies that I am aware of, and with respect 
to Chinese culture it ranks among the finest." Funding is for 
inventorying and preparation of materials for integration into the 
library's regular collection. The inventory will also be the basis for 
engaging the community in a major fundraising effort to ensure 
ongoing support for the collection. This collection will help 
establish Richmond as a cultural destination . 

5 Finance New Mandatory Regulations -Contaminated Sites 250.000 250,000 
The Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) has recently required 
all local governments to report a liability associated with the 
remediation of contaminated sites starting from 2014. The funding 
request is to hire a consultant for the implementation of the report 
requirement by assessing the contaminated sites with the 
environmental specialists. performing risk analysis and 
documentina the remediation estimates. 

6 Project Funding for Infrastructure 750,000 275,000 
Development & In the June 30, 2011 report to Public Works and Transportation 
Facility Unit Committee staff recommended an increase in funding to 
Admin address replacement of failing infrastructure. The funding gap of 

4.0M annually was to be closed over the next seven years and the 
$750K was to be the first step in closing the gap. The status of the 
2012 program this year is as follows. As of May 31 (41% into the 
year) , 76% of the $1.925M infrastructure replacement budget 
has been spent leaving $460,933 for the rest of the year. The 
additional $750k of funding for 2012 will provide additional funding 
required for the balance of the year. 
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2011 One Time Ex penditure Requests 

Ret Requested By Description Total Amt TAG 
Req'd recommendation 

$ $ 
7 Recreation Processes & Controls- Community Associations 100,000 100,000 

Services Funding is requested to cover the one-lime cost to engage a 
consultant to; i) update the Community Association's cash 
handling procedures and processes, ii) develop specific cash 
handling procedures related to CLASS, iii) develop ongoing 
monitoring and reconciliation processes to ensure that appropriate 
financial checks and balances are in place, and iv) create and 
deliver a training program to implement and roll-out these new 
procedures to front-line staft and supervisors. 

8 Recreation and Consultant - Youth Strategy 30,000 30,000 
Community The recently endorsed 2011-2014 Council Term Goals identified 
Services the "development of an updated youth strategy to address the 

needs and to build on the assets of youth in the community: 
Funding is being requested to engage a consultant to review and 
update the 2008 - 2012 'Where Youth ThriveH Youth Strategy. 
Preparation of the updated Strategy would be a jOint initiative of 
the Parks and Recreation and Community Services Departments. 

9 Arts, Culture & Lansdowne Greenway Art Project 150,000 150,000 
Heritage Lansdowne Road has been designated in the CCAP as a major 

eastlwest street connecting the Olympic Oval to the Garden City 
Lands . It will be a wide , safe and well lit ' street of art' , a 
ceremonial/parade route incorporating a 10 metre wide linear park 
and a 10 acre linear parle To date, there is no overall plan and 
functional design for the street, building face to building face, 
including the street and sidewalk designs, park and street planting 
plans, street furniture and art installation opportun ities . As 
development is occurring at an unanticipated rate interim designs 
per property are being developed however major opportunities are 
going to be lost and the risk of a very mediocre piecemeal product 
likely if there is not an ultimate design in place to guide these 
development projects. This project will fast track the creation of 
proper coordinated designs , details and implementation plans as 
well as a transition plan that contributes to the ultimate completed 
street. This will enable the City to get significantly more done, at 
lesser cost, more auicklv. and provide a superior product. 

10 Sustainability Consultant Fees for Pre-Design Assessments 85,000 85,000 
In order to ensure that potential energy management projects are 
well developed and designed, which allows for a thorough 
assessment of the cost/benefit to the City and for the opportunity 
to take advantage of external funding, pre-design assessments 
are needed to be completed over a year in advance of project 
implementation. This request is to fund between five and eight 
pre-design assessments for energy management projects; to be 
completed by May 2013. Once pre-design work is completed, the 
projects with the strongest business case (i.e. best payback 
performance) or the projects with a high demonstration value for 
the community will be submitted for capital consideration in 2013. 
If submitted projects are successful in receiving capital funding, 
the pre-design work will be capitalized in the capital budget. 
Currently the Energy Management Program does not have a 
consistent source of funding to support this needed work. 
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2011 One Time Expenditure Requests 

Ref Requested By Description Total Amt TAG 
Req'd recommendation 

$ $ 
11 Social Planning Child Care Non·Capital Grants 20 ,000 20,000 

On April 10, 2012, Council resolved to introduce and give first, 
second and third reading to a Child Care Operating Reserve Fund 
Establishment Bylaw. One of the purposes of the fund is to 
provide grants to non-profit societies to support child care 
professional and program development within the City, as 
recommended by the Child Care Development Advisory 
Committee. As the Bylaw has not yet been adopted, and it will 
take time for developer contributions to accumulate in the Fund, a 
one-time funding source is needed to offer non-capital child care 

rants in 2012. 
12 TAG 2013 Capital Program 2,000,000 1,767,688 

In order to accommodate various capital requests that do not have 
specific funding available, staff propose that the current general 
program be increased for 2013. Council wi ll review and approve 
the projects as part of the 2013 capital budget. This step provides 
additional funding towards the 2013 capital-program. 

13 Arts, Culture & Major Events Provision Fund 250,000 -
Heritage Request for $250,000 to replenish the Major Events Provision 

Fund for monies expended for Hockey Day in Canada, Ships to 
Shore 2012 and Maritime Festival 2012 . Council Term Goals 
envision a city that is "vibrant and cultural'. While the City has 
become well known for a variety of City-produced festivals and 
events, without a dedicated funding source there is a lack of ability 
to engage in long-term planning for Council-approved festivals and 
events . ,. Budgets City's Budget System 250,000 -
Providing reliable, accurate and quality financial reporting is a key 
requirement for the City. The City requires a new module in order 
to reduce staff time and to ensure the continual support and 
operational ability of the budgeting system. The new system will 
increase the capacity, enhance the inteiface in PeopleSofi and 
improve the security of the system as the City's operating budget 
is growing. The system will streamline the budget process and 
require less data manipulation. The funding request is for the first 

hase of the system acquisition. 
15 Fire Mobile Community Safety Education Unit 135,000 , 

Administration The educational program provided by RFR to children and adults 
on how to remain safe during kitchen fires, structural fires, 
evacuations and dealing with life threatening situations like floods, 
earthquakes etc. The current Fire Safety House Public Education 
Unit has reached the end of it useful life and technological 
advances in a new unit would enhance the level of education 
previously provided. Potential sponsorship is currenlly being 
investigated. If achieved funds would be retumed to surplus . 

16 Sustainability Consultant Fees for Policy Development 50,000 -
The Council adopted energy and climate change targets include a 
33% community-wide GHG emission reduction from 2007 levels 
by 2020 and a 10% community-wide energy use reduction from 
2007 levels by 2020. Consultant services are required for staff to 
engage the public and evaluate, develop and implement energy 
management policies such as home energy retrofits financed 
through property taxes; Pay-As-You-Save (energy) programs; and 
new construction specific energy peiformance requirements to 
name a few. 
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2011 One Time Expenditure Requests 

Ref Requested By Description Total Amt TAG 
Req'd recommendation 

$ $ 
17 Parks Funding- Re-Oesign and Re-Oevelopment of Designated 100,000 -

Operations Landscapes 
Many of the landscape elements throughout the City have 
become labor intensive to maintain, as a result of the new "no 
pesticide" bylaw, that they are no longer sustainable. Without 
the use of pesticides, maintaining the landscape elements to the 
current standard is no longer economically feasible . In order to 
reflect the need for more sustainable landscapes which continue 
to show color and beautify the City, but are resistant to disease 
and require less intensive maintenance, we need to re-design 
and replace many of these displays. Funding is requested for 
the re-design and re-development of designated landscapes to 
more sustainable and easily maintained elements. 

18 Arts, Culture & Salmon Row 201 3 200,000 -
Heritage This site-specific play was commissioned to tell the story of the 

development of the Steveston wateriront and the stories of the 
diverse labor force from the mid 1800's to the forced internment 
of the Japanese community beginning in 1941. The play ran to 
sold out audiences over a 9 night run at Britannia Heritage 
Shipyard site and employed many actors, musicians, dancers 
and production technicians, many of whom were Richmond 
residents. An estimated $200,000 is required to mount a 10 day 
run in 2013 with two weeks of rehearsal. Any sponsorship 
fundino would_9P to reducing the amount requested. 

TOTAL 6,751 ,632 4,556,000 

Financial Impact 

For the year ended December 31, 2011 , the City of Richmond had an operating surplus of $4.556 
million and staff recommend that this surplus be appropriated to meet some of the one time 
expenditure requests. Any resulting ongoing budget impacts will be identified as part of the 
2013 budget process. 

Conclusion 

Staff recommend that the 2011 surplus of $4.556 million be appropriated towards one-time 
expenditure requests for items (1) to (12). 

Chong 
Director of Finance 
(4064) 
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To: 

From: 

City of 
Richmond 

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services 
Committee 

Jane Fernyhough 
Director, Arts, Culture and Heritage 

Report to Committee 

- lQPki'2 - 1Y'tl&4 k']2UIZ-

Date: May 7,2012 

File: 11-7000-09-20-134Nol 
01 

Re: Steveston Interurban Tram Building Public Art Project 

Staff Recommendation 

That the concept proposal and installation of the Steveston Interurban Tram Building Public Art 
Project " Interurban Map" by artist Mia Wein , as presented in the report from the Director, 
Arts, Culture & Heritage Services dated 7, 20 12, be endorsed. 

Jane Ferny ugh 
Director, A s, Cul 
(604-276-4288) 

Au. 3 

RourEoTo: 

Budgets 
Recreation 
Project Development 

REVIEWED BY TAG 
SUBCOMMIITEE 

3527761 

FOR ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT USE ONLY 

CONCURRENCE CONCURRENCE OF GENERAL MANAGER 

Y0N O ~,-- !oJe. 
Y~ O 
Y NO 

YES NO REVIEWED BY CAO YES / NO 

% D 0i 1")1" D 
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Staff Report 

Origin 

On July 25, 2011 Council endorsed the Steveston Interurban Tram Building Project, which 
included an allocation of 1 % of the construction budget for the development of a public art 
project as part of the construction of the Steveston Interurban Tram Building. 

This report presents the recommended Steveston Interurban Tram Building Public Art Project 
concept proposal for Council's consideration and endorsement. The inclusion of public art at the 
Steveston Interurban Tram Building ensures Richmond's continued development as a vibrant 
cultural city. 

Analysis 

Benefits of Publ ic Art for the Steveston Interurban Tram Building 

The focus of the Steveston Interurban Tram Building is the physical display ofInterurban Tram 
Car No. 1220. Public art integrated with the design and construction of the Steveston Interurban 
Tram Building provides an opportunity to add interpretive elements, in a cost effective way, to 
enrich the visitor's experience of the exhibit. The public art will reflect the history and heritage 
of the tram and the tram's ridership. 

Terms of Reference Steveston Interurban Tram Building Public Art 

The public art terms of reference for the Steveston Interurban Tram Building Public Art Project 
(Attachment 1) describes the art opportunity, site description, scope of work, budget, selection 
process, design schedule, and submission requirements. The Terms of Reference were reviewed 
and endorsed by the Public Art Advisory Committee. 

Public Art Selection Process 

The chart outlining the public art decision-making process for a City initiated public art project is 
presented as Attachment 2. 

Steveston Interurban Tram Building Project - Public Art Project Panel 

Following the administrative procedures for artist selection for civic public art projects, the 
selection panel reviewed the artist qualifications of the fifteen artists who responded to the open 
Call to Artists . The members of the selection panel included: 

• Clinton Cuddington, Architect 
• Nancy Cuthbert, Art Historian 
• Kelvin Higo, Steveston Community Society representative 
• Ron Hyde, Richmond Museum Society Board representative 
• Sandra Moore, Project Architect for Steveston Interurban Tram Building Project 

Recommended Public Art Project 

Following the reviews of the fifteen artist submissions, the Publ ic Art Project Panel unanimously 
recommended artist Mia Weinberg for the Steveston Interurban Tram Building Public Art 
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Project. Next, the artist collaborated With the project team for the Steveston Interurban Tram 
Building, to develop the public art concept design for Council approval. 

The artist describes the artwork as follows: 

"The artwork/or (he Steveston Interurban Tram Building will be integrated directly into 
the floor a/the outdoor covered platform. Visitors will walk onto an approximately 25 ' x 
14' representation 0/ the J 956 Be Electric interurban tram map extending from 
Steves/on north to (he Fraser River. The tram route and stalion markers will be inlaid 
brass; the river will be coloured glass pebbles. The roads, station names and street 
names- cut into the concrete- will enable visitors to situate the old stations relative to 
the Richmond of today. The station markers will be one to two feet apart so children will 
easily be able to step/rom one to the next starting at Steveston at the park end o/the 
platform and ending at Tucks near the entrance doors to the building. " 

Attachment 3 provides further information about the proposed artwork, size, and location. 

Funding for the construction of the Steveston Interurban Tram Building was approved in the 
capital budgets of20 1 0 and 2011 . A public art budget of $13,229 was allocated from this 
construction budget. A budget of $1 0,000 is provided to the artist for the design, fabrication and 
installation of the artwork including all related artist expenses. The remaining $3,229 in the 
approved budget is for contingency installation costs and administration of the selection process 
and the project. 

Financial Impact 

None 

Conclusion 

The new Steveston Interurban Tram Building Project represents an opportunity to provide public 
art to enhance the identity and vibrancy of the Steveston community and interpret the heritage of 
the historic Steveston Interurban Tram. Staff recommends that Council endorse the concept 
proposal and installation of the Steveston Interurban Tram Building Project public art project 
"Interurban Map " by artist Mia Weinberg, as presented in this report. 

~-' 7 
~7 

Eric Fiss 
Public Art Planner 
(604-247-4612) 
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Attachment 1 

City of 
Richmond Public Art Program 

Steveston Tram Building Public Art Project 

Call to Artists - Request for Proposals 
Terms of Reference 

The City of Richmond Public Art Program seeks an artist or artist team to create a public artwork to 

accompany the construction of the new Steveston Interurban Tram Building to be located at 4005 

Moncton St. This call is open to emerging and established artists/artist teams residing in British Columbia 

and Alberta . 

Budget: $10,000, all inclusive 

Instal lation: September 2012 

Deadline for Submiss ions: Tuesday, January 24, 2012 @ 2:00pm 

For more information, contact the Public Art Program: 

Phone: Eric Fiss at 604-247-4612 

Email : pubHcart@richmond.ca 
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Attachment 1 

Project Overview 

The Steveston Interurban Tram Building is to provide a permanent home for Interurban Tram Car No. 
1220 and enhance interpretive opportunities and public accessibility, while allowing for restoration and 
maintenance. The significant siting of the building at the corner of No. 1 Road and Moncton Avenue is 
intended to provide high visibility for the Interurban Tram Car No. 1220, along its historic route , 

History of Interurban Tram Car No.1220 

Bullt in Missouri by the St. Louis Car Company, Interurban Tram Car No. 1220 was sold to the Be Electric 
Railway Company in 1913. It travelled the Marpole-Steveston Interurban Line until February 1958 when 
the line was closed. 

Tram Car No. 1220 is the largest artefact in the Richmond Museum's collection . It tells the story of an era 
when public transportation was essential in connecting people and places around Richmond. 

Theme 

The theme should reflect the history and heritage of tram transportation (specifically the Marpole­
Steveston Line) andlor the people who would have used the tram. The final project and theme will 
undergo development by the selected artist in discussion with the project design team. 
Budget 

The total budget established for this project is $10,000. The budget includes (but is not limited to) : artist 
fees, design, permitting as needed, engineering fees, fabrication, installation, photography and insurance. 
Travel to Richmond or accommodation is at the artist's expense. 

For artist proposals that incorporate functional features such as ventilation grill #1 and seismic measures 
#5 (see Potential Artwork Sites section), the art budget is intended to "upgrade" the required element in 
order to make it an artistic feature. 

Potential Artwork Sites 

The Tram Building project team has suggested the following potential artwork opportunities. (Refer to 
attached plans and elevations for locations.) 

1. Incorporated into the metal ventilation grill on the west elevation of the building (approximately 8 feet 
wide by 9 feet high) 

2. Artwork embedded or transposed onto the outdoor platform concrete (approximately 14 feet x 32 feet) 

3. Outdoor seating -- possibly a transportation or industrial artefact converted into seating or railings on 
the outdoor platform or in the park. (Please note: an artefact for this potential site would have to be 
acquired by the artist) 

4. A landscape treatment along the rail Hne, extending north or south from the building (must not impede 
the movement of the tram) 

5. The structural seismic truss like columns at the south end of the building. These are large steel 
plates that could be perforated with an artistic design (approx 3 feet wide by 23 feet high) 

6. A mural painted on one of the interior walls of the office corridor 

7. Artist proposals for other locations will be considered 

3527761 
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Schedule (subject to change) 

RFP closes: 
Selection process closes: 
Design Development: 
Fabrication and Installation: 
Unveiling: 

Selection Panel & Process 

January 24,2012 
February 2012 

March 2012 
April- September 2012 

October 2012 

A five-member panel will consist of heritage administrators, art and design professionals and a member of 
the Steveston Community Society. The panel will convene to review all artist submissions. At the 
conclusion of the process, the panel may recommend one artist/artist team for the project. 

Selection Criteria 

Submissions to the RFP will be reviewed and decisions made based on: 

• Artist qualifications and proven capability to produce work of the highest quality; 

• Artist's capacity to work in demanding environments with communities and other design 
professionals, where applicable; 

• Appropriateness of the proposal to the project terms of reference and Public Art Program goals; 

• Artistic merit of the proposal; 

• Degree to which the proposal is site and community responsive, and technically feasible; 

• Probability of successful completion; 

• Environmental sustainability of the proposed artwork. 

Submission Requirements 

All submissions should contain the following items and in the following order. 

• Information Form (1 page) 
o A completed Information Form found on last page of this document. 

• Letter of Interest (2 pages maximum) 
o A typed letter of interest, including the artist's intent, rationale and a preliminary 

description of approach for this particular public art project. The letter should address the 
Selection Criteria (above) and include a statement about your artistic discipline and 
practice. 

• Concept Sketch (1 page) 
o Provide a concept sketch, maximum paper size 8.5 x 11 inches each. The final selected 

artist/artist team will be contracted to produce a final detailed design drawing or maquette 
under the terms of the artist agreement, prior to fabrication and installation of the artwork. 

• Resume/Curriculum Vitae (2 pages maximum) 
o Outline your experience as an artist, including any public art commissions. If you are 

submitting as a team, each member must provide a personal resume (each a maximum 
of 2 pages). 

• Three References 
o Individuals who can speak to your art practice and interest and/or experience in public art 

projects. Please include: name, occupation, title, organization, address, primary phone 
number, email and a brief statement describing the nature of your working relationship to 
the reference listed. 

a Artist teams provide 3 references total. 

• Other Support Documentation (Optional) (2 pages maximum) 
a This documentation may include (please properly cite all sources): 
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• Recent reviews and news clippings 

• Excerpts from programs, catalogues and other publications that include 
examples of your work 

• Annotated List of Images of Past Work (1 page maximum) 

o Provide the following information for all images: title of work, medium, approx. 
dimensions, location and date and the image file name. Artists are also encouraged to 
include a brief description. 

• Images of Past Work (10 maximum) 

o One image per page (full size) . 

o Do not place any text on or around the image 

Submission Guidelines 

This RFP accepts paper submissions via mail or delivered in person . Electronic submissions are 
accepted and encouraged. Submissions must be complete and strictly adhere to these guidelines and 
Submission Requirements (above) or risk not being considered. Faxed submissions will not be accepted. 

• All submissions (electronic and print) must be formatted to 8.5 x 11 inch pages. Do not send any 
models or maquettes: 

• The Artist's (or Team's) name should appear in the right header of every page. 

• Do not submit any original materials or files. Submissions will not be returned . 

• Do not bind, staple or use plastic cover sheets. 

In addition, electronic submissions: 

• Must be submitted in MS Word or PDF format. Do not submit materials that require plug-ins, 
extensions or other executables that need to be downloaded or installed. Do not compress (zip) 
files 

• Must be self-contained. Do not imbed links to other websites or on-line documentation or media. 

• Must be contained in one single document. Do not submit multiple electronic documents. 

• Must be 10MB or smaller (if emailed) . Submission over 10MB must be sent via PC-compatible 
CD. 

Submitting as a Team 
The team should designate one representative to complete the entry form. Team submissions must 
adhere to the specific submission guidelines with the following exceptions: 

• Each team member must submit an individual Resume/CV (See Submission Requirements) 

• All Team Memoers must list the ir ful l names on the space provided on the Information Form 
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Deadline for Submissions 

Submissions must be received by Tuesday, January 24, 2012 @2:00 pm. This is not a postmark date. 
Extensions to this deadline will not be granted under any circumstances. Submissions received after the 
deadline and those that are found to be incomplete will not be reviewed. 

It is the applicant's responsibility to ensure the submission package reaches the City of Richmond by the 
deadline. 

Email.mail or deliver submissions to: 
Richmond Public Art Program 
City of Richmond 
6911 No.3 Road 
Richmond, BC V6Y 2C1 
604-204-8671 
publicart@richmond.ca 

For questions and additional information, contact 
Eric Fiss, MAIBC, MCIP, LEED AP 
Public Art Planner 
City of Richmond 
604-247-4612 
efiss@richmond.ca 

For more information on the Public Art Program please visit www.richmond.ca/publicart. 

Additional Information 
Please be advised that the City and the selection panel are not obliged to accept any of the submissions, and may reject ali 
submissions. The City reserves the right to re issue the RFP as required. 

All information provided under the submission shall be considered confidential and shall only be disseminated to City staff and 
partners for the purposes of the selection process. Ali submissions to this RFP become the property of the City and will be held in 
confidence as required by law. The artist shall retain copyrigh t in the concept proposal. 

While every precaution wi ll be taken to prevent the loss or damage of submissions, the City and its agents shall not be liable for any 
loss or damage, however caused. 

Priority is given to artists who have not received commissions from the City of Richmond in the past three years. 
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Attachment 2 

Richmond Public Art Process 
Civic . Private . Community 

1 Public Art Opportunities Identified 

2 Public Art Plan Prepared by Applicant 

3 Public Art Plan Reviewed by RPAAC 

4 Public Art Plan Presented to City Council 

5 Public Art Contribution Secured 

6 Artist Call Developed 

7 Artist Selection Process 

8a Proiects on Private Land: 8 b Proiects on Cit~ Land: 
Artist or Concept Artist or Concept 
Recommendation Presented Recommendation Presented 
to Developer for Approval to City Council for Approval 

9 Artist Authorized to Proceed 

10 Project Completion 

.... 1." 

Project Documentation 
II 

3<;27761 
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Concept Proposal for Interurban Map 
Mia Weinberg , Arti st 

Attachment 3 

The artwork for the Steveston Interurban Tram Building wi ll be integrated directly into the floor 
of the outdoor covered platform. Visi tors will walk onto an approximately 25' x 14' 
representation of the 1956 Be Electric interurban tram map extending from Steveston north to 
the Fraser Ri ver. 

Materia ls 

SEA 
ISLAND 

snVUTON 1l1~"''''Y 

Historic photograph of the Steveston Line Map 

The tram route and station markers will be inlaid brass; the river wi ll be coloured glass pebbles. 
The roads, station names and street names-cut into the concrete--will enable visitors to situate 
the old stations relative to the Richmond of today. The station markers will be one to two feet 
apart so children will easily be able to step from one to the next starting at Steveston at the park 
end of the platform and ending at Tucks near the entrance doors to the building. 

3S2776! 
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SEA 
ISLAND 

LULU ISLAND 

Interurban Map layout on covered entry plaza floor 

" 
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Full scale mock-up of part of map in artist's studio 
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City of 
Richmond Bylaw 8905 

Development Application Fees Bylaw No. 7984, 
Amendment Bylaw No. 8905 

The Council of the City of Riclnnond enacts amendments to "Development Application Fees Bylaw 
No. 7984". as follows: 

1. By renumbering subsection 1.15 as subsection 1.16. 

2. By inserting the following new subsection after subsection 1.14: 

"1.15 Telecommunication Antenna Consultation and Siting Protocol Fees 

1.5.1 Every applicant under the Telecommunication Antenna Consultation 
and Siting Protocol must pay an application fee of $2,040." 

3. By inserting the following new definition within section 2.1 immediately following the 
definition of Public Hearing: 

"Telecommunication Antenna Consultation and Siting Protocol" means the current 
policy adopted by City Council that identifies the City process for managing consultation 
and providing siting guidelines for telecommunications antelma proposals under a 
proto·col pursuant to the Federal Radiocommunicalions Act. 

This Bylaw is cited as "Development Appljcation Fees Bylaw No. 7984, Amendment Bylaw No. 
8905". 

FIRST READING MAY 2 8 2012 

SECOND READING MAY 2 8 2012 

THlRD READING MAY 2 8 2012 

ADOPTED 

MAYOR CORPORATE OFFICER 

3522330 

APPROVED 
by OJ'ec! 

" 
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City of 
Richmond 

Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 
Amendment Bylaw 8765 (RZ 10-529089) 

7980 BROADMOOR BOULEVARD 

Bylaw 8765 

The Counci l of the City of Richmond, in open meeting assembled, enacts as fo llows: 

I. The Zoning Map of the City of Richmond, which accompanies and [anTIs part of 
Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, is amended by repealing the existing zoning designation 
of the following area and by designating it COACH HOUSES (ReH). 

P.I .D. 003-443-3 II 
LOT 5 EXCEPT: FIRSTLY PART SUBDIVIDED BY PLAN 1664 1 AND 
SECONDLY PARCEL F (STATUTORY RIGHT OF WAY PLAN 68053) 
BLOCK A SECTION 29 BLOCK 4 NORTH RANGE 6 WEST NEW WESTMINSTER 
DISTRICT PLAN 15653 

2. This Bylaw may be cited as "Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, Amendment Bylaw 
8765" . 

FIRST READING 

A PUBLIC HEARING WAS HELD ON 

SECOND READING 

THIRD READING 

OHlER REQUIREMENTS SATISFIED 

ADOPTED 

MAYOR 

32()S758 

JUN 2 7 2011 

JUL 1 8 2011 

JUL 1 8 201 1 

JUL 18 2011 

JUN 06 2012 

CORPORATE OFFICER 

CITY OF 
RICHMOND 

APPROVED 

a 
APPROVED 
by ~rec:tor 

)~ "' 
\) 
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• 
. , 

, City of 
Richmond Minutes 

Time: 

Place: 

Development Permit Panel 

Wednesday, May 30, 2012 

):)0 p.m. 

Council Chambers 
Richmond City Hall 

Present: Joe Erceg, Chair 
Dave Semple, General Manager, Parks and Recreation 
John Irving, Director, Engineering 

The meeting was called to order at 3:30 p.m. 

1. Minutes 

It was moved and seconded 
That the miuutes of tlte meeting of the Development Permit Pauel " eld 011 Wednesday, 
April 25, 2012, be at/opted. 

2. Development Permit 11-592266 
(File Ref. No.: DP 11 ·592266) (REDMS No. 3488241) 

APPLICANT: Kraftsmen Holdings Ltd. 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 41 51,4171 and 4191 No.4 Road 

INTENT OF PERMIT: 

CARRIED 

l. Pcnnit the construction of 25 three-storey townhouse units at 4151. 4171 and 4191 
No.4 Road on a site zoned Town Housing (ZT67); and 

2. Vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) Reduce the minimum lot size from 0.5 ha. (1.24 ac.) to 0.38 ha. (0.94 ac.); and 

b) Reduce the minimwn north side yard setback from 3.0 m to 1.6 m to allow a 
garbage and recycling enclosure attached to the proposed Building 7 to 
encroach into the side yard setback. 

L 
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3531263 

Appl icant's Comments 

Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday, May 30, 2012 

Taizo Yamamoto, Yamamoto Architecture Inc. , provided the following information 
regarding the 25 proposed townhouse units on No.4 Road near Odlin Road: 

• to the north of the subject site is the location of a new multiple. family development 
and to the south is another potential redevelopment site fronting No.4 Road and 
OdJinRoad; 

• the proposed architectural form is taken from the architectural elements of the 
adjacent development, to the north, to create a strong streetscape along No.4 Road; 

• three of the proposed buildings will front No.4 Road, and wi ll feature steps up to the 
yard and steps up to the front entries, thus creating some animation and some 
vertical articulation of the units; 

• the buildings located at the rear of the site are oriented east/west, with lots of light 
provided for the unit interiors; 

• the applicant has communicated with Tomsett Elementary School, that is located to 
the west of the subject site, to allow a footpath connection from the subject site, 
through a locked gate, and to the school property, to allow residents to access the 
school and use the school field and play equipment; 

• the outdoor amenity space is centrally located on the subject site, and because the 
proposed development was in mind when the site directly to the north was designed 
for development, cross·access is provided for a shared driveway between the two 
sites; 

• the outdoor amenity space features play equipment including a "mushroom" type 
table with stools, and a climbing structure; 

• penneable pavers will cover a large portion of the site to create textural interest and 
to distinctly indicate the site's entry; 

• the garbage and recycling enclosure is located at the entrance of the subject site; 

• one detached convertible unit is included in the design, with all units having aging. 
in·place features; 

• energy efficient appliances, and low-flow fixtures, are provided in all units; 

• central air conditioning is incorporated, due to aircraft noise, and residents will have 
cooling and heating without having to open windows; 

• individual units will have a strong front·to·back gable form accentuated by hip 
roofs, so that each wlit has a "pop up" feature, that will help create smaller scale; 
and 

• the proposed colour palette includes greys, with "punch out" colour applied to entry 
doors. 
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Panel Discussion 

Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday, May 30, 2012 

As a result of discussion that ensued among the Panel, staff, Mr. Yamamoto and Marlene 
Messer, Landscape Architect, PMG Landscape Architects Inc., the following advice was 
provided: 

• one of the retained trees is located on the adjacent property, 4211 No. 4 Road, to the 
south, and the other protected tree is located on the adjacent property, 967 1 Odlin 
Road, to the west of the subject site; 

• the applicant will ask the school district for permission to install stone pavers to 
connect to the ex isting walkway to the school; 

• the single shared access is sufficient, and was part of the overall plan, when the site 
to the north of the subject site was under discussion; 

• the development to the north has 26 townhouse units, and the proposed development 
under discussion has 2S townhouse units, and staff encouraged the two app licants to 
work together with regard to the single access; 

• access to the subject site is completely on the site to the north; the existing access 
includes a "bulge" in order to accommodate the recycling enclosure for the 
neighbouring site; 

• the survey conducted by the arborist indicated the sidewalk elevation, and the 
proposed change in grade precluded the likely survival of the on~site trees; 

• the architectural characteristics are sirnjlar to those of the townhouse units on the site 
north of the subject site, but reverse gables, stripped of decorative brackets, is one 
way to distinguish the hvo sites; and 

• the school playground is approximately 60 metres, or half a block, to the northwest 
of the subject site. 

Staff Comments 

Brian J. Jackson, Director of Development, advised that staff supports the application and 
the requested variances. 

With regard to the 52 bylaw~sized trees on~site, Mr. Jackson noted that according to the 
project arborist only three were in good condition, and with the change in grade, they were 
unlikely to survive. As part of their tree-planting plan, the applicant proposes to plant 46 
replacement trees on-site, and this number includes four large new trees in recognition of 
the larger trees that were among those removed. Mr. Jackson added that staff and the 
applicant have worked together to address the perception that trees are only being 
removed, not replaced. 

in response to a query from the Chair, Mr. Jackson advised that with regard to concerns 
raised at the September, 2011 , Public Hearing regarding disruption in the neighbourhood 
from construction trucks not adhering to appropriate construction hours, a Construction 
Parking and Traffi c Management Plan was submitted by the applicant, and approved by 
the Transportation Department. 
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Gallery Comments 

Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday, May 30, 2012 

Shing Tak Mak, Unit 25-4099 No.4 Road, accompanied by Alvin Cheung, Unit 11-4099 
No.4 Road, and Mr. Kwong, Unit 21-4099 No.4 Road, addressed the Panel and 
expressed the following concerns: 

(i) the inadequate nature of the driveway that is to be shared by the proposed 
townhouse units at 4151, 4171 and 4191 No.4 Road and the townhouse units at 
4099 No.4 Road; 

(ii) if the request to vary the minimwn lot size at the subject site was granted, from 0.5 
hectares to 0.38 hectares, it wouJd increase the density on the subject site, a density 
over and above that at 4099 No.4 Road; and 

(iii) if the request to reduce the minimum north side yard setback to allow a garbage and 
recycling enclosure attached to the proposed Building 7 was granted, it would bring 
the proposed garbage collection space too close to residents living at 4099 No.4 
Road, who would be adversely impacted by garbage smells. 

Mr. Cheung explained that townhouse residents at 4099 No.4 Road do not accumulate 
garbage at one location on their site, but have arranged for individual garbage collection, 
thereby avoiding the issue of garbage smells at 4099 No.4 Road. 

Mr. Jackson addressed the delegates' concerns and explained that Council can, through 
the rezoning process, address density, but the Development Pennit Panel does not have 
the ability to change density. 

He noted that: (i) the difference in density between the two sites is very small ; (ii) the 
difference in density was due to the different lot sizes, and the proposed site may appear 
more dense due to the provision of the driveway on the site to the north; and (iii) both the 
subject site and the site immediately to the north of the subject site are zoned the same, 
with similar variances. 

The Chair explained that, in tenns of density, the difference in density was so small as to 
be ulUloticeable. He added that the developer of the site where the delegates live sought, 
and received, almost the same lot size variance the applicant is seeking. He added that 0.5 
hectares is the minimum lot size, that the applicant is requesting a variance to permit 0.38 
hectares for the subject site, that 0.42 hectares was the variance granted at 4099 No.4 
Road, and that the floor area ratio is the same. 

In response to a request from Mr. Kwong, the Chair advised that the Panel is not 
mandated to address the issue of density. 

Mr. Jackson then commented on the garbage and recycling enclosure, and noted that it has 
a roof and doors. Its design is the same as the recycling enclosure that fomls part of the 
development directly north of the subject site. He added that residents of the proposed 
development would bring their garbage to the enclosure. 

The Chair thanked the delegates and remarked that the Panel would take their comments 
into consideration, wo uld deliberate, and would make a decision regarding the application. 
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Correspondence 

Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday, May 30, 2012 

Residents of 4099 No. 4 Road, in Townhouse Units: I, 2, 3, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, II , 12, 13, 14, 
17, 20,21,22,23,25 and 26 (Schedule 1) 

Panel Discussion 

Mr. Jackson stated that the applicant's request to reduce the minimum north side yard 
setback, from 3 metres to 1.6 metres, would allow the garbage and recycling enclosure to 
encroach into the side yard setback, and that the width between the two buildings is 
approximately 10 metres. 

In response to queries regarding garbage collection, Mr. Yamamoto advised that: (i) the 
appl icant is willing to consider a door-to-door pick up, instead of residents taking their 
garbage to one location for pick up; (ii) the proposed location of the garbage and recycling 
enclosure was chosen because trucks would not be driving near the play area, or deep into 
the proposed development, on their way to pick up garbage and recycling material; and 
(iii) there is an opportunity for the shape of the proposed enclosure to be massaged so that 
it projects less into the north side yard setback. 

The Chair remarked that the proposed development is laid out well, and that the concerns 
of density, are beyond the scope of the Panel. He noted that the proposed garage and 
recycling enclosure arrangement is a common one throughout the City, and that tllis 
common arrangement is not problematic at other locations. 

The Panel expressed support for the proposed development. 

Panel Decision 

It was moved and seconded 
Tlrat a Developmellt Permit be issued wlrich would: 

1. Permit the COllstrllctioll of 25 three-storey townhouse IIniis at 4151, 41 71 alld 
4191 No.4 Road on a site zonell Towll Hous ing (ZT67); alld 

2. Vary ti,e provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) Reduce tlte minimum lot size from 0.5 Ita. (1.24 ac.) to 0.38 ha. (0.94 ac.); 
awl 

b) Redllce lir e minimum 1I0rtlt side yard setback /1'0111 3.0 nr to 1.6 m to allow a 
garbage alld recycling enclosure al/aclred to the proposed Building 7 to 
ellcroaclt illto the side yard setback. 

CARRIED 
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Wednesday, May 30, 2012 

3. Development Permit DP 12-6029961 HA 12-602998 
(File Ref. No.: DP 12-602996/ HA 12-6029~8) (REDMS No. 3512815) 

353 1263 

APPLICANT: City of Richmond 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 3811 Moncton Street 

INTENT OF PERMIT: 

I. Pennit the rehabilitation of the exterior of the Japanese Fishermen's Benevolent 
Society Building, a designated Heritage Building, in order to re-use the building as a 
wing of the Steveston Museum at 3811 Moncton Street on a site zoned Steveston 
Commercial (CS2); and 

2. Issue a Heritage Alteration Pennit for 3811 Moncton Street in accordance with 
Development Pennit (DP 12·602996). 

Applicant's Comments 

James Burton, Architect, Birmingham and Wood Architects, provided the following 
infonnation with regard to the rehabilitation of the exterior of the Japanese Fishermen's 
Benevolent Society Building, which is designated as a Heritage Building, in order to re­
use the building as a wing of the Steveston Museum, located at 3811 Moncton Street at 1 SI 

Avenue in the Village of Steveston: 

• the Japanese Fishennen's Benevolent Society Building will undergo minimal 
changes; 

• the planned interventions will rehabilitate the building's exterior according to best 
practices for heritage conservation; 

• where material has to be replaced, it will be done so carefully; 

• one of the three main rehabilitation works for the building's exterior is restoration 
of the original form of the front porch, using archival photos to inform details of the 
wood porch; 

• the second of the three main rehabilitation works for the building's exterior is the 
additional of a partially enclosed glazed connection between the Japanese 
Fishermen's Benevolent Society Building and the Steveston Museum, the two 
buildings that share one site; and 

• the third of the main rehabilitation works for the building's exterior is: (i) a new 
door into the building in an existing door opening that will be used for an exterior 
door onto a patio; and (ii) a second new door that is within the glass enclosure that 
forms a new doorway for the connection of the two buildings. 

Discussion ensued and the following additional infonnation was provided by Mr. Burton: 

• restoration of the roof involves cedar shingles, and this material matches that of the 
roof of the Steveston Museum; cedar shingles were applied to the original roofs of 
~e two Heritage Buildings; 
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Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday. May 30. 2012 

• the intention of the glazed connection is to not confuse the public as to what is new 
and what is old; and 

• there are two buildings on the site and circumstances have placed them close to 
each other so they must function together, and the glass connection both recognizes 
the distinction and yet connects the museum function. 

Tn response to a query Mr. Burton advised that the proposed restoration was presented to 
the Riclunond Heritage Commission and to the Steveston Historical Society and the plan 
met with support from both entities. 

Staff Comments 

Mr. Jackson advised that staff supports the application and noted that the Architect has 
planned the restoration so that: (i) it respects the heritage aspect of the building; and (ii) a 
minimalist approach has been applied to thi s project. 

Panel Discussion 

In response to queries, Mr. Burton stated that: 

• the new glazed cOlU1ection is constructed using a painted steel frame with tempered 
glass; this creates a skin so that the rain is kept out, and yet the glass does not touch 
either of tbe existing Heritage Buildings; 

• in trying to affect the existing Heritage Buildings as little as possible, the roofline 
cuts across a window frame, a necessary design to avoid snow loading on a lower 
roof of the Steveston Museum; and 

• a roof that is higher than the windows on the Japanese Fishermen's Benevolent 
Society Building would adversely affect the rear roof of the Steveston Museum. 

Gallery Comments 

Peter Mitchell, 627 1 Nanika Crescent, spoke in his capacity as Vice-President of the 
Army. Navy and Air Force (ANAF) housing project on No. I Road in the Village of 
Steveston, and stated that the Japanese Fishermen's Benevolent Society Building was 
originally sited on the ANAP property before it was moved to the Steveston Museum site. 
He advised that the ANAF is happy to see that the restoration work was conmlencing on 
the relocated Heritage Building. 

Speaking as a resident of the City,Mr. Mitchell posed questions to the Architect regarding 
trees and green space, access to the site, and internal doors. In response, Mr. Burton 
provided the following advice: 

• regarding trees and green space, there is no change to the landscaping, except the 
addition of a gravel pathway into the green space between the building and the 
property to the north, creating a more inviting access to the park from 1st Avenue; 
and no trees are being removed from the site; and 
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Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday, May 30, 2012 

• interior works will be specified at a later date, but the intention is to leave inside 
doorways intact. 

Correspondence 

None. 

Panel Discussion 

The Panel supported the application, while one Panel member expressed reservations 
regarding the glass and steel structure. There was general agreement that it was good to 
see effort put into the enhancement of the City's Heritage Buildings. 

Panel Decision 

It was moved and seconded 
1. That a Development Permit be issued w/tich would permit the rehabilitation of tire 

exterior 0/ tire Japanese Fishermen 's Benevolent Society Building, a desigllated 
Heritage Bllildillg, ill order to re-llse the building as a willg of tire Stevestoll 
Museum at 3811 MOllctOIl Street Olt a site ZOlled Stevestoll Commercial (CS2) ,' 
ami 

2. That a fIeri/age A lteratiolt Permit be issued f or 3811 MOllctOIl Street ill 
accordance with Development Permit (DP 12-602996). 

CARRIED 

4. Development Variance Permit 12·603451 
(File Ref. No.: DV 12-603(51) (REOMS No. 3513761) 

JSll263 

APPLICANT: 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 

INTENT OF PERMIT: 

British Columbia Marine Employers Association 

11000 Twigg Place (formerly part of 11060 and 11 200 Twigg 
Place) 

To vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to increase the maximum height 
for accessory structures from 20.0 meters to 50.0 meters, at 11000 Twigg Place (formerly 
part of 11060 and 11200 Twigg Place) on a site zoned " Industrial (I)". 

Applicant's Comments 

Brian Dagneault, Daniel Dagneault Planning Consultants, Richmond, advised that, 
regarding the development of a container handling training facility proposed at 11000 
Twigg Place Phase 4 of the Mitchell West Industrial Park. He noted that properties to the 
east, north and south are developed, and the property to the west of the subject site is a 
vacant lot. 

8. CNCL - 274



3S11263 

Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday, May 30, 2012 

Mr. Dragneault stated that the request to vary the maximum height for accessory 
structures, if granted, would allow two steel cranes to be located at the western side of the 
subject site. 

John Beckett, Vice-President of Training, Safety and Recruitment, for B.C. Maritime 
Employers Association (BCl\.1EA) provided the following background infonnation: (i) 
BCMEA trains workers to safely move goods and containers off and on freighters and 
ships; (ii) BCMEA is consolidating its training on one site, the Mitchell Island site, to 
achieve efficiencies; (iii) BCMEA's key role is to ensure a well tTained workforce and the 
Twigg Place location wi ll help them make that happen; (iv) training requires a safe and 
controlled environment; (v) BCl\.1EA will purchase a Pedestal Crane for installation on the 
Twigg Place site, with a working height is 43 metres; (vi) the Mitchell Island site is an 
appropriate location for a training facility due to its central geographic location and its flat 
and undeveloped nature; and (vii) the requested height variance is for the 43 metre 
Pedestal Crane and a second crane that has a reach of 50 metres. 

Panel Discussion 

Discussion. ensued between the Panel and the delegates, and especially on the proposed 
landscaping scheme. In response to a query regarding landscaping treatment on the south 
side of the subject site, the sige that faces a proposed residential development across the 
Fraser River, the delegates advised that some practical aspects, such as riparian rights and 
log and barge storage, would create impediments to the idea. Mr. Beckett noted that no 
training activity would take place on the river. He added that there would be a hard 
surface on the ground, right up to the river's edge. 

Discussion continued and in particular on whether, as part of the original English Bay 
subdivision, there was any right-of~way for a Mitchell Island dike. Staff advised that no 
dike right of way exists on Mitchell Island. 

Staff Comments 

Mr. Jackson advised that staff supports the requested development variance and that the 
proposed use of the subject site, training of shoreline operators fo r the major ports in B.C., 
would have a minimal impact on the existing landscape elements. He noted that staff did 
not feel it was appropriate to contribute to the dike, that the applicant's use is an interim 
one, and that the applicant was not asked to contribute to the dike. 

Discussion ensued between the Panel and Mr. Jackson, and in response to a concern that 
the subject site might, in the future, be diked. Mr. Jackson advised that the way the two 
proposed cranes are configured would not prevent the City from locating a dike there, and 
that despite the proposed training activities on the subject site, there would sti ll be access 
to the site from the foreshore. 

At the request of the Panel, Mr. Jackson stated that before the application went before 
Council, staff and the applicant would discuss the idea of a landscaping scheme along the 
south side of the subject site. 
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Ga"ery Comments 

None. 

Correspondence 

None. 

Panel Discussion 

Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday, May 30, 2012 

The Panel agreed that the proposed use of the site was a good one for Mitchell Island. The 
Chair reiterated that staff and the applicant would look at what, if anything, by way of 
landscaping, could be done along the south side of the subject site. 

Panel Decision 

It was moved and seconded 
That a Development Variance Permit be issued which would vary the provisiolls of 
Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to increase the maximum height for accessory structures 
from 20.0 meters to 50.0 meters, at 11000 Twigg Place (formerly part of 1I060 amI 
J 1200 Twigg Place) 011 a site ZOlled "Indtlstrial (1) ". 

CARRIED 

5. Development Permit 12-603496 
(File Ref. No.: OP 12-603496) (REOMS No. 3522935) 

3531263 

APPLICANT: Fusion Project Management Ltd. 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 8900 No.1 Road 

INTENT OF PERMIT: 

To pennit store front improvements to the existing commercial building at 8900 No. 1 
Road on a site zoned "Neighbourhood Commercial (CN)". 

Applicant's Comments 

Larry McPherson, Fusion Project Management Ltd. , Vancouver, provided the following 
information regarding the proposed modification of the facade of the existing commercial 
building at 8900 No. I Road, near Francis Road, to enable the applicant to undertake a 
leasehold improvement at the subject site, in order to operate a financial service outlet: 

• the existing commercial building contains two store spaces; 

• some existing windows will be replaced; 

• the canopy will be removed; 

• a projected parapet will be added and the parapet colour scheme is grey, with orange 
and blue corporate colours of the tenant included; and 
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• the existing landscaping will be expanded with the addition of flowers and shrubs. 

Staff Comments 

Mr. Jackson advised that staff supports the application and the various cosmetic 
improvements. The proposed landscape scheme will be updated but will not impede 
sightlines for area drivers and pedestrians. 

In response to a query, Mr. Jackson advised that over $50,000 would be spent on 
renovations to the exterior of the commercial building. 

Gallery Comments 

None. 

Correspondence 

None. 

Panel Decision 

It was moved and seconded 
Thai a Developmellt Permit be issued wltich would permit store frollt improvements to 
tlte existing commercial buildillg at 8900 No. J Road Oil a site zoned UNeiglrbourllOod 
Commercial (CN) ". 

CARRIE D 

6. New Business 

It was moved and seconded 
Tltat the Developmellt Permit Pallel meeting tentatively sclteduled f or Wednesday, JUlle 
13, 2012 be cancelled, alld tlrat tir e " ext meeliug of tire Development Permit Panel be 
tentatively scheduled to take place ill tlte Cotmcil Clrambers, Richmolld City Hall, at 
3:30 p.m. 0 11 Wedllesday, JUlie 27, 2012. 

CARRIED 

7. Date Of Next Meeting: Wednesday, June 27,2012 

8. Adjournment 

It was moved and seconded 
Tltat the meeting be adjourned at 4:45 p.m. 

CARRIED 

11. 
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Joe Erceg 
Chair 

3531263 

Development Permit Panel 
Wednesday, May 30, 2012 

Certified a true and correct copy of the 
Minutes of the meeting of the 
Development Penuit Panel of the Council 
of the City of Riclunond held on 
Wednesday, May 30, 2012. 

Sheila Jolmston 
Committee Clerk 
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City of 
Richmond 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11-592266 
6911 NO.3 Road. Richmond, Be V6Y 2C1 

Phone.604-276+4007 Fax 804-278-5139 

Applicant: Kraftsmen Holdings Ltd. Schedule 1 to tbe Minutes of 
the Development Permit 
Panel meeting of Wednesday, 
May 30, 2012. 

Propert)' Location: 4151,417 1, and 4 191 No.4 Road 

J ntent of Pe rm it: 

To pemlil the construction of25 three-storey town house units on a s ite zoned Town Housing (ZT67t 
.and 

To vary the provi sions of Richmond Zon ing Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) Reduce the minimum lot size from 0.5 ha . (1.24 a~) to 0.38 htl. (0.94 ac.); and 

b) Reduce the minimum north side yard setback from 3.0 III to 1.6 m to a llow a garbage and 
recycling enclosure atlached to the proposed Building 7 to e.l1croac.h into the side yard 
setback. 

The Richmond Developmtnt Permit Panel will meet 10 consider oral and written submissions on the 
proposed developmenl noted above, on: 

Date: 
T ime: 
I' lace: 

May 30, 201 2 
3:30 p.m. 
Coullci l Chambers, Richmond Ci ty Hall 

If you are unable fO attend the Development Permi t Panel meeting, you may mail or otherwise 
deliver to the Di rector, City Clerk's Office, at the above address, a written submission, whic h wil! 
be entered iOlo the meeting record if it is received prior 10 or ti t the meeting on the above date. 

I (We) do not agree the above provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to reduce minimum 

requirements of lot sIze and north side setback. 

Owner of unit-1- 4099 No.4 Road Richmond S.c. V6X 2M2 

( lkw,w '-1I-~"c,) 
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Applicant: 

Cit y of 
Richmond 

Kraftsmen Holdings Ltd. 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11 -592266 
6911 NO.3 Road, Richmond, Be V6Y 2C1 

Phone 604-276-4007 Fax 604-278-5139 

Property Location: 4151,4171, and 4191 No.4 Road 

Intent of Permit: 

To permit the construction of25 three-storey townhouse units on a site zoned Town Housing (ZT67); 
and 

To vary the provis ions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) Reduce the minimum lot size from 0.5 ha. (1.24 ac.) to 0.38 ha. (0.94 ac.); and 

b) Reduce the minimum north side yard setback from 3.0 m to 1.6 m to allow a garbage and 
recycling enclosure attached to the proposed Building 7 to encroach into the side yard 
setback. 

The Richmond Development Pennit Panel will meet to consider ora l and written submissions on the 
proposed development noted above, on: 

Date: 
T ime: 
Place: 

May 30, 20 12 
3:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Richmond City Hall 

If you are unable to attend the Development Permit Panel meeting, you may mail or othenvise 
del iver to the Director, C ity C lerk's Office, at the above address, a written submission, which will 
be entered into the meeting record if it is receiv_ed p r ior to or at the meetin g on the a bove da te. 

I (We) do not agree the above provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to reduce minimum 

requirements of lot size and north side setback. 

dI~-7~ 
Owner of unit~ 4099 No.4 Road Richmond S.c. V6X 2M2 

( (~L 1-;' ", ___ 1- AL_ I) 
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City of 
Richmond 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11-592266 
6911 No.3 Road, Richmond, Be V6Y 2C1 

Phone-604--276-4007 Fax 604-278-5139 

Applicant: Kraffsmen Holdings Ltd. 

. 
Property Location: 4151,4 171, and 419 1 No.4 Road 

Intent of Permit: 

To penn it the construction of25 three-stOrey mwnhouse units on a site zoned Town Housing (ZT67); 
and 

To vary the prov isions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) Reduce the minimum lot size from 0.5 ha. (1.24 ac.) to 0.38 hu. (0.94 ac.); and 

b) Reduce the minimum nonb side yard setback. from 3.0 m 10 1.6 m fo a llow a garbage and 
recycling enclosure anached to the proposed Building 7 tp encroacb into the side yard 
setback. 

The Richmond Development Penn it Panel wil l meet to cons ider 9ral and written submissions on the 
proposed development noted above, on: 

Date: 
T im e: 
Place: 

May 30, 2012 
3:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Richmond City Hal l 

'fyoll are unable ro attend the Development Perm it Panel me.cting, you may mai l or othe rwise 
del ive r to tile Director) City C lerk's Oflice, at [he above address, a wrinen submission, which will 
be entered into the meeti ng record ifit is received prior to or a t the meeting on the above da te. 

I (We) do not agree the above provisions of Richmond Zonin'J~ Bylaw 8500 to reduce minimum 

requirements ot lot size ~nd north.,e setback. 

) 
~/ 

d~ I 
Owner of unit.,E2 4099 0.4 Road Rich mond B.C. V6X 2M2 

C. ... LVI N ~c,) 
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City of 
Richmond 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11-592266 
6911 No. 3 Road, RiChmond, Be V6Y 2C 1 

PhOne 604-276,..4007 Fax 604-278-5139 

Applicant: Kraftsmen i-loldings ltd. 

. 
Property Locatio n: 4151,4\7 1, and 4 191 No. 4 Road 

fllten t of Per mit : 

To permit the construction of25 three-slorey townhouse units on a site zoned TO\\-n Housing (ZT67); 
and 

To vary the provisions of Richmond Zon ing Bylaw 8500 10: 

a) Reduce the minimum lot size from 0.5 ha. (1.24 ae.) to 0.38 ho. (0.94 ae.); and 

b) Reduce the minimum nonh side yard selback from 3.0 m 10 1.6 m (0 allow a ga rbage and 
recycling en,closure attached to the proposed Building 7 to encroach into the side ya rd 
setback. 

The Richmond Development Permit Panel will meet (0 cOllsider oral and written submissions on the 
proposed development noted above, on: 

D"te: 
T ime: 
l' lacc: 

May 30, 20 12 
3:30 p.m. 
Counci l Cba!nbers, Richmond Ci ty Hall 

Ifyau are unable to anend the Development Pem,it Panel meeting, you may mai l or otherwise 
de liver to the Director, City Clerk's O rfice, al [lie above address, a wrinen submission, which will 
be entered into the meeting record if it is recei\'ed prior to 01' at the meeti ng o n the above date. 

(l 
I (We) do not agree the above provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to reduce minimum 

requirements of lot size and north side setback . . 

Vr; 
Owner of unit __ 4099 No, 4 Road Richmo nd S.C, V6X 2M2 
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City of 
Richmond 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11-592266 
6911 NO.3 Road, Richmond, Be V6Y 2C1 

Phone 604+276-4007 Fax 604-278-5139 

Applicant: Kraftsmen Holdings Ltd. 

Property Location: 4 151 ,417 1, and 4191 No.4 Road 

Intent of Permit: 

To pennit the construction of25 three-storey townhouse units on a site zoned Town Housing (ZT67); 
and 

To vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) Reduce the minimum lot size from 0.5 ha. (1.24 ae.) to 0.38 ha. (0.94 ae.); and 

b) Reduce the minimum north s ide yard setback from 3.0 m to 1.6 m to allow a garbage and 
recycling enclosure attached to the proposed Bui-Iding 7 to encroach into the side yard 
setback. 

The Richmond Development Pennit Panel will meet to consider oral and written submissions on the 
proposed development ~oted above, on: 

Date: 
Time: 
Place: 

May 30, 20 12 
3:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Richmond City Hall 

If you are unable to attend the Development Permit Panel meeting, you may mai l or otherwise 
del iver to the Director, City Clerk's Office, at the above address, a written submission, which will 
be entered into the meeting record if it is receiv.ed prior to or at the meeting on the above date. 

[ (We) do not agree the above provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to reduce minimum 

requirements of lot size and north side setback. 

/ 
IJ..r1 ·Q.w-Rer of unit 7 4099 No.4 Road Richmond B.C. V6X 2M2 

(t ,(~5,j)~ --
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Applicant: 

City of 
Richmond 

Kraftsmen Holdings Ltd. 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11-592266 
6911 No.3 Road, Richmond, Be V6Y 2C1 

Phone 604-276-4007 Fax 604-278-5139 

Property Loca tion: 4151,4171, and 4191 No.4 Road 

In tent of Permit: 

To pelwit the construction of25 three-storey townhouse units on a site zoned Town Housing (ZT67); 
and 

To vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) Reduce the minimum lot size from 0.5 ha. (1.24 ac.) to 0.38 ha. (0.94 ac.); and 

b) Reduce the minimum north side yard setback from 3.0 m to 1.6 m to allow a garbage and 
recyc ling enclosure attached to the proposed Building 7 to encroach into the side yard 
setback. 

The Richmond Development Pennit Panel will meet to consider oral and written submissions on the 
proposed development noted above, on: 

Date: 
T ime: 
P lace : 

May30,20 12 
3:30 p.m. 
Counc il Chambers, Richmond City Hall 

If you are unable to attend the Deve lopment Permit Panel meeting. you may mail or otherwise 
deliver to the Director , C ity C lerk's Office, at the above address, a written submission, which will 
be entered into the meeting record if it is rece iyed prior to or at the meeting on the above date. 

I (We) do not agree the above provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to reduce minimum 

requirements of lot size and north side setback. 

Owner of unitL 4099 No.4 Road Richmond B.C. V6X 2M2 

L LA-I Yr~ C N(,) 
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City of 
Richmond 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11-592266 
6911 NO.3 Road, Richmond, Be V6Y 2C 1 

Phone 604-276·4007 Fax 604·278-5139 

Applicant: Kraftsmen Holdings Ltd. 

Property Location: 4151,4171, and 4191 No. 4 Road 

Intent of Permit: 

To permit the construction of25 three-storey townhouse units on a site zoned Town Hous ing (ZT67); 
and 

To vary the provisions of Richmond Zon ing Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) Reduce the minimum lot size from 0.5 ha. (1.24 ac.) to 0.38 ha. (0 .94 ac.); and 

b) Reduce the minimum north side yard setback from 3.0 m to 1.6 m to allow a garbage and 
recycling enclosu re attached to the proposed Building 7 to encroach into the side yard 
setback. 

The Richmond Development Permit Panel will meet to consider oral and written submissions on the 
proposed deve lopment noted above, on: 

Da te: 
Time: 
Place: 

May 30, 2012 
3:30 p.m. 
Counci l Chambers, Richmond City Hall 

If you are unab le to attend the Development Perm it Pane l meeting, you may mail or otnelwise 
del iver to the Director, City Clerk' s Office, at the above address, a written submiss ion, wh ich wi ll 
be entered into the meeting record if it is receiv.ed prior to or at the meeting on the above date. 

I (We) do not agree the above provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to reduce minimum 

requirements of lot size and north side se tback. 

Owne of unit~ 4099 No.4 Road Richmond S.c. V6X 2M2 

CNCL - 285



City of 
Richmond 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11 -592266 
6911 No.3 Road, Richmond, Be V6Y 2ei 

Phone.61;J4-276-40Q7 Fax 604-278-5139 

App licant: Kraftsmen Holdings ltd. 
. 

P .'operty Location: 4151 , 4171, and 4191 No.4 Road 

Intent' of Permit: 

To permit the cOl1stru~tjon or25 three-storey townhouse units on a sire zoned Town Housing (ZT67); 
and 

To vary [he prov isions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 10: 

a) Reduce the minimum lot size from 0.5 ha. (1.24 nc.) to 0'.38 ba. (0.94- nc .) ~ and 

b) Reduce the minimum nonh side yard setback from 3.0 m to 1.6 m to allow a garbage and 
recycling enclosure attached to the proposed Building 7 to encroach into the side yard 
setback. 

The Richmond Development Penllit Panel will meet to consider oral and written submissions on the 
proposed development noted above, on: 

Date: 
Time: 
P lace: 

Mal' 30, 2012 
3:30 p.m. 
COllncil Chambers. Richmond City Hall 

If YOLI are unable to attend the Development Permit Panel mee ting. you may mail or otherwise 
deliver to the Directo .·, City C lerk's Office, at the above address, a wrinen submission, which will 
be entered into the meeling record ifit is re<:ei\'ed prior to 0.· a t the meeti ng on th e above date. 

I (We) do not agree the above provisiqns of Richmond Zoning B'y(aw 8500 to reduce minim um 

requirements of lot size and north side setback. 

OWner of unitU 4099 No.4 Road Richmond S.c. V6X 2M2 

CNCL - 286



City of 
Richmond 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11-592266 
6911 NO.3 Road, Richmond, Be V6Y 2C1 

Phone 604-276-4007 fax 604-278-5139 

Appl.icant: Kraf'tsmen Holdings Ltd. 

.P l-opcrty Location: 4 151,4171, and.J 191 NO.4 Road 

Intent of Permit: 

To pemlit the constructioll of25 three-slOrey townhouse units on a site zoned Town Housing (ZT67); 
and 

To vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) Reduce the minimum lot size from 0.5 ha. (1.24 ac.) to 0.38 ha. (0.94 ac.); and 

b) Reduce rhe minimum nonh side yard setback from 3.0 m 10 1.6 In to allow a garbage and 
recycling enclosure attached to the proposed Building 7 tp encroach into the side yard 
sett>ack. 

The Richmond Developm'ent Permit Panel will meet to consider oral and written submiss ions on the 
proposed de"eloplll~nt noted above, on: 

Date: 
Time: 
P lace! 

May 30, 20 12 
3:30 p.m. 
Counc il Chambers, Richmond City Hall 

If YOLI are unable to attend the Development Permit Pane! meeting, you may mail or otherwise 
deliver to the Di recto r, City Clerk's OlTIce, at the above address, a written submission, ... vhich will 
be entered into the meeting record ifit is received prior to 0 1· at the meeting o n the above da te. 

I (We) do not agree the above provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to reduce minimum 

requIrements of lot size and north side setback. 

Owner of unitlL. 4099 No. 4 Road Richmo nd B.C. V6X 2M2 

CNCL - 287



, .. 

City of 
Richmond 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11-592266 
6911 No.3 Road, Richmond, Be V6Y tel 

Phone 604-276-4007 Fax 604-278-5139 

Applicant: Kraftsmen Holdings Ltd. 

Property Locat ion: 4151,4171, and 4191 No.4 Road 

In tent of Permit : 

To permit the construction of25 three-storey townhouse units on a site zoned Town Housing (ZT67); 
and 

To vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) Reduce the minimum lot size from 0.5 ha. (1.24 ae.) to 0.38 ha. (0.94 ae.); and 

b) Reduce the minimum north side yard setback from 3.0 m to 1.6 m to allow a garbage and 
recycling enclosure attached to the proposed Building 7 to encroach into the side yard 
setback. 

The Richmond Development Pennit Panel will meet to consider oral and written submissions on the 
proposed development noted above, on: 

Date: 
T ime: 
P lace: 

May30, 20 12 
3:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Richmond City Hall 

If you are unable to attend the Development Permit Panel meeting, you may mai l or otherwise 
del iver to the Director , C ity C lerk 's Office, at the above address, a written submission, which will 
be entered into the meeting record if it is receiv.ed prior to or at t he meeti.ng on t he above date. 

I (We) do not agree the above provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to reduce minimum 

requirements of lot size and north side setback. 

Owner of unit { )..- 4099 No.4 Road Richmond 8.C. V6X 2M2 

CNCL - 288



City of 
Richmond 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11-592266 
6911 No.3 Road, Richmond, Be V6Y 2C1 

Phone 604-276-4007 Fax 604-278-5139 

Applicant: Kraftsmen Holdings Ltd . 

Property Location: 415 1, 4 171, and 4191 No.4 Road 

Intent of Permit: 

To pennit the construction of25 three-storey townhouse units on a site zoned Town Housing (ZT67); 
and 

To vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to; 

a) Reduce the minimum lot size from 0.5 ha. (1.24 ae.) to 0.38 ha. (0.94 ae.); and 

b) 'Reduce the minimum north side yard setback from 3.0 m to 1.6 m to allow a garbage and 
recycling enclosure attached to the proposed Bui-lding 7 to encroach into the side yard 
setback. 

The Richmond Development Permit Panel will meet to consider oral and written submissions on the 
proposed development noted above, on: 

Da te: 
T ime: 
Place: 

May 3D, 2012 
3:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Richmond City Hall 

If you are unable to attend the Development Permit Panel meeting, you may mail or otherwise 
deliver to the Director, City Clerk's Office, at the above add ress, a written submission, which will 
be entered into the meeting record if it is receiv.ed prior to or at the meeting on the a bove date. 

I (We) do not agree the above provisions of Richmond Zo ning Bylaw 8500 to reduce minimum 

requirements of lot size and north side setback. 

Owner of unitA 409 No.4 oad Richmond B.C. V6X 2M2 

CNCL - 289



City of 
Richmond 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11-592266 
6911 NO.3 Road, Richmond, Be Y6Y 2C1 

Phone 604-276-4007 Fax 604-278-5139 

Applicant: Kraftsmen Holdings Ltd. 

Property Location: 4 151,4 17 1, and 4191 No.4 Road 

Intent of Permit: 

To pennit the construction of25 three-storey townhouse units on a site zoned Town Housing (ZT67); 
and 

To vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) Reduce the minimum lot size from O.S ha. ( 1.24 ac.) to 0.38 ha. (0.94 ac.); and 

b) Reduce the minimum north side yard setback from 3.0 m to 1.6 m to allow a garbage and 
recycling enclosu re attached to the proposed Building 7 to encroach into the side yard 
setback. 

The Richmond Deve lopment Permit Panel will meet to consider ora l and written submissions on the 
proposed development noted above, on: 

Date: 
Time: 
P lace: 

May30, 2012 
3:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Richmond City Hall 

If you are unable to attend the Deve lopment Permit Panel meeting, you may mai l or othe.lWise 
de liver to the Director, C ity Clerk's Office, at the above address, a written submission, which wil l 
be entered into the meeting record if it is received p ri or to or at the meeting on the above date. 

I (We) do not agree the above provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to reduce minimum 

requirements of lot size and north side setback. 

) 

woe;: of unitJ!i... 4099 No.4 Road Richmond B.C. V6X 2M2 

CNCL - 290



City of 
Richmond 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11-592266 
6911 NO.3 Road, Richmond, Be V6Y 2C1 

Phone 604~276--4007 Fax 6Q4-27B·5139 

Ap plicant: Kraftsmen Holdings ltd. 

Property Location: 4151 , 4 17J , and4 19! No.4 Road 

Intent of Pel'mit: 

To penn illhe construction oi 25 three-storey townhouse units on a s ite zoned Town Housing (ZT67); 
und 

To vary the pro,!isions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) Reduce the mini mum lot siz.e from 0.5 h<l. ( 1.24 ao.) to 0.38 ha. (0.94 ac.); and 

b) Reduce the minimum nOl1h side yard setback from 3.0 In to 1.6 m ' (0 allow a garbage and 
recyc ling enclosure attached to [he proposed BU ilding 7 to encroacb into the side ya rd 
setpnck, 

The Richmond Development Permit Panel will meet to consider ora l and written submissions on the' 
proposed development noted above, on: 

.Da te: 
Time: 
P lace: 

May 30,20 12 
3,30 p.m. 
Counc il Chambers, Richmond City Hall 

If you art: unable to atte nd the Development Permi t Panelmee:ting, YOIl may mai l or othe rwise 
deliver to the Direcl"o r~ City Clerk's Office, at the above address, <l written submiSSion! which will 
be entered into the meeting record if it is rece-ived pdor to or a t the mee ti ng on the above date. 

I (We) do not agree the above provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to reduce min imum 

requirements of lot size and north side setback. 

Owner of unit r? 4099 No.4 Road Richmond B.C. V6X 2M2 

CNCL - 291



Applicant: 

City of 
Richmond 

, 
Kraftsmen Hold ings Ltd. 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11-592266 

. 

6911 NO.3 Road, Richmond, Be V6Y 2C1 
Phone 604-276-4007 Fax 604-278-5139 

Property Loca tion: 4151,4171, and 4191 No.4 Road 

Intent of Permit: 

To permit the construction of25 three-storey townhouse units on a site zoned Town Housing (ZT67); 
and 

To vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) Reduce the minimum lot size from 0.5 ha. (1.24 ac.) to 0.38 ha. (0.94 ac.); and 

b) Reduce the minimum north side yard setback from 3.0 m to 1.6 m to allow a garbage and 
recycling enclosure attached to the proposed Building 7 to encroach into the side yard 
setback. 

The Richmond Development Permit Pane l will meet to consider oral and written submissions on the 
proposed deve lopment noted above, on: ' 

Date: 
Time: 
Place: 

May 30, 2012 
3:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Richmond City Hall 

If you are unable to attend the Development Permit Pane l meeting, you may mail or othelWise 
deliver to the Director, City Clerk's Office, at the above address, a written submission, which will 
be entered into the meeting record if it is received pr io r to Or a t the meeting on the above da te. 

f (We) do not agree the above provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to reduce minimum 

requirements of lot size and north side setback. 

Own r of unit~ 4099 No.4 Road Richmond B.C. V6X 2M2 

I l L f I< lA-.,. )<l "- :) 
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City of 
Richmond 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11-592266 
6911 NO.3 Road, Richmond, Be vaY 2C1 

Phone.6Q4-276-4007 Fax 604-278-5139 

Applicant: Kraitsmcn Holdings l td. 

Property Locat ion: 4151,4171. and 4 191 No.4 Road 

fntenr of Permi t: 

To pennil the construction of25 three-stOrey townhouse units on a s ite zoned TOWll Housing (ZT67); 
anu 

To vary the provisions of Ri chmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 10: 

a) Reduce the minimum lot size from 0.5 ha. (1 .24 ac.) to 0.38 !la. (0.94 ae,); and 

b) Reduce the minimum nonh side yard setback from 3.0 m to 1.6 m to allow a garbage and 
recycling enclosure anached to the proposed Building 7 to encroach into the side yard 
setback. 

The Richmond Developm'ent Pennil Panel will meet to cons ide r ofa l and written submissions on the 
proposed development nored above, on: 

.Da te: 
T ime: 
P lace: 

MayJO,2012 
3:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Richmond City Hall 

If you are unable to attend the Development Permit Panel meeting, you may mail or otherwise 
deliver to the Director, City C lerk's Ortice, al the above address, a written submiss ion, which will 
be entered into [he meeting record if it is recei\'ed pr ior to or at the meetin g on ihe above date. 

I (We) do nat agree the above provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to reduce minimum 

Owner of unit2::.L 4099 No.4 Road Richmond S.c. V6X 2M2 

lCA.J-1 I<...,.,.j C '" {Irk, i<.1-r L1.f~('".J 
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City of 
Richmond 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11-592266 
6911 No.3 Roa_d. Richmond, Be V6Y 2Cl 

Phone 604-276-4007 Fax 604-278-5139 

Applicant: Kraftsmen Holdings lid. 

Property .Location: 4151,4171 ,and 4 19 1 No.4 Road 

Intent of P~nnit: 

To pe nni! the construction of25 three-slorey townhouse unils all a s ite zoned Town Housing (ZT67); 
and 

To vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 10: 

a) Reduce the minimum lot size from 0.5 ha. (1.24 ac.) to 0.38 !la. (0.94 ae.); and 

b) Reduce the minimum nonh side yard setback from 3.0 m to 1.6 m to a llow a garbage and 
recycling enclosure attached to the proposed Bui lding 7 to enc roach info the s ide yard 
setback. 

The Richmond Development Permit Panel wi ll meet to consider ora l and written submiss ions on the 
proposed deve loptrient noted above, on: 

Dare: 
T ime: 
Place: 

May 30, 20 12 
3:30 p.m. 
Counc il Chambers, Richmond City HaJl 

If YOll are unable to attend the Development Permi l Panel meet ing, you may m,ai l or otherwise 
de li ver to the Directm', City Clerk's Office, at the above address, a written submission, which will 
be entered into the meeting record ifit is recei\'ed pdor to or at the meeting on th e above date. 

I (We) do not agree the above provisio ns of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to reduce minimum 

requirements of lot size and north side setback. 

Owner of unit 2'Y4099 No. 4 Road Richmond S.c. V6X 2M2 

CNCL - 294



City of 
Richmond 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11-592266 
6911 NO.3 Road, Richmond, Be V6Y 2C1 

Phone 604-276-4007 Fax 604-278-5139 

Applican t: Kraftsmen Holdings Lid. 

P rope r ty L oca tion: 4151,417 1, and4 191 No.4 Road 

In tent of Permi l: 

To pennit the construction of25 three-sto rey townhouse units on a site zoned Town Housing (ZT67); 
and 

To vary the provis ions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to: 

a) Reduce the minimum lot size from 0.5 ha . (1.24 ac.) to 0.38 ha. (0.94 ac.); and 

b) Reduce the minimum north side yard setback from 3.0 m to 1.6 m to allow a garbage and 
recycling enclosure attached to the proposed Building 7 to encroach into the side yard 
setback. 

The Richmond Deve lopment Pennit Panel will meet to consider oral and written submissions on the 
proposed development noted above, on: 

Date: 
Time: 
Place : 

May )0, 20 12 
):)0 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Richmond C ity Hall 

If you are unable to attend the Development Pennit Panel meeting, you may mai l or otherwise 
deliver to the Di rector, City C lerk 's Offi ce, at the above add ress, a written submission, which will 
be entered into the meeting record ifit is received pr ior to or at the meeting on the a bove da te. 

I (We) do not agree the above provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to reduce minimum 

requirements of lot size and north side setback. 

Owner of b~itb4099 No.4 Road Richmond B.C. V6X 2M2 

(. C~C 
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City of 
Richmond 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11-592266 
6911 NO.3 Road, Richmond, Be V6Y 2C1 

Phone .604--276-40Q7 Fax 604~278-5139 

Applicant: Kraftsmen Holdings ltd. 

Propert)' Location: 4151,4171,and4 191 No.4 Road 

Intent of Permit: 

To permit the construction of25 ihree-slorey townhouse units on a site zoned Town Housing (ZT67); 
ami 

To vary the prov isions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to; 

a) Reduce the 111inimum lot size from 0.5 ha. 0.24 ac.) to 0.38 !la. (0.94 ae.); and 

b) Reduce {he minimum north side yard setback from 3.0 m to 1.6 m to allow a garbage and 
recycl ing en.closure anached to the proposed Building 7 to encroach into the side yard 
setback. 

The Richmond Development Permit Panel will meet to consider oral and writtel) submissions on the 
proposed development noted above, on: 

Date: 
Time: 
Place: 

May 30, 2012 
330 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Richmond City Hall 

If you are unable to ane-nd the Development Permi t Panel meeting, YOII may mai l or otherwise 
deliver to the Director, City Clerkls Office, at [he above address, a written submission! which wi ll 
be entered into the meeting record if it is rece ived prior to or at the meeting 0 11 the above date. 

I (We) do not agree the above pravisiQns of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to reduce minImum 

Owner of unj~ 4099 No.4 Road Richmond S.c. V6X 2M2 

CNCL - 296



City of 
Richmond 

Notice of Application 
For a Development Permit 

DP 11-592266 
6911 NO.3 Road, Richmond, Be V6Y 2C1 

Phone 604-276-4007 Fax 604-278·5139 

Applicant: Kraftsmen Holdings Ltd. 

P roperty Locat ion: 4151,4171, and 4191 No.4 Road 

I ntent of Permit: 

To pennit the construction of25 three·storey townhouse units on a site zoned Town Housing (ZT67); 
and 

To vary the provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to; 

a) Reduce the min imum lot size from 0.5 ha. (1.24 ae.) to 0.38 ha. (0.94 ae.); and 

b) Reduce the minimum north side yard setback from 3.0 m to 1.6 m to allow a garbage and 
recycl ing enclosure attached to the proposed Building 7 to encroach into the side yard 
setback. 

The Richmond Development Penn it Panel wi ll meet to consider oral and written submissions on the 
proposed development noted above, on: 

Da te: 
T ime: 
Place: 

May 30, 2012 
3:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Richmond City Hall 

Jfyou are unable to attend the Development Permit Panel meeting, you may mai l or otherwise 
del iver to the Director , City Cler k's Office, at the above address, a written submission, which wi ll 
be entered into the meeting record if it is rece ived prior to or a t the meeting On the above da te. 

1 (We) do not agree the above provisions of Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500 to reduce minimum 

requirements of Jot size and north side setback. 

~r 
Owner of unit'&"- 4099 No.4 Road Richmond S.c. V6X 2M2 

CNCL - 297
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City of 
Richmond Report to Council 

To: 

From: 

Richmond City Council 

Joe Erceg, MCIP 
Chair, Development Permit Panel 

Date: 

File: 

June 6, 2012 

0100-20-DPER1 

Re: Development Permit Panel Meetings Held on May 30, 2012 and 
April 25, 2012 

Panel Recommendation 

1. Tha11hc recommendations of the Panel to authorize the issuance of: 

i) a Development Penmit (DP 12-602996) for the property at 38 11 Moncton Street; 

ii) a Development Penmit (DP 12-603496) for the property at 8900 No. I Road; and 

iii) a Development Penmit (DP 11-594282) for the property at 
7600 Garden City Road; 

be endorsed, and the Permits so issued. 

2. That the recommendation of the Panel to authorize the issuance ofa Heritage Alteration 
Permit (HA 12-602998) in accordance with the Development Permit (DP 12-602996) for 
the property at 3811 Moncton Street be endorsed, and the Pennit so issued. 

6:.g, M"'CV'j[,.P'<"'-""" 

Chair, Developme 

SB:blg 
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June 6, 2012 - 2- 0100-20-DPERI 

Panel Report 

The Development Pennit Panel considered the following items at its meetings held on 
May 30, 2012 and April 25, 2012. 

DP 12-602996 AND HA 12-602998 - CITY OF RICHMOND 3811 MONCTON STREET 
(May 30, 2012) 

The Panel considered a Development Permit application and a Heritage Alteration Permit to 
pennit the rehabilitation of the exterior of the Japanese Fishennen's Benevolent Society 
Building, a designated heritage building, in order to fe-use the building as a wing of the 
Steveston Museum at on a site zoned Steves ton Commercial (CS2). No variances are included in 
the proposal. 

The architect, Mr. James Burton, of Birmingham & Wood, provided a briefpresentatioll, 
including: 

• The rehabilitation will be according to best practices for heritage conservation. 

• The front porch will be restored to its original form, using archival photos to inform details. 

• A partially enclosed glazed connection will be added between the Japanese Fishermen's 
Benevolent Society Building and the Steveston Museum. 

• New doors will be added: into an existing door opening that will be used for an exterior door 
onto a patio; and within the glass enclosure for the connection of the two bui ldings. 

Staff supported the Development Permit application and the Heritage Alteration Permit 
application. Staff advised that the architect has planned the restoration so that: (i) it respects the 
heritage aspect of the building; and (ii) a minimalist approach has been applied to this project. 

Mr. Peter Mitchell, Vice-President of the Anny, Navy and Air Force (ANAF) housing project on 
No. 1 Road, stated that the ANAF was happy to see that the restoration work was commencing 
on the heritage building, which was originally sited on the ANAF property before it was moved 
to the Steveston Museum site. Speaking as a resident of the City, Mr. Mitchell posed questions 
to the architect regarding trees and green space, access to the site, and internal doors. 

The following additional information was provided by Mr. Burton in response to discussion: 

• Cedar shingles will be used to restore the roof; they were also used on the Steveston Museum 
roof as cedar shingles were applied to the original roofs of the two (2) Heritage Buildings. 

• The intention of the glass is to not confuse the public as to what is new and what is old. The 
glass connection allows the two (2) buildings to function together and recognizes the 
distinction. 

• The proposed restoration was presented to the Richmond Heritage Commission and to the 
Steveston Historical Society and the plan met with support from both entities. 

• The new connection is a painted steel frame with tempered glass skin to keep the rain out, 
and the glass does not touch either building to affect the existing heritage as little as possible. 
The roofline cuts across a window frame, a necessary design to avoid snow loading on the 
lower roof of the Steveston Museum. 

3S45222 CNCL - 300



June 6, 2012 - 3 - 0100-20-DPERI 

• There is no change to the landscaping, except the addition of a gravel pathway into the green 
space between the building and the property to the north, creating a more inviting access the 
park from 1 st Avenue; and no trees are being removed from the site. 

• Interior works will be specified at a later date, but the intention is to leave doorways intact. 

The Panel supported the application, while one Panel member expressed reservations regarding 
the glass and steel structure. There was general agreement that it was good to see effort put into 
the enhancement of the City's heritage buildings. 

No public correspondence was submitted to the Panel meeting regarding the application. 

The Panel recommends that the Permits be issued. 

DP 12-603496 - FUSION PROJECT MANAGEMENT LTD. - 8900 NO.1 ROAD 
(May 30, 2012) 

The Panel considered a Development Pennit application to pennit the construction of store front 
improvements to the existing commercial building on a site zoned HNeighbourhood Commercial 
(CN)" . No variances are included in the proposal. 

Mr. Larry McPherson, of Fusion Project Management Ltd., Vancouver, provided a brief 
presentation, including: 

• Some existing windows will be replaced. 

• The canopy will be removed and a projected parapet will be added. 

• The colour scheme is grey, with orange and blue corporate colours. 

• The existing landscaping will be expanded with the addition of flowers and shrubs. 

Staff supported the Development Permit application and the various cosmetic improvements. 
The proposed landscape scheme will be updated and will not impede sightlines for drivers or 
pedestrians. Staff advised that the Development Penn it was required because over $50,000 
would be spent on renovations to the exterior of the commercial building. 

No public correspondence was submitted to the Panel meeting regarding the application. 

The Panel recommends that the Permit be issued. 

DP 11-594282 AM-PRI CONSTRUCTION L TO. 7600 GARDEN CITY ROAD 
(April 25, 2012) 

The Panel considered a Development Pennit application to pennit the construction ofa 23~unit 
town house development at 7600 Garden City Road on a site zoned Town Housing (ZT50)­
South McLennan (City Centre). Variances are included in the proposal to the South side yard for 
a ground level enclosed garbage and recycling room; balcony projections; and one third floor 
room projection. 
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June 6, 2012 - 4- 0100-20-DPERI 

Architect, Mr. Taizo Yamamoto, of Yamamoto Architect Inc., and Landscape Architect, 
Masa Ito, of Ito and Associates Landscape Architects, provided a brief presentation, including: 

• The site is an 'orphaned lot' and the proposed design is in keeping with the neighbouring 
townhouse developments with architectural design features, such as porches and gables. 

• The colour palette includes a mix ofneutra] tones, and accents are created by the use of 
brick. 

• Vehicle access to the subject site is from Turnill Street. 

• The central outdoor amenity area includes mailboxes, chlldren's play area, open lawn, 
seating, shrubs and trees. 

• Sustainable measures include, lowe-glass windows, energy efficient appliances, and 
enhanced site permeability by the use of permeable pavers. 

• The reduced south side yard is meant to address the recycling area only, not the garbage area. 

• There is one (1) convertible unit, and all other units include aging.in-place features. 

• Lush landscaped streetscapes, with a variety of flowering trees and plants. 

Staff supported the Development Permit application and the requested variance. Staff advised: 

• The primary reason for the requested variances to the south yard is the retention of five (5) 
trees along the north property line, and the desire to provide enough room for them to thrive. 

• The project will: (i) complete a portion of Turnill Street with road dedication and will help 
with traffic flow in the area; and (ii) complete a portion of the Garden City Road greenway. 

In response to queries, staff advised that the on-site accessible parking space and drive aisle 
width meet the zoning bylaw requirement. 

Mr. Yamamoto added that the accessible visitor parking is not adjacent to the convertible unit. 

Public correspondence was submitted to the Panel meeting from Heather Street resident, 
Ms. Leslie·Anne Blake. Ms. Blake requests: installing a stop sign at Jones Road and 
Turnill Street; limiting parking to one side of TurniJl Street; and installing speed humps along 
Heather Street. Staff advised that Transportation Division staff would look into the stop sign and 
speed hump requests, and that the development includes the widening of Turnill Street, which 
would improve parking. 

The Panel noted that finishing Turnill Street would make a significant difference to the 
neighbourhood, and would improve traffic issues in the area. 

The Panel recommends that the Permit be issued. 
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